
AGENDA 
 

CITY OF PEARLAND 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

 
 
 
 
 

       Henry Fuertes                     Daniel Tunstall 
             P&Z CHAIRPERSON           P&Z VICE-CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 
 
  
               Elizabeth McLane                  Derrick Reed 
 
 
 
 
 

  
          

Mary Starr                Ginger McFadden 
     

        
 
 
 
     Linda Cowles 

 
 

 
 

September 15, 2014  6:30 p.m. 

In accordance with the Texas Open Meeting Act the Agenda is posted for public information, at all 
times, for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting on the bulletin board 
located at the front entrance of the City Hall, 3519 Liberty Drive. 

 



 
 
 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting 
September 15, 2014 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 
 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2014, AT 6:30 p.m. 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS - CITY HALL - 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. CONSENT AGENDA     

All items listed under the “Consent Agenda” are considered to be routine 
and require little or no deliberation by the P&Z Commission. These items 
will be enacted / approved by one motion unless a commissioner requests 
separate action on an item, in which event the item will be removed from 
the Consent Agenda and considered by separate action (ix. Matters 
removed from Consent Agenda). Approval of the Consent Agenda enacts 
the items of legislation. 
 
A. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 
1. Approve the Minutes of the August 18, 2014, p.m. P&Z Regular Meeting, 

held at 6:30 p.m. 
2. Excuse the Absence of Daniel Tunstall from the August 4, 2014 P&Z 

Regular meeting. 
 

B.  CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – FINAL PLAT OF OAKBROOK 
ESTATES SECTION 9 
 
A request by Alex Van Duzer of Cobb Fendley, applicant, on behalf of 
Oakbrook Estates, LTD, owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Oakbrook 
Estates Section 9, a 46 lot single-family residential subdivision, to wit: 

 
Legal Description: Being a subdivision of 15.379 acres of land situated in 
the W.D.C. Hall League, Abstract No. 70, Brazoria County MUD 17, City of 
Pearland, Brazoria County, Texas  

 
General Location: 3800 Block of Oak Bent Drive, Pearland, TX. 
 

III. MATTERS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA   
 
IV. OLD BUSINESS  

 

Decision 
Date 

09/19/2014 

 
  



 
 
 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting 
September 15, 2014 

Page 2 of 5 
 

A. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION - ZONE CHANGE 
APPLICATION NO. 2014-10Z 
 
A request of James Johnson, Lake Park Pearland, Ltd., applicant; on behalf 
of James Johnson, FYCW, Ltd, owner; for approval of a change in zoning 
from Single Family Estate District (RE) to a mixed- use Planned 
Development (PD) known as Pearland’s Lake Park; on approximately 47 
acres, to wit: 
 
Legal Description:  Being a 47.717 acre tract of land located in the W.B. 
Dobson Survey, Abstract-1 87, in Brazoria County, Texas; said 47.717 acre 
tract being the remainder of a called 48.35 acre tract recorded in the name of 
Bruno Bagnoliin Volume 339, Page 319, of the Brazoria County Deed 
Records (B.C.D.R.), Brazoria County, Texas, Brazoria County, Texas 

 
General Location:  Northeast corner of Brookside Road and Cullen 
Parkway, Pearland, TX 

 
V. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – EXTENSION OF DIXIE 

FARM AND TALL OAK CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
A request by Korie Johnston of DR Horton, applicant and Kathy Jan 
Freeman and Kim Freeman, owner (s), for approval of an extension of a 
Cluster Development Plan on a 14.3 acre tract of land for a single-family 
residential subdivision, to wit: 
 
Legal Description:  Being 11.933 acres of land located in the W.D.C. Hall 
League, Abstract 70, Brazoria County, Texas, more particularly being a 
portion of Lot 3 and Lot 4 of the George W. Jenkins Subdivision, a 
subdivision of record in Volume 79, Page 616 of the Brazoria County Deed 
Records (B.C.D.R.), also being the residue of a 7.5 acre tract (described as 
the Southwest ¾ of Lot 3) of which an undivided one-half interest was 
conveyed to Kim Freeman by instrument of record in File Number 99-010744 
of the Brazoria County Official Records (B.C.O.R.) and an un-divided ¼ 
interest, each, was to Kim Freeman and Kathy Jan Freeman, by instrument 
of record in File number 96-044065 of said B.C.O.R., and the residue of a 5 
acre tract (described as southwest ½ of Lot 4) of which an undivided one-half 
interest was conveyed to Kathy Freeman, by instrument of record in File 
number 99-0010744, of said B.C.O.R. and an undivided one fourth interest, 
each, was conveyed to Kim Freeman and Kathy Jan Freeman by instrument 
of record in File Number 96-044065, of said B.C.O.R., and; 
 



 
 
 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting 
September 15, 2014 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Being 2.387 acres of land located in the W.D.C. Hall League, Abstract 70, 
Brazoria County, Texas, more particularly being a portion of Lot 3 of the 
George W. Jenkins Subdivision, a subdivision of record in Volume 79, Page 
616 of the Brazoria County Deed Records (B.C.P.R.), and being the residue 
of a 2.5 acre tract (described as the Northeast ¼ of Lot 3) conveyed to Kathy 
Freeman by instrument of record in Volume 1009, Page 57 of said B.C.D.R. 
 

 
General Location:  Northeast corner of Dixie Farm Road and Tall Oak 
Drive, Pearland, TX 
 

B. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – CONDITIONAL USE 
PERMIT NO. 2014-08 
 
A request of Pirooz Farhoomand, applicant; on behalf of Artisan Estates, 
L.P., owner; for approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow for a Church, 
Temple, or Place of Worship in the Neighborhood Services (NS) Zoning 
District; on approximately 2.225 acres of land, to wit: 
 
Legal Description:  Being a tract of land containing 2.225 acre (96,940 
square feet) tract of land in the H.T. & B.R.R. Co. Survey, Abstract 309, 
Brazoria County, Texas. Said 2.225 acre tract is in  the south one-half 
of Lot 30 of the Allison-Richey Gulf Coast Home  Company’s part of 
Suburban Gardens Subdivision as recorded in Volume  2, Page 23 of the 
Brazoria County Map records and is further described as being part of a tract 
of land described in a deed conveyed from Garfield Clark, Jr. to Danny L. 
Blumrick executed on March 10, 1999 as recorded in Clerk’s file No. 99 
012327 in the Brazoria County Clerk’s and all of a 0.9326 acre tract of land 
described in a deed conveyed from Garfield Clark, Jr. to Danny L. Blumrick 
executed on November 28, 2000 as recorded in Clerk’s File No. 01 034492 
in the Brazoria County Clerk’s Office, Brazoria County, Texas  
 
General Location:  3030 Cullen Parkway, Pearland, TX 

 
C. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION - ZONE CHANGE 

APPLICATION NO. 2014-6Z 
 
A request of Evelyn Pineda, owner/applicant; for approval of a change in 
zoning from Single Family Residential-2 (R-2) to Office and Professional 
(OP) on approximately 0.21 acres of land, to wit: 
 
Legal Description:  A tract of land being known as Lot 15 of Darlinda 
Addition, a subdivision in Brazoria County Texas as recorded in Volume 7, 
Page 20 of the Plat Records of said Brazoria County, and being the same 
tract of land as described in deed to Ernesto Perez and Evelyn Pineda under 



 
 
 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting 
September 15, 2014 

Page 4 of 5 
 

Clerk;s File Number 2006042620 of the Real Property Records of said 
Brazoria County. 
 
General Location:  4602 Broadway Street, Pearland, TX 
 

D. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION - ZONE CHANGE 
APPLICATION NO. 2014-15Z 
 
A request of BGE Kerry R. Gilbert and Associates, applicant; on behalf of 
Parkside 59/288 LTD, owner; for approval of an amendment to the Business 
Center PD; on approximately 29.331 acres of land, to wit: 
 
Legal Description:  Being 29.331 acres of land located in the H.T. & B.R.R. 
Company Survey, Section 81, Abstract Number 300, Brazoria County, 
Texas, being a portion of Lots 38, 39, 40, 49 and 50 of the Allison Richey 
Gulf Coast Home Company’s Part of Suburban Gardens, a subdivision of 
record in Volume 2, Page 98 of the Brazoria County Plat Records, being a 
portion of Business Center Planned Development Tract C-4, the plat thereof 
recorded under Document Number  2013-033688 in the Official Public 
Records of Brazoria County Texas, further being the residue of a 30.583 
acre tract (Part One) and the residue of a 9.990 acre tract (Part Two) 
described in the deed from Compass Bank to Parkside 59/288 LTD. 
Recorded under Document No. 2011012491, in the Official Public Records 
of Brazoria County, Texas. 
  
General Location:  Northwest corner of County Road 59 and State Highway 
288 Pearland, TX 
 

E. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION - ZONE CHANGE 
APPLICATION NO. 2014-16Z 
 
A request of LJA Engineering, applicant; on behalf of A S 121 Pearland 
Parkway-Broadway Street, L.P., owner; for a change in zoning to amend the 
Province Village PD, on approximately 1.707 acres of land, to wit: 
 
Legal Description:  Being 1.707 acres of land located in the Thomas J. 
Green Survey, Abstract 198, Brazoria County, Texas, more particularly being 
all of Lot A and a portion of Lot  B, Block 1 of Amending Plat No. 1, 
Province Village Drive, Office Park and Reserves, a subdivision of record 
under Doc # 2008019410 of the Official Public Records of Brazoria County, 
Texas (B.C.O.P.R.). 
  
General Location:  Southeast corner of Province Village Drive and Pearland 
Parkway, Pearland, Texas 
 



 
 
 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting 
September 15, 2014 

Page 5 of 5 
 

F. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

1. Commissioners Activity Report 
2. Comprehensive Plan Update 
3. Zoning Update 
4. Commissioner’s Annual Questionnaire  
5. Texas APA State Conference – October 15-18 Frisco, TX  
6. Next P&Z Meeting - October 6, 2014  

 
  

VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that appropriate 
arrangements can be made. 
 
I, Jennifer Tatum, Office Assistant of the City of Pearland, Texas, do hereby certify that 
the foregoing agenda was posted in a place convenient to the general public at City Hall 
on the 12th day of September, 2014, A.D., at 5:30 p.m. 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Jennifer Tatum, Office Assistance 
 
 
Agenda removed  __________________  day of September, 2014. 



 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 



P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

A 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 

APPROVAL  
 

OF 
 

MINUTES 

 



 
 
 

 
Minutes of 

P&Z Regular Meeting 
August 18, 2014 

Page 1 of 7 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, ON MONDAY, AUGUST 18, 2014, AT 6:30 
P.M. IN THE  COUNCIL CHAMBERS - CITY HALL - 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes opened the P&Z Regular Meeting at 6:36 p.m. 

 
In attendance were: 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes 
P&Z Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall 
P&Z Member Elizabeth McLane 
P&Z Member Derrick Reed 
P&Z Member Linda Cowles 
P&Z Member Ginger McFadden 
P&Z Member Mary Starr 

 
Also in attendance were City Planner Johnna Matthews, Senior Planner Ian Clowes, 
Deputy City Attorney Nghiem Doan and Office Assistant Jennifer Tatum. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA   
  
CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 
Approve the Minutes of the August 4, 2014, p.m. P&Z Regular Meeting, held at 6:30 
p.m. 
Excuse the Absence of Ginger McFadden from the August 4, 2014 P&Z Regular 
meeting. 

 
CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF RIVERSTONE 
RANCH SECTION 3 

 
A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering Inc., applicant, on behalf of Meritage 
Homes of Texas, LLC, owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Riverstone Ranch at 
Clear Creek Section 3, a 77 lot single-family residential subdivision, to wit: 

 
Legal Description: Being a subdivision of 19.979 acres of land situated in the T.J. Green 
Survey, Abstract 290, City of Pearland, Harris County, Texas also being a part of lots 70, 
71, 72, 73, 74, 87, 88, 89, 90, and 91 of the Allison Richey Gulf Coast Home Company 
Subdivision, Section “G”, a subdivision of record in Volume 4, Page 48, Map Records of 
Harris County, Texas. 

 



Minutes of 
P&Z Regular Meeting 

August 18, 2014 
Page 2 of 7 

General Location: Southeast of Riverstone Ranch Drive, south of the City of  Houston 
ETJ border, Pearland, TX.  

CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF RIVERSTONE 
RANCH SECTION 4 

A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering Inc., applicant, on behalf of Meritage 
Homes of Texas, LLC, owner, for approval of a Preliminary Plat of Riverstone Ranch at 
Clear Creek Section 4, a 55 lot single-family residential subdivision, to wit: 

Legal Description: Being a subdivision of 34.2 acres of land situated in the T.J. Green 
Survey, Abstract 290, City of Pearland, Harris County, Texas also being a Replat of lots 54, 
55, 56, 57, 70-74, and 87-90 of the Allison Richey Gulf Coast Home Company Subdivision, 
Section “G”, a subdivision of record in Volume 4, Page 48, Map Records of Harris County, 
Texas. 

General Location: Southeast of Riverstone Ranch Drive, south of the City of Houston 
ETJ border, Pearland, TX. 

P&Z Commissioner Linda Cowles made the motion to approve the Consent Agenda, 
P&Z Commissioner Elizabeth McLane seconded. 

The vote was 7-0. The Consent Agenda was approved. 

MATTERS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA - NONE 

OLD BUSINESS - NONE 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

1. Commissioners Activity Report - None
2. Comprehensive Plan Update – Senior Planner Ian Clowes stated staff is

looking to schedule a joint workshop in October. The Comprehensive Plan
update remains on schedule.

3. Postponed Agenda Items – Zone Change Application No. 2014-10Z, Lake
Park PD – City Planner Johnna Matthews stated the revised documents 
have been received and are under review.

4. No P&Z Meeting September 1, 2014 – Labor Day Holiday
5. Next JPH/P&Z Meeting September 15, 2014 – 2nd Floor Conference Room

– P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr will not be able to attend the September
15, 2014 meeting.

 NEW BUSINESS 



 
 
 

 
Minutes of 

P&Z Regular Meeting 
August 18, 2014 

Page 3 of 7 
 

 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – RIVERSTONE RANCH AT        
CLEAR CREEK CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT PLAN AMENDMENT REQUEST 

 
A request by Geoff Freeman of BGE Kerry Gilberts and Associates applicant, on behalf 
of Meritage Homes of Texas, LLC, owner, for approval of an amendment to the 
Riverstone Ranch at Clear Creek Cluster Development Plan, to wit: 

 
Legal Description: Being a subdivision of 429.6 acres of land situated in theT.J. Green 
Survey, Abstract 290, City of Pearland, Harris County, Texas also being a portion of the 
Allison Richey Gulf Coast Home Company Subdivision, Section “G”, a subdivision of 
record in Volume 4, Page 48, Map Records of Harris County, Texas. 

 
General Location: Southeast of Riverstone Ranch Drive, south of the City of Houston 
ETJ border.   
 
P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr made the motion to approve the Riverstone Ranch at 
Clear Creek Cluster Development Amendment, and P&Z Commissioner Linda Cowles 
seconded. 
 
Senior Planner Ian Clowes read the staff report explaining that the subject property was 
purchased by a new home developer. The developer would like to clean up portions of 
the cluster plan and clarify the types of amenities that will be provided. A revised Cluster 
Plan was submitted. 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes asked what the staff would be happy with. Senior 
Planner Ian Clowes stated that staff was in agreement with the proposed amenities, 
trails, and time lines that were submitted. Mr. Clowes also stated that all conditions have 
been met. 
 
P&Z Commissioner Linda Cowles asked if this was all of Riverstone Ranch and, if it was 
connected to the developed section to the North. Applicant Kerry Gilbert stated that this 
is a continuation of Riverstone Ranch but would have different Homeowner 
Associations. P&Z Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall inquired about the size of each lot 
and if they were locked into a certain size. Mr. Clowes stated that the lot size could 
change.  
 
The vote was 7-0. The Amendment to Riverstone Ranch at Clear Creek Cluster 
Development Amendment was approved.  

 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes recessed the P&Z Regular Meeting at 7:02 p.m. 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes reconvened the P&Z Regular Meeting at 8:58 p.m. 
 



 
 
 

 
Minutes of 

P&Z Regular Meeting 
August 18, 2014 

Page 4 of 7 
 

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION NO. 
2014-12Z, BAKS BREWERY PD 

 
A request of Brian Allen with Baks Brewery, applicant; on behalf of George Gartner, 
owner; for approval of a change in zoning from General Commercial (GC) to a non-
residential Planned Development known as Baks Brewery; on approximately 2.94 acres 
of land, to wit: 

 
Legal Description:  Being a 2.939 acre tract out of Lots 20, 21 and 22 of the George 
W. Jenkins  Subdivision, in Brazoria County, Texas, according to  the map  or plat 
thereof recorded in Volume 2, Page 20, of the  Brazoria  County, Texas Plat 
Records 
  
General Location:  Northeast corner of Broadway Street and Shauntel Street, 
Pearland, TX 
 
P&Z Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall made the motion to approve Zone Change 
Application No. 2014-12Z, and P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr seconded. 
 
City Planner Johnna Matthews read the staff report stating  staff recommends approval 
of the request to change the zoning of the site from General Commercial (GC), to a non-
residential PD, allowing a base zone and overlay district of GC, with the addition of the 
proposed use, and the following conditions; 
 

1. Provide details within the PD regarding the phasing of improvements, 
including the proposed trail system. 

2. Revise the Design Standards Deviation Table regarding outdoor activities 
with specifics, as opposed to the current statement “Activities including, but 
not limited to, a covered seating area for customers”. 

 
P&Z Commissioner Linda Cowles asked what a “growler fill” was. Applicant Brian Allen 
stated that it was a large glass container or thermos that would be filled with beer, but 
was to be consumed offsite. 
 
Mr. Tunstall stated that this site could be a restaurant/bar with the current zoning and 
that the vote was just for the brewing/manufacturing portion of the business. He also 
stated that more buffering was being given compared to other businesses around the 
area. 
 
P&Z Commissioner Ginger McFadden commented that the building as it sits was great 
for a brewery, and that this building was not too close to the daycare. 
 
The vote was 7-0. Zone Change Application No. 2014-12Z was approved with the 
following conditions: 



 
 
 

 
Minutes of 

P&Z Regular Meeting 
August 18, 2014 

Page 5 of 7 
 

 
1. Provide details within the PD regarding the phasing of improvements, 

including the proposed trail system. 
2. Revise the Design Standards Deviation Table regarding outdoor activities 

with specifics, as opposed to the current statement “Activities including, but 
not limited to, a covered seating area for customers”. 

 
 
 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION NO. 
2014-13Z, PEARLAND TOWN CENTER PD AMENDMENT 

 
A request of Alysia Gordon and Teir Allender, applicants; on behalf of Michael Lebovitz, 
Executive Vice President of Development and Administration for Pearland Town Center, 
LP, owner; for approval of a change in zoning to amend the sign regulations contained 
within the Pearland Town Center PUD; on approximately 142.97 acres of land, to wit: 

 
Legal Description:  142.9664 acres of land out of Pearland Town Center, a subdivision 
of 143.6500 acres as recorded under File Number 2007008914 of the Plat Records of 
Brazoria County, Texas, and situated in the H.T. & B.R.R. Company Survey, Abstract 
300, Section 81, Brazoria County, Texas  

  
General Location:  South Side of Broadway Street, east and west of Kirby Drive, and 
west of Business Center Drive, Pearland, Texas 
 
P&Z Commissioner Elizabeth McLane made the motion to approve Zone Change 
Application No. 2014-13Z, and P&Z Commissioner Linda Cowles seconded. 
 
City Planner Johnna Matthews read the staff report stating that staff recommended 
approval with the following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant proposes that all off-premise wall advertising signs are approved 
by the owner. City approval, other than the normal permitting will no longer be 
required. Staff recommends City approval once, through the permitting process 
for all new frames, to ensure public safety and structural integrity of the new 
frames. Please clearly indicate this in the PD document. 
 

2. Staff requests that Exhibit B-2 is updated to reflect changes regarding advertising 
on the main tower (J) and the two (2) lower towers (Hand C). 

 
3. Staff requests a red-line and an addendum to the master PD document for the 

Pearland Town Center. 
 

4. There is a discrepancy regarding the total square footage on Exhibit B-2, with the 



 
 
 

 
Minutes of 

P&Z Regular Meeting 
August 18, 2014 

Page 6 of 7 
 

removal of Sign G. 
 

P&Z Commissioner Linda Cowles inquired if any of the signs would be visible from city 
streets. Applicant Teir Allender stated the signs would only be visable from within the 
Pearland Town Center Development. 
 
P&Z Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall asked if the city would be able to keep the signs 
from being lit up or electronic. City Planner Johnna Matthews stated she would have to 
look into it this. Deputy City Attorney Nghiem Doan stated that the applicant would have 
to apply for electrical permits if that was the case. 
 
The vote was 7-0. Zone Change Application No. 2014-13Z was approved with the 
following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant proposes that all off-premise wall advertising signs are approved 
by the owner.  City approval, other than the normal permitting process will no 
longer be required.  Staff recommends City approval once, through the permitting 
process for all new frames, to ensure public safety and structural integrity of new 
frames.  Please clearly indicate this in the PD document. 

2. Staff requests that Exhibit B-2 is updated to reflect changes proposed regarding 
advertising on the main tower (J) and the two (2) lower towers (H and C). 

3. Staff requests a red-line and an addendum to be added to the master PD 
document for the Pearland Town Center. 

4. There is a discrepancy regarding the total square footage on Exhibit B-2, with the 
removal of Sign G. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes adjourned the P&Z Regular Meeting at 9:11 p.m. 
 
These minutes were respectfully submitted by: 
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Jennifer Tatum, Office Assistant 

 
Minutes approved as submitted and/or corrected on this 15th day of September 2014, 
A.D. 
 
 



 
 
 

 
Minutes of 

P&Z Regular Meeting 
August 18, 2014 

Page 7 of 7 
 

_______________________________________ 
Henry Fuertes, Chairperson 

 
 
 
 
         
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

EXCUSE ABSENCES 
 

 

jtatum
Typewritten Text
Excuse the absence of Daniel Tunstall from the August 4, 2014 P&Z Regular meeting.

jtatum
Typewritten Text



P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

B 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Ian Clowes 

 
DATE:    09/10/2014 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Final Plat of Oakbrook Estates Section 9 

 

 

 Old Business        New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary:  A request by Alex Van Duzer of Cobb Fendley, applicant; on behalf of 
Oakbrook Estates, Ltd, owner; for approval of a Final Plat of Oakbrook Estates Section 
9; a 46 lot single-family residential subdivision, generally located at the 3800 Block of 
Oak Bent Drive.  

 

 

Staff Recommendation:  Approval 

 



 
 

P&Z 09/15/20114 

Final Plat of Oakbrook Estates Section 9 

Page 1 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 15, 2014 
 

 
FINAL PLAT OF OAKBROOK ESTATES SECTION 9 

 
A request by Alex Van Duzer of Cobb Fendley, applicant; on behalf of Oakbrook 
Estates, Ltd, owner; for approval of a Final Plat of Oakbrook Estates Section 9; a 46 
lot single-family residential subdivision, to wit 

 

Legal Description: A subdivision of 15.379 acres in the W.D.C. Hall League, 
Abstract No. 70, Brazoria County MUD 17, City of Pearland, Brazoria County, 
Texas. 
 

General Location: 3800 Block of Oak Bent Dr.  

 

 

SUMMARY:  This is a request for a Final Plat for Section 9 of Oakbrook Estates, which 
includes 46 single family lots and three reserves. The property is located north of the 
northwest corner of Dixie Farm and the proposed Pearland Parkway expansion, and is a 
continuation of the Oakbrook Estates subdivision. At build-out, the subdivision will have a 
total of 388 planned dwelling units.  Currently 306 have been platted.  Section 9 will add an 
additional 46 lots, for a total of 352 lots.  An additional 36 lots can be platted in the future. 

 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE:  The subject property is in conformance with all 
requirements of the Unified Development Code. 

 

CONFORMANCE WITH THE OAKBROOK PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD):  
The above submittal is in conformance with the Oakbrook Planned Unit Development 
(PUD).  The proposed section meets the required density of 3.22 units per acre and is in 
conformance with the approved layout.  
  

PLATTING STATUS: This is the Final Plat for Oakbrook Section 9. The preliminary plat 
was approved in September of 2013.  
 

CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property is served by 
two local roads within the existing Oakbrook PUD.  These local roads include Oakridge 
Drive which connects to Oak Top Drive.  Local roads require a minimum right-of-way of 50 
feet, and both local roads currently comply with the thoroughfare plan.  The extension of 
Pearland Parkway; a major thoroughfare, will be located at the southwest boundary of this 
section with Oakridge Drive connecting to it.  The right-of-way requirement for a major 
thoroughfare is 120 feet. The full 120 feet that is required to be dedicated via this plat for 
the Pearland Parkway expansion has been dedicated at this time.   
 

 

  



 
 

P&Z 09/15/20114 

Final Plat of Oakbrook Estates Section 9 

Page 2 

 

AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  The subject parcel is served by public water and sewer 
lines, from the existing Oakbrook Subdivision.  
 

PARKLAND:  As part of the approved Oakbrook Estates PUD, parkland has been 
dedicated to the city for future park use.      
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat of Oakbrook 
Estates Section 9 as proposed by the applicant, for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed final plat will not cause any adverse impacts on the surrounding 
properties.  
 

2. This request is in conformance with the comprehensive plan and the Oakbrook 
PUD.   
 

3. The request is in conformance with the Unified Development Code.  
 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Zoning Map 

 Aerial Map 

 Final Plat of Oakbrook Estates Section 9 



PUD

M-1

R-4

R-1

R-2

R-3

WILD
 OAK DR

OAK BENT D
R

SHADYCREST D
R

LO
NGHERRIDGE DR

OAK TOP DR
OAK CROSSING DR

HOUSTON LAKE DR

OAK LODGE DR

INDUSTRIAL DR

OAK SHIRE DR
ENGLISH LAKE DR

PENNYOAK DR

BARRETTS GLEN DR

CASTLE OAKS DR

FIR
 HOLLO

W WAY

GLENOAK DR

ZONING MAP

Final Plat of
Oakbrook Estates
Section 9

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 544 feet
MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Text



WILD
 OAK DR

OAK BENT D
R

SHADYCREST D
R

LO
NGHERRIDGE DR

OAK TOP DR
OAK CROSSING DR

HOUSTON LAKE DR

OAK LODGE DR

INDUSTRIAL DR

OAK SHIRE DR
ENGLISH LAKE DR

PENNYOAK DR

BARRETTS GLEN DR

CASTLE OAKS DR

FIR
 HOLLO

W WAY

GLENOAK DR

AERIAL MAP

Final Plat of
Oakbrook Estates
Section 9

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 544 feet
MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Text







 
 
 
 
 

MATTERS 
REMOVED FROM 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 



 
 
 
 
 

OLD 
BUSINESS 



P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

A 
 
 

 



P&Z AGENDA REQUEST 

TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

REQUESTOR: 

DATE:  

Johnna Matthews 

09/15/2014 

AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Lake Park Planned Development (PD) 

� Old Business  �   New Business  �   Discussion Item �   Workshop 

Summary:  A request of James Johnson, Lake Park Pearland, Ltd., applicant; on 
behalf of James Johnson, FYCW, Ltd, owner; for approval of a change in zoning from 
Single Family Estate District (RE) to a mixed- use Planned Development (PD) known 
as Pearland’s Lake Park; on approximately 47 acres. 

This item was postponed at the regular meeting of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission on July 21, 2014, due to outstanding concerns. 

City of Pearland 
3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 

Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 



 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 15, 2014 
 

 
2014-10Z, Lake Park Planned Development 
 

A request of James Johnson, Lake Park Pearland, Ltd., applicant; on behalf of 
James Johnson, FYCW, Ltd, owner; for approval of a change in zoning from 
Single Family Estate District (RE) to a mixed- use Planned Development (PD) 
known as Pearland’s Lake Park; on approximately 47 acres, to wit: 
 

 Legal Description:  Being a 47.717 acre tract of land located in the W.B. 
Dobson Survey, Abstract-1 87, in Brazoria County, Texas; said 47.717 acre tract 
being  the remainder of a called 48.35 acre tract recorded in the name of Bruno 
Bagnoli in Volume 339, Page 319, of the Brazoria County Deed Records 
(B.C.D.R.), Brazoria County, Texas, Brazoria County, Texas  

 
 General Location:  Northeast corner of Brookside Road and Cullen Parkway, 
 Pearland, TX 

 
  

 
SUMMARY:  The applicant proposes a mixed-use Planned Development (PD); 
Pearland’s Lake Park (Lake Park), on approximately 47.7 acres of land located at the 
northeast corner of Brookside Road (future McHard Road) and Cullen Parkway.  The 
PD will include a 375-unit residential product which is a hybrid between a multi-family 
development and a townhome development.  The PD will also allow non-residential 
uses which are currently permitted within the General Business (GB) and the Office and 
Professional (OP) zoning districts, with a list of uses identified on page 3 of the PD 
which are prohibited. See Attachments of this report for the revised PD.  The overlay 
zoning districts are Townhouse Residential (TH), for the residential product; and OP 
and GB for the non-residential uses.  The applicant also proposes full compliance with 
the Corridor Overlay District (COD) standards. 
    
The development will be constructed in three (3) phases, as identified on Exhibits C, D 
and E of the PD document, with 238 residential units; one (1) non-residential use; and 
all amenities constructed in Phase 1, on approximately 29.5 acres.  Phase 2 will include 
the remaining 137 units and 1 non-residential use on approximately 10 acres.  Phase 3 
will include the remaining non-residential uses, shown as 5 buildings on Exhibit E 
located on approximately 5.7 acres of land. 
 
 

 
 

 

P&Z 9/15/2014 
2014-10Z, Lake Park PD 

Page 1 
 



Amenities include 2 lakes, a pavilion, colonnade, fountains, a covered exercise stations, 
with no less than 8 pieces of equipment, construction of a trail system which will 
connect to Clear Creek Trail and a trail head, and signage about the city’s history.   

The proposed PD was recently presented to the Planning and Zoning Commission and 
City Council via a joint public hearing on July 21, 2014.  One of the concerns raised at 
the joint public hearing was the disproportionate amount of non-residential uses vs. 
residential uses proposed in Phase 1.   

At the regular meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission on July 21, the item was 
postponed due to various major concerns that had not been addressed by the applicant 
in the PD.  See Attachments of this report for the applicant’s response to outstanding 
concerns.   

Generally, the major concerns have been addressed.  However, there are minor 
corrections required prior to scheduling the item for the First Reading of the City 
Council.  These concerns include: 

• Labeling of exhibits, referencing inaccurate exhibits, sequential order of exhibits,
detailed information to be included within exhibits with legends in order to
implement the spirit and intent of the exhibit and the PD overall, etc.

• Language in the PD that is not clear and open for interpretation, regarding
platting, for example. On page 4 the PD states “Lake Park Town-Homes as rental
will have no platted lots.”

• The applicant proposes to include “hardscape and gathering areas” towards the
landscaping requirement.  Landscaping is comprised of pervious surfaces (allows
infiltration of water into the soil) integrated with living plant material, including
trees, shrubs, flowers, grass, or other living ground cover or native vegetation.

• Clarification is required regarding residential parking requirements.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Lake Park PD, 
for the following reasons:

• The proposed commercial uses are in conformance with the future land use
designation of Major Retail Nodes.  The aforementioned future land use
designation is generally located within the southwest corner of the site, where the
non-residential uses are generally proposed.  A portion of the site along the north
property line along the creek is located within the Parks future land use
designation.  Because the applicant proposes a trail and parkland dedication in
the general vicinity, the use meets the future land use designation in this location.

P&Z 9/15/2014 
2014-10Z, Lake Park PD 

Page 2 



The remainder of the site is located within the Low Density Residential future 
land use designation.  High density residential uses are proposed within this area 
and do not meet the future land use designation.  If the PD is approved staff will 
analyze the development for an appropriate future land use designation and 
include it in its annual review of the future land use element of the 
comprehensive plan.  

• The PD, as shown will provide a diverse housing opportunity which will include a
host of amenities to service the residents and citizens of Pearland.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
• Applicant Response to July 21, 2014 Staff Report/Memo
• July 21, 2014 JPH Packet
• Revised Lake Park PD

P&Z 9/15/2014 
2014-10Z, Lake Park PD 

Page 3 



Memo 
To:  City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission 

From:  Planning Department 

Date:  July 21, 2014 

Re: Zone Change Application Number 2014-10Z 

A request of James Johnson, Lake Park Pearland, Ltd., 
applicant; on behalf of James Johnson, FYCW, Ltd, 
owner; for approval of a change in zoning from Single 
Family Estate District (RE) to a mixed- use Planned 
Development (PD) known as Pearland’s Lake Park; on 
approximately 47 acres, located at the northeast corner of 
Brookside Road and Cullen Parkway. 

Proposal 

The applicant proposes to change the zoning of an undeveloped 47 acre tract from the 
Single Family Estate (RE) zoning district to a mixed-use Planned Development (PD); 
Pearland’s Lake Park (Lake Park).  Lake Park will include one, two and three-story 
rental dwelling units; and office, retail, restaurant, and various other general business 
uses.  It appears from the PD document, that the overlay zoning for the site will include 
Multi-family (MF) and Townhouse Residential (TH) districts for the residential uses; and 
General Business (GB) and Office Professional for the non-residential uses.  However, 
this information needs to be further clarified.   

These comments have been addressed and clarified in Section II, page 3, IV.Deviations 
and continues through page 4. 

Background 

Lake Park was most recently presented via a joint workshop before the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and City Council on February 17, 2014.  At that time, the 
development was proposed to include a mix of retail, office, parks and trails, a 
plaza/pavilions, lake detention and 417 rental dwelling units, which equates to a density 
of 19.3 dwelling units per acre (417 homes on 21.6 acres).  Concerns raised by the City 
Council, Planning and Zoning Commission and staff during the February, 2014 
workshop included the following. How the applicant addressed the concerns follow. 

1 | P a g e

Applicant Response to  7.21.14 Staff Report/Memo



 

Reduced from 417 to 375 units on 29.5 acres (12.7 units per acre) see Land Use Table.  

 

1. Utilities to be individually metered, including water, sewer, electricity. 
All utilities will be individually metered or individually sub-metered. 
All utilities will be individually metered or sub-metered. Page 5, VII. Development 
Standards. #14. 
 

2. Codify amenities, including quantity, locations of proposed amenities, etc.   
(Not Addressed) Various amenities and design standards need to be codified to 
ensure implementation of the spirit and intent of the PD. 
Comment addressed in Sections II, and IV.  Elevations of town homes, 
Elevations of Colonnade and splash pad.  All fountains and landscape seating 
areas are identified and located on “Overall Design Plan” Exhibit “B” 
 

3. Concerns were raised regarding the phasing plan with 238 residential dwelling 
units proposed in the first phase with no non-residential uses. 
The phasing plan for the current Lake Park PD includes three (3) phases 
identified as follows:As discussed during the JPH with Council and P&Z the GB & 
O/P are strictly market driven and it would be unwise to build speculative space.  
It is the developer’s wish to move these phases along as quickly as possible. 
 
Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3 

• +/- 238 
dwelling units, 
including a 
clubhouse with 
a conference 
room, coffee 
bar, lounge 
and pool 

• 1 GB/OP 
use/structure 
near the sw 
corner of the 
site 

• All amenities, 
including 
parks/open 
space, lakes, 
trails, 

• +/- 137 
dwelling units 

• 1 GB/OP 
use/structure 
near the sw 
corner of the 
site 

• 10.2 acres 

• GB/OP  
• 4 GB/OP 

uses/structures 
located along 
the west, south 
and sw corner 
of the site 

• 5.7 acres 

2 | P a g e  

 



 

plaza/pavilion, 
fountains 

• 29.5 acres 
 

4. Home ownership was a key component in the discussion.  The applicant was 
advised to ensure that homes could be purchased from the inception. 
The units are 100% rental.  The applicant indicated that the units would be 
constructed with the idea of rental in the future (individually metered and/or sub-
metered utilities).  However, the applicant indicated that the units must be rental 
to obtain funding for the development. 
This was discussed and explained during the JPH the project will be “For Lease”.  
The residential component of the PD will be constructed so that in the event the 
market allows for the sale of units individually that transition can be made.  A 
professional management company will manage the property in either scenario. 
 

5. The applicant was asked to specify any flexibility allowed and/or minor deviations 
permitted within the PD that can be approved by the Planning Director.   
The UDC allows for flexibility and minor deviations in the design plan to be 
approved by the Planning Director.  Unless otherwise specified in the ordinance 
for the PD, minor deviations, as specified in Section 2.2.2.6 of the UDC are 
defined.  Major deviations must be submitted to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and the City Council as an amendment to the PD.  The applicant 
referenced the above section of the UDC in the PD. 
The applicant acknowledges this Section in the UDC and has tried to keep 
variations to a minimum.  It is understood that major deviations will require 
submission and approval by Council and P&Z. 
 

6. The applicant was advised to lower the density if the dwelling units were 
proposed to be rental units; and that the density could increase only if there is 
ownership potential. 
The density was decreased from 19.3 dwelling units/acre (417 dwelling units on 
21.6 acres) to 12.7 dwelling units per acre (375 dwelling units on 29.52 acres).   
The density was decreased from 19.3 dwelling units/acre (417 dwelling units on 
21.6 acres) to 12.7 dwelling units per acre (375 dwelling units on 29.52 acres).   
 
Based on the land use table included in the PD and page 2 of the staff report, the 
acreage calculations are incorrect.  The table indicates that the acreage for the 
Lake Park development is 76.8 acres.  The acreage listed throughout the PD and 
on the survey included as part of the PD indicates 47.717 acres.  Staff has 
concerns that the density calculations may need to be revised. 

3 | P a g e  

 



 

This comment has been addressed and modified to more clearly describe the 
developers intent.  See Section II, Land Use Table. 
 

7. Safety issues were raised regarding the pipeline easement.  The applicant was 
advised to indicate the proposed setback requirements and the type of pipeline. 
(Not Addressed) The applicant advised that the development will abide by all city 
ordinances regarding the subject matter.  A requirement of the design plan is to 
show existing and proposed public facilities and physical features of the site 
including easements.  Although not shown on the design plan to determine its 
impact on proposed improvements, a 40-foot Texas Eastern pipeline easement is 
shown on an attached survey identified as Exhibit T in the PD document. 
The locations of the 40 ft. Texas Eastern pipeline easement and the 55 ft. Kinder-
Morgan pipeline easement are identified on the “Overall Design Plan”, Section II, 
Exhibit “B”.  In an effort to provide more comfort, the developer will double the 
width of each easement.  See Section II, page 5, VII Development Standards, 
#15. 
 

8. Concerns were raised regarding demographics and the impacts in which the 
proposed development would have on schools. 
The applicant advised that there were no objections filed by the schools, and that 
Lake Park’s market studies are strong. 
This comment was discussed.  The school district was notified of the proposed 
development and filed no objections or comments.   
 

9. Concerns were raised regarding the market study and if it was based on rental or 
home ownership opportunities.  
The applicant responded that a market study was completed and three (3) 
updates were completed for compliance. 
This was discussed and clarified with both City Council and P&Z. 
 

10. Caps were requested for various uses as well as clarification/corrections on 
density calculations. A cap of 375 residential units was placed on the TH portion 
of Lake Park.  See Section II, page 7,  X. Residential Densities. 
Based on the land use table provided by the applicant, and included within the 
PD, GB and OP uses (with the exception of those prohibited as illustrated in 
Section V. Authorized Uses of the PD) will represent 38.49% of the development.  
The residential aspect of the development will represent 61.76% (12.7 dwelling 
units/acre) of the development.  The remaining acreage will be developed with 
open space, easements and right-of-way dedication, detention/lakes; and 
parkland.  The foot print/building pad of any multi-tenant building shall not exceed 

4 | P a g e  

 



 

35,000 square feet.  The foot print/building pad for any single tenant building will 
not exceed 75,000 square feet.  See Section II, Land Use Table. 
 
The acreage of the PD needs to be revisited due to discrepancies identified in # 
6 above.  See Section II, Land Use Table. 
 

11. Discussion ensued regarding more open space/landscaping around the 
residential units, as small front and rear yards are desirable for some. 
(Not Addressed) The applicant indicated that the proposed residential product is 
different from the typical townhomes that are owned fee simple.  Backyards are 
not proposed for the residential units of the Lake Park PD.  The applicant has 
indicated that open space requirements within the PD exceed the requirements 
and various improvements will be credited towards open space due to cost.   
This comment is addressed in Section II, VII. Development Standards, page 5, 
#10, #11.  Section II VIII. Amenities, #8  Additionally, deviations from the TH 
district described in the City of Pearland’s UDC are listed in Section III, VI, pages 
3 and 4. 
 
According to the Land Use Table of the PD and Exhibit K (Parkland and Open 
Space), 10.52 acres (22.01%) will be devoted to open space.  Open space is 
considered areas intended for use or enjoyment by people, and can be satisfied 
by a combination of public and private open space.  Various improvements 
proposed that would meet the definition of open space include the proposed trail 
that will link Pearland’s Clear Creek System to the retail, office and all other 
public areas of the development; exercise stations; benches; a 4,000 square foot 
pavilion, colonnade with splash pads, and the proposed public and private 
lakes/detention. All of these standards are met and identified on the design 
plans, renderings and elevations. 
  
It appears as though the 5.2 acres of detention is included within the landscaping 
requirements.  Multi-family and townhome developments require 900 square feet 
of open space per dwelling unit, with minimum dimensions and within 300 feet of 
each dwelling unit.  This provision may have been met; however, clarification is 
required. All open space and parkland requirements have been met and are 
identified on Exhibit “K”, Section V.  Parkland and open space plan  
 
 

12. Payment in lieu of parkland dedication was not desirable. Discussion ensued 
regarding the development meeting all open space and parkland dedication 
regulations. 

5 | P a g e  

 



 

Parkland dedication is based on the number of residential units.  The Lake Park 
PD proposes 375 units/12.7 dwelling units per acre.  Based on one (1) acre per 
every 50 units, 7.5 acres of parkland is required.  According to various exhibits 
within the PD, including the land use table and Exhibit K (Parkland and Open 
Space), 10.5 acres (22%) of the land will be devoted to parkland.  However, the 
PD allows for credit for park improvements, excess landscaping and lake 
amenities, fees in lieu of dedication in the event that the applicant is unable to 
satisfy some or all parkland dedication. .  After pre-development discussions with 
the Director of Parks and Recreation it is believed all parkland requirements have 
been met.  The developer has not received any comments to the contrary for the 
parks department to date.  Section II, page 7, VIII. Amenities, #6 provides the 
budget for exercise equipment along the Clear Creek Trail System.  Construction 
costs for #2, #3, and #7, of the same section and page are forthcoming and can 
be credited, if at all by the Director of Parks and Recreation according to the 
acceptable formula. 
 

13. The applicant/owner has interest in the adjoining 16 acres to the east.  Questions 
were raised about what is proposed for the 16 acres. 
The applicant indicated that a portion of the property will likely be used to fill the 
subject 47 acres, thereby bringing the property out of the 100 year floodplain.  
However, future details are not clear. A CLOMR was recently approved by 
FEMA.  The CLOMR has been officially approved by FEMA.   
With respect to the 16 acres adjoin the eastern property border, we discussed 
there are no future development plans whatsoever, aside from providing fill as a 
part of Lake Park’s CLOMR design. 
 

14. Questions were raised regarding a HOA fee for those interested in purchasing a 
residential unit. 
The applicant has indicated that if it is possible to sell units, then there would be 
an HOA fee.  However, that the property will be managed by a professional 
management company regardless if owned or rented. 
This statement is correct. 
 

15. The applicant was asked to include within the PD document regulations, that the 
smallest residential unit shall be 900 square feet. 
(Not Addressed) The applicant is unable to commit to a minimum unit size of 900 
square feet.  The developer is unable to commit to a minimum per square foot 
size for the town homes.   
 
Additional staff concerns regarding the revised Lake Park PD are as follows: 

6 | P a g e  

 



 

• Staff requests that design standards and amenities are codified to ensure 
the spirit and intent of the PD are implemented.  For example, the Design 
Plan shows landscaping throughout the development.  Staff requests 
clarification of the percentages of landscape areas for each residential 
unit, as mentioned above in # 11.   

• Same response as #11. 
Also various amenities are shown and listed including enhanced entry features, 
decorative pavers, enhanced lighting, colonnades/pavilion, etc.  Staff requests 
direction on how to implement these standards and amenities by codifying the 
regulations.  Comment addressed in Sections III, and IV. Elevations of 
Colonnade and splash pad.  All fountains and landscape seating areas are 
identified and located on “Overall Design Plan” Exhibit “B”   See also Section II, 
page 8, XII.  Design Standards 

•  
• The total acreage included in the break-down of the Land Use Table 

included as part of the PD and duplicated in the staff report, indicates that 
the total acreage included in the PD is 76.8 acres.  This acreage is not 
listed in the PD in any other area, including the survey, which indicates a 
total acreage of 47.7 acres.  Clarification is required. 

• With the above acreage being in conflict with all documents within the PD, 
the density calculations need to be revisited, as well as other calculations 
regarding all uses, open space, parkland dedication, etc.  All calculations 
have been reformatted.  See Section II, Land Use Table.                                                                      

• The ordinance for the PD requires a list of deviations from the standards in 
the base zoning district together with any standards in the ordinance to be 
varied.  Clarification is requested for the deviations listed on page 4 of the 
document.  See Section II, pages 4 and 5, VI. Deviations 

• Re-wording to avoid confusion is required in various areas of the PD.  For 
example, V. (Authorized Uses) states that all uses permitted within the 
land use matrix shall be allowed.  The wording has been revised to more 
clearly reflect the developer’s intenet. 

• Clarification is requested regarding the overlay zoning districts.  They 
appear to be GB, OP, MF and TH. 

• Addressed and revised in Section II, page 3, V. Authorized uses. 
• Section VII (Amenities) states the following amenities will be constructed 

in phases identified in phase 1.  Details regarding phases proposed for 
phase 1 is required for clarification. Addressed and revised in Section II, 
page 6, VIII. Amenities. 

• Section VI (Authorized Uses) states that all zoning districts are the overlay 
zoning districts for which staff will review permits.  To avoid confusion in 

7 | P a g e  

 



 

the future, clarification/revisions are required to the language within the 
PD. Addressed and revised in Section II, page 3, V. Authorized Uses. 

• Various exhibits are not included within the PD and various exhibits are 
not referenced in the PD.  All graphic depictions used to illustrate 
standards need to be codified to ensure that staff can implement the 
standards. All exhibits are included,  Design Standards are defined in 
Section II, page 8, XII.  Design Standards. 

• The Design Plan requires physical features of the site to be shown, 
including easements, existing and proposed public facilities, parking ratios 
and any other pertinent information, such as the pipeline easement to 
ensure no adverse impact on any proposed improvements.  Additionally, 
there is a City waterline project proposed, which requires a 20-foot 
acquisition along the north side of the existing right-of-way for Brookside 
Road (future McHard Road) that needs to be considered and shown on 
the design plan to determine any impacts on future development of the 
site.  These features are not shown on the Design Plan. 

• As previously discussed at the JPH with council and P&Z, there are 
currently no right of way acquisitions, surveys, etc., for the Mc Hard Rd 
expansion or water line.  The developer has allowed for the McHard Road 
expansion, as well as the water line in the Overall Design Plan, Section III,  
Exhibit “B” 

• A TIA is recommended to analyze the access points to ensure 
compatibility with the Engineering Design Criteria Manual.  Further, the 
TIA will analyze McHard Road to ensure an adequate level of service.  A 
TIA can be provided at the time of platting.  However, if there are any 
major changes due to improvements required as a result of the TIA, the 
PD may require an amendment. 

 
As of the date of this writing, staff has not received any returned notices from 
property owners within 200 feet of the site. 
 

Recommendation  

Staff is in favor of the proposed Lake Park PD.  However, staff recommends that the 
above concerns are addressed to ensure that staff can implement the spirit and intent of 
the Lake Park PD.  Contingent upon the above staff concerns being addressed, staff 
recommends approval of the PD for the following reasons: 

• The proposed commercial uses are in conformance with the future land use 
designation of Major Retail Nodes.  The aforementioned future land use 
designation is generally located within the southwest corner of the site, where the 
non-residential uses are generally proposed.  A portion of the site along the north 

8 | P a g e  

 



 

property line along the creek is located within the Parks future land use 
designation.  Because the applicant proposes a trail and parkland dedication in 
the general vicinity, the use meets the future land use designation in this location.  
The remainder of the site is located within the Low Density Residential future 
land use designation.  High density residential uses are proposed within this area 
and do not meet the future land use designation.  If the PD is approved staff will 
analyze the development for an appropriate future land use designation and 
include it in the annual review of the future land use element of the 
comprehensive plan.  

• The PD, as shown will provide a diverse housing opportunity which will include a 
host of amenities to service the residents and citizens of Pearland. 

Exhibits 

1. Staff Report 

2. Aerial Map 

3. Zoning Map 

4. Future Land Use Map 

5. Notification Map 

6. Notification List 

7. PD Document 

8. Applicant Packet 

9 | P a g e  

 



JOINT PUBLIC HEARING 
THE CITY COUNCIL CITY AND THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF 

THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, 
MONDAY, JULY 21, 2014, AT 6:30 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS - CITY HALL-3519 LIBERTY DRIVE 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. PURPOSE OF HEARING

Zone Change Application No. 2014-10Z

A request of James Johnson, Lake Park Pearland, Ltd., applicant; on behalf of
James Johnson, FYCW, Ltd, owner; for approval of a change in zoning from Single
Family Estate District (RE) to a mixed- use Planned Development (PD) known as
Pearland’s Lake Park; on approximately 47 acres, to wit:

Legal Description:  Being a 47.717 acre tract of land located in the W.B. Dobson
Survey, Abstract-1 87, in Brazoria County, Texas; said 47.717 acre tract being
the remainder of a called 48.35 acre tract recorded in the name of Bruno Bagnoli
in Volume 339, Page 319, of the Brazoria County Deed Records (B.C.D.R.),
Brazoria County, Texas, Brazoria County, Texas

General Location:  Northeast corner of Brookside Road and Cullen Parkway,
Pearland, TX

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY

A. STAFF REPORT
B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION
C. STAFF WRAP UP

IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED
REQUEST

V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 

VI. ADJOURNMENT

This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that 
appropriate arrangements can be made. 

Page 1 of 1 – 7/21/2014   

July 21, 2014 Joint Public Hearing Packet



1 | P a g e

Summary of Request 

The applicant proposes a mixed use Planned Development (PD), known as Pearland’s 
Lake Park PD (Lake Park) on the approximately 47-acre site.  The development will 
include a rental residential product which is a hybrid between townhomes and multi-
family dwelling units, at a density of 12.7 dwelling units per acre (375 dwelling units on 
29.52 acres).  Various non-residential uses, including retail, office, restaurants are also 
proposed.  According to the Design Plan, the residential units are proposed to be 
located in multiple buildings, clustered around the proposed 2.4 acre private lake, which 
will be used exclusively by the residents of the development.  The proposed non-
residential uses will be housed in seven (7) buildings located along the perimeter of the 
site along Cullen Parkway and Brookside Road. 

Amenities include a 10-foot wide trail along the Clear Creek Trail system located in the 
northern portion of the site, within the area designated as parkland that will link the trail 
system to the proposed retail, office and all other public areas of the development; a 
trailhead near the northwest corner of the site with no less than six (6) parking spaces; 
an exercise station; benches; a 4,000 square foot pavilion, colonnade with splash pads; 
drinking fountains; informational signage about the City’s history; a community 
swimming pool, a club house with a conference room/business center, coffee lounge; 
two (2) lakes/detention; and enhanced entrance cross sections from Cullen Parkway 
and Brookside Road/McHard Road into the development, including landscaping to 
create a boulevard entrance, with decorative lighting.   

The Overlay zoning district for the PD appears to include Townhouse Residential (TH) 
and Multi-Family Residential (MF) for the residential component; and General Business 
(GB) and Office & Professional (OP) for the non-residential component, with variations 
listed on page 3 of this staff report; however, this information needs to be clarified. 
Additionally, Pearland Parkway is located within the Corridor Overlay District (COD). 
The PD references compliance with all standards of the COD. 

Exhibit 1 
Staff Report 



2 | P a g e  

 

The Land Use Table of the PD identifies the following land uses.  However, the total 
acreage included equates to 76.8 acres.  However, in all other areas of the PD, 
including the survey, the property appears to include 47 acres.  Density calculations as 
well as all land uses need to be revisited to ensure correct totals.   

Land Use Acreage Percentage Density 

(Dwelling 
units/acre) 

Residential Product 

(hybrid between townhomes and 
multi-family) 

29.52 61.76% 12.7 

General Business (GB) & Office 
Professional Uses (with the exception 
of those prohibited by the PD) 

18.4 38.49% n/a 

Open Space 10.52 22.01% n/a 

Easements/R.O.W. 2.6  5.44% n/a 

Detention/Lakes 5.2 10.88% n/a 

Parkland 10.56 22.09% n/a 

Subtotal 76.8 160.67%  

 

 Lake Park will be constructed in three (3) phases identified in the below table: 

Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3 
 +/- 238 dwelling 

units, including  
clubhouse with 
conference room, 
coffee bar, lounge 
and pool 

 1 GB/OP 
use/structure near 
the sw corner of 
the site 

 All amenities, 
including 
parks/open space, 

 +/- 137 dwelling 
units 

 1 GB/OP 
use/structure near 
the sw corner of 
the site 

 10.2 acres 

 GB/OP  
 4 GB/OP 

uses/structures 
located along the 
west, south and sw 
corner of the site 

 5.7 acres 



3 | P a g e  

 

lakes, trails, 
plaza/pavilion, 
fountains 

 29.5 acres 
The ordinance for a PD requires a specific list of deviations from standards in the base 
zoning district(s) together with any standards in the ordinance which are to be varied for 
development within the PD district.  The required list of deviations was not provided by 
the applicant.  However, staff has identified the following variances: 

1. Land Use 

The subject property is located within the Single Family Estate (RE) zoning 
district.  The existing zoning district does not permit high density residential 
developments, such as the residential product proposed, or the proposed non-
residential uses. 

The proposed residential product is a hybrid between townhomes and multi-
family dwelling units.  Townhomes are defined as one of a group of no less than 
three (3) nor more than twelve (12) dwelling units, separated by a fire rated wall, 
each dwelling unit located on a separate lot, with minimum front and rear yards.  
Multi-family dwelling units contain dwelling units that are designed to be occupied 
by families living independently of one another, with the number of families not to 
exceed the number of dwelling units  

According to the Building Exhibits included within the PD document, multiple 
buildings will include more than 12 dwelling units. 

2. Lot and Bulk Requirements 
 
 The below table further identifies the difference between the existing zoning 
 district of RE, the overlay zoning districts of TH and MF, as well as the proposed 
 PD regulations, as it relates to the high density residential uses such as 
 townhomes: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



4 | P a g e  

 

 Density Min. 
Lot 
Area 

Min. 
Lot 
Width 

Min. 
Lot 
Depth

Max. Length 
of 
Townhomes

Min. 
Rear 
Yard 

Min 
Front 
Yard 

Building 
Height 

Distance 
Between 
Buildings 

RE 1.3 ½ 
acre 

120 
ft. 

90 ft. n/a 25 
ft. 

40 ft. 35 ft. 20 ft. 
between 
homes 

TH 9.4 3,000 
sf 

30 ft 90 ft. 200 ft or the 
width of 6 
attached 
units 

10 
ft. 

20 ft. 35 ft. 15 ft. 

MF 16 5,000 
sf 

50 ft. 90 ft. n/a 25 
ft. 

20 ft. 35 ft. 15 ft. 

PD 12.7 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 35 ft. n/a 
  
 

3. Parking Lot Landscaping 
  
 The COD requires parking lot landscape islands with at least one tree and no 
 parking space shall be greater than fifty (50) feet from a tree. 
 
 The applicant proposes landscape medians where nose-to-nose parking for non-
 residential uses are proposed.  Medians will be no less than seventy two (72) 
 inches in width. 
  

4. Future Land Use Designation 
 
The subject property is located within three (3) future land use designations; 
Major Retail Node at the southwest corner of the site at the intersection of Cullen 
Parkway and Mchard Road; Low Density Residential for the remainder of the 
site, with the exception of the boundary of the creek, which is designated as 
Parks.  The PD proposes approximately 18.4 acres of GB and OP uses within 
the general vicinity of the portion designated as Major Retail Nodes.  The 
northern portion which is designated as Parks following the creek is proposed 
park land with a trail connecting to the Clear Creek Trail system, a plaza and 
pavilion.  The remaining land in the PD is designated as Low Density Residential 
and will be developed with a high density hybrid between a townhome 
development and a multi-family development. 
 
 
 
 
 



5 | P a g e  

 

Discussion Items/Staff Concerns 

The below list of staff concerns include issues that were raised during the joint 
workshop in February, 2014, as well as staff concerns with the submittal of the new 
Lake Park PD. 

1. In order to implement the standards of the PD, design standards need to be clear 
and codified, parking requirements, and the landscaping shown throughout the 
development, for example.   

2. As part of the PD, the applicant is required to include within the PD document a 
specific list of deviations from standards in the base zoning district(s), together 
with any standards in the ordinance which are to be varied for development 
within the PD.  The PD makes reference to deviations on page 4; however the 
deviations are not clear. 

3. The table of contents does not reference correct page numbers. 
4. All exhibits are not included or referenced in the PD document.  All exhibits 

should be referenced to provide applicability to enforce the “character” of the 
illustrations. 

5. Section V (Authorized Uses) needs to be revised to clearly explain the overlay 
districts. 

6. Section VII (Amenities) states that the “amenities will be constructed in phases in 
Phase I.” 

7. Section VI (Authorized Uses) indicates that all zoning districts are the overlay 
district. 

8. Safety issues were raised regarding the pipeline easement.  The applicant was 
advised to indicate the proposed setback requirements and the type of pipeline. 
The applicant advised that the development will abide by all city ordinances 
regarding the subject matter.  A requirement of the design plan is to show 
existing and proposed public facilities and physical features of the site including 
easements.  Although not shown on the design plan to determine its impact on 
proposed improvements, a 40-foot Texas Eastern pipeline easement is shown on 
an attached survey identified as Exhibit T in the PD document.  Additionally, the 
City is in the process of acquiring a 20-foot easement along the north side of the 
existing right-of-way for Brookside Road (future McHard Road) that needs to be 
considered and shown on the design plan. 

9. The applicant was asked to include within the PD document regulations, that the 
smallest residential unit shall be 900 square feet. The applicant is unable to 
commit to a minimum unit size of 900 square feet. 

10. Based on the land use table included in the PD, the acreage calculations are 
incorrect.  The table indicates that the acreage for the Lake Park development is 
76.8 acres.  The acreage listed throughout the PD and on the survey included as 



6 | P a g e  

 

part of the PD indicates 47.717 acres.  Staff has concerns that the density 
calculations and all land uses acreages may need to be revised. 

11. Clarification is required for the landscaping calculations in order to effectively 
implement the PD. 
 

Site History 

The subject property is currently undeveloped, and is located within the Single Family 
Estate (RE) zoning district.  The property was annexed into the City of Pearland in 
1998.  The proposed Lake Park PD was most recently presented via a joint workshop to 
the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council on February 17, 2014.  At that 
time, the development was proposed to include a mix of retail, office, parks and trails, a 
plaza/pavilions, lake detention and 417 rental dwelling units, which equates to a density 
of 19.3 dwelling units per acre (417 homes on 21.6 acres).  Concerns raised by the City 
Council and Planning and Zoning Commission during the February, 2014 workshop 
included the following. How the applicant addressed the concerns follows. 

1. Utilities to be individually metered, including water, sewer, electricity. 
All utilities will be individually metered or individually sub-metered. 
 

2. Codify amenities, including quantity and quantity.   
Amenities and design standards need further clarification and codification in 
order to implement the desires of the applicant, as represented in the 
illustrations, renderings, etc. 
 

3. Concerns were raised regarding the phasing plan with 238 residential dwelling 
units proposed in the first phase with no non-residential uses. 
The phasing plan for the current Lake Park PD includes three (3) phase identified 
as follows: 
 
Phase 1 Phase 2 Phase 3 

 +/- 238 
dwelling units 

 1 GB/OP 
use/structure 
near the sw 
corner of the 
site 

 All amenities, 
including 
parks/open 
space, lakes, 

 +/- 137 
dwelling units 

 1 GB/OP 
use/structure 
near the sw 
corner of the 
site 

 10.2 acres 

 GB/OP  
 4 GB/OP 

uses/structures 
located along 
the west, south 
and sw corner 
of the site 

 5.7 acres 



7 | P a g e  

 

trails, 
plaza/pavilion, 
fountains 

 29.5 acres 
 
 

4. Home ownership was a key component in the discussion.  The applicant was 
advised to ensure that homes could be purchased from the inception. 
The units are 100% rental.  The applicant indicated that the units would be 
constructed with the idea of rental in the future (individually metered and/or sub-
metered utilities).  However, the applicant indicated that the units must be rental 
to obtain funding for the development. 
 

5. The applicant was asked to specify any flexibility allowed and/or minor deviations 
permitted within the PD that can be approved by the Planning Director.   
The UDC allows for flexibility and minor deviations in the design plan to be 
approved by the Planning Director.  Unless otherwise specified in the ordinance 
for the PD, minor deviations, as specified in Section 2.2.2.6 of the UDC are 
defined.  Major deviations must be submitted to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and the City Council as an amendment to the PD. The applicant 
referenced the UDC. 
 

6. The applicant was advised to lower the density if the dwelling units were 
proposed to be rental units; and that the density could increase only if there is 
ownership potential. 
The density was decreased from 19.3 dwelling units/acre (417 dwelling units on 
21.6 acres) to 12.7 dwelling units per acre (375 dwelling units on 29.52 acres). 
 

7. Safety issues were raised regarding the pipeline easement.  The applicant was 
advised to indicate the proposed setback requirements and the type of pipeline. 
The applicant advised that the development will abide by all city ordinances 
regarding the subject matter.  A requirement of the design plan is to show 
existing and proposed public facilities and physical features of the site including 
easements.  Although not shown on the design plan to determine its impact on 
proposed improvements, a 40-foot Texas Eastern pipeline easement is shown on 
an attached survey identified as Exhibit T in the PD document. 
 

8. Concerns were raised regarding demographics and the impacts in which the 
proposed development would have on schools. 
The applicant advised that there were no objections filed by the schools, and that 
Lake Park’s market studies are strong. 



8 | P a g e  

 

 
9. Concerns were raised regarding the market study and if it was based on rental or 

home ownership opportunities.  
The applicant responded that a market study was completed and three (3) 
updates were completed for compliance. 
 

10. Caps were requested for various uses as well as clarification/corrections on 
density calculations. 
Based on the land use table provided by the applicant, and included within the 
PD, GB and OP uses (with the exception of those prohibited as illustrated in 
Section V. Authorized Uses of the PD) will represent 38.49% of the development.  
The residential aspect of the development will represent 61.76% (12.7 dwelling 
units/acre) of the development.  The remaining acreage will be developed with 
open space, easements and right-of-way dedication, detention/lakes; and 
parkland. 
The foot print/building pad of any multi-tenant building shall not exceed 35,000 
square feet.  The foot print/building pad for any single tenant building will not 
exceed 75,000 square feet. 
 

11. Discussion ensued regarding more open space/landscaping around the 
residential units, as small front and rear yards are desirable for some. 
The applicant indicated that the proposed residential product is different from the 
typical townhomes that are owned fee simple.  Backyards are not proposed for 
the residential units of the Lake Park PD.  The applicant has indicated that open 
space requirements within the PD exceed the requirements and various 
improvements will be credited towards open space due to cost. It appears as 
though the 5.2 acres of detention is included within the landscaping 
requirements.  Multi-family and townhome developments require 900 square feet 
of open space per dwelling unit.  Clarification is required. 
  
According to the Land Use Table of the PD and Exhibit K (Parkland and Open 
Space), 10.52 acres (22.01%) will be devoted to open space.  Open space is 
considered areas intended for use or enjoyment by people, and can be satisfied 
by a combination of public and private open space.  Various improvements 
proposed that would meet the definition of open space include the proposed trail 
that will link Pearland’s Clear Creek System to the retail, office and all other 
public areas of the development; exercise stations; benches; a 4,000 square foot 
pavilion, colonnade with splash pads, and the proposed public and private 
lakes/detention.   
 



9 | P a g e  

 

12. Payment in lieu of parkland dedication was not desirable. Discussion ensued 
regarding the development meeting all open space and parkland dedication 
regulations. 
Parkland dedication is based on the number of residential units.  The Lake Park 
PD proposes 375 units/12.7 dwelling units per acre.  Based on one (1) acre per 
every 50 units, 7.5 acres of parkland is required.  According to various exhibits 
within the PD, including the land use table and Exhibit K (Parkland and Open 
Space), 10.5 acres (22%) of the land will be devoted to parkland.  However, the 
PD allows for credit for park improvements, excess landscaping and lake 
amenities, fees in lieu of dedication in the event that the applicant is unable to 
satisfy some or all parkland dedication. 
 

13. The applicant/owner has interest in the adjoining 16 acres to the east.  Questions 
were raised about what is proposed for the 16 acres. 
The applicant indicated that a portion of the property will likely be used to fill the 
subject 47 acres, thereby bringing the property out of the 100 year floodplain.  
However, future details are not clear. 
 

14. Questions were raised regarding a HOA fee for those interested in purchasing a 
residential unit. 
The applicant has indicated that if it is possible to sell units, then there would be 
an HOA fee.  However, that the property will be managed by a professional 
management company regardless if owned or rented. 
 

15. The applicant was asked to include within the PD document regulations, that the 
smallest residential unit shall be 900 square feet. 
The applicant is unable to commit to a minimum unit size of 900 square feet. 
 
Additional staff concerns regarding the revised Lake Park PD are as follows: 

 Staff requests that design standards and amenities are codified to ensure 
the spirit and intent of the PD are implemented.  For example, the Design 
Plan shows landscaping throughout the development.  Staff requests 
clarification of the percentages of landscape areas for each residential 
unit.  Also various amenities are shown and listed included enhanced 
entry features, decorative pavers, enhanced lighting, colonnades/pavilion, 
etc.  Staff requests direction on how to implement these standards and 
amenities by codifying the regulations. 

 The ordinance for the PD requires a list of deviations from the standards in 
the base zoning district together with any standards in the ordinance to be 
varied.  Clarification is requested for the deviations listed on page 4 of the 
document. 



10 | P a g e  

 

 Re-wording to avoid confusion is required in various areas of the PD.  For 
example, V. (Authorized Uses) states that all uses permitted within the 
land use matrix shall be allowed. 

 Clarification is requested regarding the overlay zoning districts.  They 
appear to be GB, OP, MF and TH. 

 Section VII (Amenities) states the following amenities will be constructed 
in phases identified in phase 1.  Details regarding the phasing is 
requested. 

 Section VI (Authorized Uses) states that all zoning districts are the overlay 
zoning districts for which staff will review permits.  To avoid confusion in 
the future, clarification/revisions are required to the language within the 
PD. 

 Various exhibits are not included within the PD and various exhibits are 
not referenced in the PD.  All graphic depictions used to illustrate 
standards need to be codified to ensure that staff can implement the 
standards. 

 The Design Plan requires physical features of the site to be shown, 
including easements information to be included regarding easements, 
existing and proposed public facilities, parking ratios and any other 
pertinent information, such as the pipeline easement to ensure no adverse 
impact on any proposed improvements.  These features are not shown on 
the Design Plan. 

 A TIA is recommended to analyze the access points to ensure 
compatibility with the Engineering Design Criteria Manual.  Further, the 
TIA will analyze McHard Road to ensure an adequate level of service 
 

The site is surrounded by single family homes, undeveloped property and various non-
residential uses, including an industrial use; Grayco Welding Company, to the south.  
The below table identifies surrounding uses and zoning districts: 

 Zoning Land Use 

North Houston Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) Undeveloped 

South Cullen Mixed Use (C-MU) Single Family & Grayco 
Welding Company 

East Single Family Estate (RE)  Single Family Homes & 
Undeveloped Land 

West General Business (GB) 
Single Family Residential 3 (R3) 

Undeveloped 
 

 



11 | P a g e  

 

Conformance with the Thoroughfare Plan 

The subject property is located at the northeast corner of Cullen Parkway; a major 
thoroughfare of sufficient width, which requires 120 feet of right-of-way; and Brookside 
Road (McHard Road), a major thoroughfare-to be widened, which also requires 120 feet 
of right-of-way.  Brookside Road, at this location, appears to be approximately 55 feet in 
width, according to GIS data.  A TIA is recommended to be completed prior to the PD 
moving forward.  At a minimum, if a TIA is not completed prior to approval of the PD, 
access points (driveways) are to be considered conceptual.  The proposed driveways 
do not appear to meet the separation requirements.  Furthermore, the TIA will analyze 
McHard Road to determine if it has capacity to provide an adequate level of service or if 
widening is required to serve the development.  

Conformance with the Unified Development Code 

The site is currently undeveloped.  As part of the Lake Park PD, the applicant proposes 
an overlay district of GB and OP for the non-residential uses and MF and TH for the 
residential component of the development.  Clarification is needed from the applicant 
regarding the lot sizes, parking ratios, etc., to ensure that the spirit and intent of the PD 
is implemented. 

Platting Status 

The property is not platted.  Platting of the site will be required prior to any development 
or the issuance of building permits.  A TIA is required as part of this development.  
Based on the results of the TIA, adjustments may be required to be made to the site 
which may require an amendment to the PD. 

Availability of Utilities 

According to GIS data, the subject property has access to a 12-inch water line on the 
west side of Cullen Parkway.  Additionally, the city’s water line plans show a 20-foot 
acquisition along the north line of the existing right-of-way for Brookside Road (future 
Mchard Road).   Sanitary sewer services are not available to the site.  The applicant 
proposes to force main to the nearest plant (Southdown/Country Place) off of McHard 
Road, approximately 5/10 of a mile west of the subject property. 

Impact on Existing and Future Development 

The site is surrounded by residential subdivisions to the south, east and west, as well as 
undeveloped land to the west, south and north.  Through the PD process, the applicant 
proposes to restrict various uses which may be perceived as incompatible (See Exhibit 
F of the PD) with the existing neighborhoods.  Due to residential adjacency screening 
requirements and various other safeguards, such as enhanced landscaping, the 



12 | P a g e  

 

proposed PD will enhance the area and will be in accordance with other commercial 
developments along Pearland Parkway. 

Additional Comments 

The request has been reviewed by the City’s Development Review Committee (DRC), 
and there were no additional comments from other departments at the time of this 
report, in addition to the concerns highlighted in this report. 

Public Notification 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, the owner 
of the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under 
consideration for the zone change.  Additionally, a legal notice of the public hearing was 
published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the property by 
the applicant.   

Opposition to or Support of Proposed Request 

As of the date of this writing, staff has not received any comments either in opposition to 
or in support of the proposed change in zoning request.   

Recommendation 

Contingent upon the above staff concerns being addressed, staff recommends approval 
of the Lake Park PD, for the following reasons: 

 The proposed commercial uses are in conformance with the future land use 
designation of Major Retail Nodes.  The aforementioned future land use 
designation is generally located within the southwest corner of the site, where the 
non-residential uses are generally proposed.  A portion of the site along the north 
property line along the creek is located within the Parks future land use 
designation.  Because the applicant proposes a trail and parkland dedication in 
the general vicinity, the use meets the future land use designation in this location.  
The remainder of the site is located within the Low Density Residential future 
land use designation.  High density residential uses are proposed within this area 
and do not meet the future land use designation.  If the PD is approved staff will 
analyze the development for an appropriate future land use designation and 
include it in the annual review of the future land use element of the 
comprehensive plan.  

 The PD, as shown will provide a diverse housing opportunity which will include a 
host of amenities to service the residents and citizens of Pearland. 

 



KILNAR

HAWK RD

CULLEN PKWY

BROOKSIDE RDMCHARD RD
ADAMO LN

CULLEN BLVD

HILLHOUSE RD

8211

1454

1258

1454

1506

8211

1865

1342

1738

8033

17501855

1841

1837

1865

8210

633

505

8033

1310

89178933

1318

1725

1813

1749
1738

O/O

1230

1714

8518

1738

1902

8434

8301

7938
8210

8030

81068302
7922

8210

1310

80268106

1830

1834

8001

8126

1210

8802

8026

41158725

8034

8801

830284028422

8709

8705

8013

8018

8518

8801

7917

647

8922

1232

8614
1934

1849

1905

8618
8805

8802

8034
8034

8033

8034

80018001 8001
7921

7921

4826
4826

8002
1806

1234

8026

14541454

8030

1542

919
911
903

1610

823
20211

AERIAL MAP

2014-10Z
PEARLAND'S
LAKE PARK PD

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 703 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT



RER-3

SR-12C-MU

GB
R-1

KILNAR

HAWK RD

CULLEN PKWY

BROOKSIDE RDMCHARD RD
ADAMO LN

CULLEN BLVD

HILLHOUSE RD

8211

1454

1258

1454

1506

8211

1865

1342

1738

8033

17501855

1841

1837

1865

8210

633

505

8033

1310

89178933

1318

1725

1813

1749
1738

O/O

1230

1714

8518

1738

1902

8434

8301

7938
8210

8030

81068302
7922

8210

1310

80268106

1830

1834

8001

8126

1210

8802

41158725

8034

8801

830284028422

8709

8705

8013

8018

8518

8801

7917

8026

647

8922

1232

8614
1934

1849

1905

8618
8805

8802

8034
8034

8033

8034

80018001 8001
7921

7921

4826
4826

8002
1806

1234

14541454

1542

919
911
903

1610

823
20211

ZONING MAP

2014-10Z
PEARLAND'S
LAKE PARK PD

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 703 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT



Parks

D-10,000sf Lots (Suburban Res)

Major NodesLow Density Residential

Business Commercial

Cullen Mixed Use District

Public / Semi-Public

Medium Density Residential

KILNAR

HAWK RD

CU
LL

EN
 PK

WY

BROOKSIDE RD
ADAMO LN

CULLEN BLVD

HILLHOUSE RD

8211

1454

1258

1454

1506

8211

1865

1342

1738

8033

17501855

1841

1837

1865

8210

633

505

8033

1310

89178933

1318

1725

1813

1749
1738

O/O

1230

1714

8518

1738

1902

8434

8301

7938
8210

8030

81068302
7922

8210

1310

80268106

1830

1834

8001

8126

1210

8026

41158725

8034

8801

830284028422

87098705

8013

8018

85188802

8801

7917

1232

8614
1934

1849

86188805

8034
8034

8033

8034

80018001 8001
7921

7921

4826
4826

8002
1806

1234

8026

14541454

8030

1542

1610

20211

FLUP MAP

2014-10Z
PEARLAND'S
LAKE PARK PD

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 703 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT



KILNAR

HAWK RD

CULLEN PKWY

BROOKSIDE RDMCHARD RD
ADAMO LN

CULLEN BLVD

HILLHOUSE RD

8211

1454

1258

1454

1506

8211

1865

1342

1738

8033

17501855

1841

1837

1865

8210

633

505

8033

1310

89178933

1318

1725

1813

1749
1738

O/O

1230

1714

8518

1738

1902

8434

8301

7938
8210

8030

81068302
7922

8210

1310

80268106

1830

1834

8001

8126

1210

8802

8026

41158725

8034

8801

830284028422

8709

8705

8013

8018

8518

8801

7917

647

8922

1232

8614
1934

1849

1905

8618
8805

8802

8034
8034

8033

8034

80018001 8001
7921

7921

4826
4826

8002
1806

1234

8026

14541454

8030

1542

919
911
903

1610

823
20211

NOTIFICATION MAP

2014-10Z
PEARLAND'S
LAKE PARK PD

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 703 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT



ZONE CHANGE 10Z
NOTIFICATION LIST

NAME
GARNER ROBERT D
CHILDERS SHARON
LOZANO ARMANDO & CHRISTINA
BRANTLEY INVESTMENT LLC
C&F PROPERTIES LP
HARRIS SHIRLEY COOPER
STONE EARL G ESTATE
FYCW LTD
LENNAR HOMES OF TEXAS SALES & MARKETING LTD DBA LENNAR HOMES OF TEXAS INC
HARRIS COUNTY
CHRISTOPH PROPERTIES INC
FYCW, LTD. C/O JAMES JOHNSON
LAKE PARK PEARLAND, LTD. C/O JAMES JOHNSON



ADDRESS SUITE CITY STATE ZIP
8302 BROOKSIDE RD PEARLAND TX 77581
3109 WILD TURKEY LN PEARLAND TX 77581
6213 RAVENWOOD DR PEARLAND TX 77584
2218 N SAN ANTONIO ST PEARLAND TX 77581
5826 HIGH STAR DR HOUSTON TX 77081
8301 BROOKSIDE RD PEARLAND TX 77581
1938 GARDEN RD TRLR 98 PEARLAND TX 77581
104 SOUTHERN PINES DR LAFAYETTE LA 70508
550 GREENS PKWY STE 200 HOUSTON TX 77067
PO BOX 1525 HOUSTON TX 77251-1525
1406 1/2 W PARKWOOD AVE FRIENDSWOOD TX 77546-5704
106 RIVERFRONT LN HOUSTON TX 70508
5410 PIPING ROCK LN HOUSTON TX 77056







































































































































Lake Park Pearland, Ltd. 
 

September, 2014 

Revised Lake Park Planned Development



Table of Contents: 

Section I………………………………………………………Area Map 

Section II……………………………………………………...PD Guidelines and Regulations 

Section III…………………………………………………….. Land Plans and 
        Phasing Plan 

1. Exhibit “B” – Overall Design Plan
2. Exhibit “C” – Phase1 Land Plan
3. Exhibit “D” – Phase 2 Land Plan
4. Exhibit “E” – Phase 3 Land Plan

 Section IV…………………………………………………….. Architectural Renderings 
        Elevations 

1. Exhibit “F” – Aerial Perspective
2. Exhibit “G-1” – Entry at Cullen Rd.
3. Exhibit “G-2” – Entrance at Brookside/McHard Rd.
4. Exhibit “G” – Perspective – Colonnade
5. Exhibit “H” – Perspective – Townhomes Lake View
6. Exhibit “I” – Perspective – Townhomes From Street
7. Exhibit “J” – Perspective – Retail
8. Exhibit “P” – Building Type II Front Elevation
9. Exhibit “O” – Building Type I Front/Rear Elevation
10. Plaza Elevation
11. Exhibit “Q” – Building A, B
12. Exhibit “R” – Building C, D
13. Exhibit “S” – Building E

Section V………………………………………………………Parkland and Open Space 

1. Parkland and Open Space Exhibit

Section VI……………………………………………………...Ingress/Egress and 
          Fence Plan 

1. Exhibit “M” – Monument Exhibit
2. Exhibit “N” – Entrance Cross Section
3. Exhibit “L” – Fence Exhibit

Section VII……………………………………………………...Survey 
1. Survey

Section VIII……………………………………………………..Exercise Brochure 



!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

Section!I!



E
X

H
IB

IT
 A



!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

Section!II!



! 1!

Lake Park 

I.##Introduction#to#Lake Park:"

Lake Park is"a"+/("47.5(acre"planned"development"consisting"of"office,"retail,"restaurant"and"various"
general"business"uses"as"well"as"one,"two,"and"three"story"rental"townhomes.""

Conceived"as"a"result"of"Pearland’s"continued"commercial"growth"driven"by"an"influx"of"professional"
businesses"including"hospitals,"medical"offices,"and"surgery"centers,"Lake Park will"be"the"first"mixed"
use"residential"community"of"it’s"kind"for"those"desiring"a"maintenance"free,"secure"community.""

Lake Park’s"list"of"amenities"will"include:""

1.""Pearland’s"Clear"Creek"Trail"System,"constructed"by"the"developer"along"the"northern"border"of"
the"development,"including"a"covered"exercise"station,"benches,"decorative"lighting"informational"
signage"about"the"City’s"history,"and"drinking"fountains,"all"of"which"will"be"consistent"with"the"city’s"
designs"and"located"in"accordance"with"the"City"of"Pearland’s"Parks"and"Recreation"Master"Plan"and"
approval"of"the"parks"and"planning"directors."""

Two"lakes"will"be"constructed"within"the"development.""One"lake"shall"be"private,"and"for"the"
exclusive"use"of"residents"within"the"town(home"community.""The"second"lake"shall"be"open"to"the"
public"and"include"a"+/("4,000"sq."ft."pavilion,"a"colonnade"with"splash"pad,"as"well"as"trails"linking"all"
public"areas"to"the"Clear"Creek"trail"system,"retail,"office,"and"all"other"public"areas.""

The"town(home"community"will"be"constructed"in"two"phases.""Phase"one"will"consist"of"238"units"
including"a"resident’s"clubhouse"with"conference"room/business"center,"coffee"bar,"lounge"and"lake"
front"community"pool.""Phase"2"will"consist"of"an"additional"137"units."

II.##Location#and#Use:##

Lake Park"is"located"at"the"northeast"corner"of"the"intersection"at"Cullen"Blvd."and"McHard"Rd."(See"
Exhibit"“A”)"The"property"immediately"surrounding"Lake Park"consists"of"a"broad"mix"of"uses,"including"
8(10"rural"homes"appearing"to"have"been"built"in"the"60’s(70’s"to"the"east,"light"industrial"
immediately"adjacent"to"the"south,"the"City"of"Pearland’s"dry"detention"facility"directly"across"Cullen"
to"the"West,"and"a"boat"repair"shop"immediately"to"south.""Both"Cullen"Blvd."and"McHard"Rd."are"
identified"in"the"comprehensive"plan"as"major"thoroughfares"and"provide"direct"access"to"S.H."288.""
The"intersection"is"approximately"2.1"miles"to"SH"288"and"1"mile"north"to"Beltway"8."As"a"result"of"the"
heavy"use"of"each"road,"and"in"an"attempt"to"alleviate"traffic"congestion"along"Broadway/FM"518,"
Cullen"Blvd."has"been"widened"to"4"lanes,"and"McHard"Rd."has"recently"been"opened"to"Cullen"Blvd.""

a)"The"property’s"base"zoning"district"is"currently"RE,"with"the"City"of"Pearland’s"Future"Land"Use"Plan"
indicating"a"General"Business"(GB)"retail"node"of"50"acres."#The"subject"property"also"lies"within"a"
Corridor"Overlay"District,"of"which"all"ordinances"and"standards"set"forth"in"the"City"of"Pearland’s"UDC"
therein"shall"be"met."

III.#Ideals,#Goals,#and#Objectives:"

In"accordance"with#Section#2.2.2.4,#Application#Requirements,#The"following"excerpts"from"section#
2.2.2.1#(a)#and#(b),#of"the"City"of"Pearland’s"adopted"UDC,"provides"a"description"of"how"a"proposed"
Planned"Development"fulfills"the"ideals,"goals,"objectives,"and/or"concepts"of"the"City’s"adopted"
comprehensive"plan"or"any"other"formally"adopted"City"planning"document,"such"as"the"parks"plan"or"
public"facility"plan.""

#



! 2!

Section#2.2.2.1(a)#

Purpose.###“The"purpose"of"an"overlay"planned"development"zoning"district"("PD"District")"is"to"

provide"for"the"development"of"land"as"an"integral"unit"for"single"or"mixed"use"in"accordance"with"a"

PD"Design"Plan"that"may"include"uses,"regulations"and"other"requirements"that"vary"from"the"

provisions"of"other"zoning"districts"and"encourage"flexible"and"creative"planning,"to"ensure"the"

compatibility"of"land"uses,"to"allow"for"the"adjustment"of"changing"demands"to"meet"the"current"

needs"of"the"community,"and"to"result"in"a"higher"quality"development"for"the"community"than"would"

result"from"the"use"of"conventional"zoning"districts.”#

Section#2.2.2.1#(b)##

Applicability:#A"PD"district"may"only"be"established"in"one"of"the"following"circumstances:"

1)"The"land"is"located"in"close"proximity"to"established"residential"neighborhoods"where"conventional"

zoning"classifications"may"not"adequately"address"neighborhood"concerns"regarding"the"quality"or"

compatibility"of"the"adjacent"development,"and"where"it"may"be"desirable"to"the"neighborhood,"the"

developer"or"the"City"to"develop"and"implement"mutually(agreed,"enforceable"development"

standards…"

5)"The"land"serves"as"transition"between"different"and"seemingly"incompatible"land"uses…"

6)"The"land"is"proposed"for"development"as"a"major"office,"retail,"commercial"or"industrial"

employment"center,"and"special"design"standards"may"be"warranted…""

With"the"previous"3"standards"met,"it"is"believed"the"proposed"PD"would"be"appropriate."

IV.##Open#Space:"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""

All"of"the"open"space"requirements"outlined"in"Section#2.2.2.3###(c)(1)#of"the"City"of"Pearland’s"
adopted"UDC#shall"be"met"or"exceeded.""(See"Exhibit"“K”"Parkland"and"Open"Space)#

Parkland#Requirements:##

Parkland"requirements"will"be"met"implementing"the"formula"outlined"in"Chapter"3,"Section"3.2.10.1"

In"the"event"the"applicant"is"unable"to"satisfy"all"parkland"dedication"requirements"by"way"of"land"

dedication,"credit"for"park"improvements,"excess"landscaping"and"lake"amenities,"fees"in"lieu"of"said"

dedications"and"excess"improvements"shall"be"paid"to"the"city’s"park"fund"for"future"use"in"the"

appropriate"zone.""

Walkways,#Sidewalks#and#Trails:#

All"walkways"and"sidewalks"will"be"designed"and"constructed"as"required"in"Pearland’s"UDC,"Section"

3.2.11.1."Unless"otherwise"stated"in"in"Section"2.4.5.1,"Corridor"Overlay"District.""Trails"along"“The"

Clear"Creek"Trail"System”"will"be"no"less"than"10"feet"in"width"or"as"required"by"the"parks"master"plan,"

adjacent"to"the"boundaries"of"Lake Park."

#

#

#

#



! 3!

#

V.##Authorized#Uses:##Upon"adoption"of"the"Lake"Park"PD"Overlay"District,"the"following"uses"are"
authorized"in"the"locations"identified"in"exhibits"“B”,"“C”,"“D”"and"“E”."""All"ordinances"of"the"following"
zoning"districts,"in"the"City"of"Pearland’s"UDC"unless"otherwise"stated"in"this"document,"will"be"
applicable."""

1)""" TH"("Town(Homes""

2)" GB"("General"Business""

3)" O/P"("Office/Professional""

"

Unauthorized#Uses:"

1) Office,"Parole(Probation,"Bail"Bonds"

2) Check"Cashing"Service"

3) Laundromat"(Self(Service"Laundry)"

4) Rehabilitation"Care"Facility"(Halfway"House)"

5) Studio(Tattoo"or"Body"Piercing"

6) Antique"Shop"with"Outside"Storage"

7) Astrology,"Hypnotist"or"Psychic"Arts""

8) Bakery"(Wholesale)"

10)"Garage"and/or"Yard"Sales"

11)"Market"–"Open"Air"(i.e.,"Flea"Market)"

12)"Outside"Display"

13)"Auction"House"

14)"Fraternity"or"Sorority"House"

15)"Mortuary/Cemetery"(Including"Mausoleum/Crematorium)"

16)"Bus"Station""

17)"Animal"Processing"

All"zoning"standards"not"expressly"set"forth"for"the"district"in"the"adopting"ordinance"shall"be"as"
provided"in"the"base"zoning"district(s),"and"that"any"standard"in"this"ordinance"that"has"not"been"
expressly"varied"in"the"adopting"ordinance"shall"be"applicable"to"subsequent"development"permits"for"
land"within"the"PD"district."



! 4!

#

VI.##Deviations:##The#following#is#a#list#of#deviations#from#the#zoning#overlays.#

TH"–"Lake"Park’s"Town"Home"residential"district"shall"abide"the"TH"Zoning"requirements"outlined"in"
Section"2.4.2.9"except"as"follows:"

1."Section#2.4.2.9#(c)#Area#Regulations.##

(1)#Size#of#Lots:#

" a."Minimum"Lot"Area"–"is"hereby"deleted.""Lake"Park"Town(Homes"are"rental"units"with"
future"potential"to"sell.""However,"there"shall"be"no"fee"ownership"of"any"exterior"grounds.""

" b."Minimum"Lot"Width"("is"hereby"deleted.""Lake"Park"Town(Homes"as"rental"will"have"no"
platted"lots.""However,"if"and"when"the"time"arises"for"the"individual"sale"of"each"unit"takes"place"a"
MAP"will"be"prepared"to"define"the"interior"area"owned"fee"simple"by"the"homeowner."

" "c.""Minimum"Lot"Depth"("hereby"deleted.""Lake"Park"Town(Homes"as"rental"will"have"no"
platted"lots.""However,"if"and"when"the"time"arises"for"the"individual"sale"of"each"unit"takes"place"a"
MAP"will"be"prepared"to"define"the"interior"area"owned"fee"simple"by"the"homeowner."

" d."Maximum"project"coverage"–"Hereby"amended"to"read"as"follows:""Lot"coverage"shall"be"
consistent"with"that"identified"in"Exhibit"“B”,"Overall"Design"Plan."

" e."Permitted"Length"for"Attached"Town"Homes"Units"–"Hereby"amended"to"read"as"follows:""
A"complex"of"attached"town"home"dwelling"units"shall"have"a"minimum"length"of"three"(3)"dwelling"
units,"and"shall"not"exceed"two"hundred"and"twenty"feet"(220’)"in"length"or"the"width"of"(8)"dwelling"
units,"whichever"is"less."

" f."Maximum"Gross"Site"Area"–"No"deviation"

2.#Size#of#Yards:#

" a.""Minimum"Front"Yard"("Hereby"amended"to"read"as"follows:""Lake"Park"Town(Homes"as"
rental"will"have"no"platted"lots.""However,"all"units"will"maintain"a"minimum"twenty(foot"(20’)"set"
back"from"the"centerline"of"the"parallel"sidewalk."

" b.""Minimum"Building"Separation"("No"deviation"

c.""Corner"Lot"–"Amended"to"read"as"follows:""A"minimum"fifteen"feet"(15’)"setback"adjacent"
to"a"street."

" d.""Minimum"Rear"Yard"–"N/A"

" e.""Height"Restrictions"–"No"building"shall"exceed"thirty(seven"feet"(37’)"

3.#Parking:#

# a.""Parking"ratio"1.8:1""" Total"Spaces"–"692"

"

#



! 5!

4.##GB:"

" " No"open"space"requirements."

All"other"regulations"and"guidelines"in"the"GB"Zoning"district"described"in"the"City"of"Pearland’s"UDC"
are"applicable."

5.##OP"–""

" " No"open"space"requirements."

All"other"regulations"and"guidelines"in"the"OP"Zoning"district"described"in"the"City"of"Pearland’s"UDC"
are"applicable."

All#regulations#not#described#in#this#Section#VI,#Deviations,#shall#comply#and#be#in#full#force#and#
effect#with#Section#2.4.2.9#of#the#City#of#Pearland’s#UDC.#

"

VII.##Development#Standards:#

Upon"adoption"of"the"Lake"Park"PD"Overlay"District,"the"following"development"standards"shall"be"
adhered"to."Minor"deviations"from"the"approved"design"plan"shall"be"approved"in"accordance"with"
Section#2.2.2.6#Subsequent#Development#Applications.#If"not"expressly"Identified"in"this"document"
the"city’s"UDC"provides"the"requirement"necessary"to"maintain"quality"development.#Additionally,"as"
the"Lake"Park"PD"lies"within"a"Corridor#Overlay#District,#all"standards"set"forth"therein"shall"be"met.#

1) All"building"facades"except"for"areas"of"glass"window"and"doors"will"be"constructed"of"100%"
masonry"as"defined"in"the"City"of"Pearland’s"UDC"Section#2.6.2.1#(c)#(1)#Materials#Permitted.##
All"facades"shall"be"constructed"with"no"less"than"65%"brick.#

2) Permitted"trim"materials"are"as"described"in"Section#2.6.2.1##(c)#(3)#

3) For"the"purpose"of"sustainability"and"erosion"control"all"residential"buildings"shall"be"
constructed"with"two(foot"(2’)"eaves.""(See"Exhibit"“O”)#

4) The"foot"print/building"pad"of"multi(tenant"buildings"shall"not"exceed"thirty(five"thousand"
(35,000)"square"feet.#

5) The"foot"print/building"pad"of"any"single(tenant"building"shall"not"exceed"75,000"square"feet.#

6)" "All"building"designs"within"the"Lake"Park"PD"will"be"consistent"with"the"architectural"
renderings"depicted"in"Exhibits"“H”,"“I”,"&"“J”"#

7)" All"screening"requirements"for"parking"will"be"in"accordance"with"the"applicable"Corridor"
Overlay"District."#

8)""Landscaped"medians"will"be"constructed"wherever"nose(to(nose"parking"exists"in"GB"and/or"
OP"districts.""Medians"will"be"no"less"than"seventy(two"inches"(72”)"in"width."(See"Exhibit"“A”)#

9)" Parking"medians"visible"to"Cullen"Blvd."or"McHard"Road"shall"have"shrubs"planted"and"
maintained"at"a"height"of"no"more"than"thirty(six"inches"(36”)"and"no"less"than"eighteen"
inches"(18”)"as"measured"from"the"surrounding"soil"line."#



! 6!

10)" A"thirty(five"(35’)"foot"wide"landscape"buffer"shall"be"provided"along"the"eastern"border"of"
property.""

11)"Park"land"Landscape"plan"("A"landscape"plan"will"be"designed"to"exceed"the"minimum"
requirements"describes"in"the"UDC"by"15%.""Extra"credit"awarded"toward"parkland"dedication"
requirements"shall"be"at"the"discretion"of"the"Parks"Director."

"

12)"GB/OP"Landscape"plan"("A"landscape"plan"will"be"designed"to"meet"the"requirements"outlined"
in"the"City"of"Pearland’s"UDC."

13)"Lake"Park"lies"within"a"Corridor"Overlay"District"and"shall"comply"with"all"guidelines"and"
requirements"defined"in"the"City"of"Pearland’s"UDC."

14)"All"utilities"will"be"individually"metered"or"sub(metered."

15)"The"40"ft."Texas"Eastern"pipeline"easement"and"the"55"ft."Kinder(Morgan"easement"will"be"
doubled"in"width,"allowing"no"construction"within"those"borders."

16)"All"open"space"requirements"will"be"met."

"

16)"Landscaping"–"A"landscape"plan"will"be"designed"to"exceed"the"minimum"requirements"set""""""
forth"in"the"MF"designation"of"the"City"of"Pearland’s"UDC"by"a"minimum"of"15%.""The"definition"“to"
exceed"by"15%”"refers"to"a"combination"in"whole"or"part"of"the"following:"

" 1.""Number"of"plantings"

" 2.""Minimum"caliper"inches"of"trees"

" 3.""Hardscape"&"gathering"areas"

" 4.""Screening"

"

*"All"zoning"standards"not"expressly"set"forth"for"the"district"in"the"adopting"ordinance"shall"be"as"
provided"for"in"the"base"zoning"district(s),"and"that"any"standard"in"this"ordinance"that"has"not"been"
expressly"varied"in"the"adopting"ordinance"shall"be"applicable"to"subsequent"development"permits"for"
land"within"the"PD"district."

"

VIII.##Amenities:"

All"amenities"for"the"Lake"Park"PD"will"be"constructed"in"phases"phase"I."(See"Section"III"Exhibit"“C”"
Lake"Park"Phase"I"Land"Plan…4a,"4b,"4c,"5a,"5b,"Landscape"seating"and"Fountains)"The"term"“Amenity”"
is"defined"in"Chapter"5"of"the"city’s"UDC.""

1)"" " Lakes:"Two"lakes"–"A"private"resident’s"lake,"+/("2.4"acres,"and/or"sized"to"meet"detention"
requirements.""A"Public"Lake,"+/("2.8"acres,"and/or"sized"to"meet"detention"requirements."
(See"Section"III,"Exhibit"“B”)"""



! 7!

2)"" Pavilion"("Developer"will"construct"a""+/("4,000"sq."foot"open(air"pavilion."(See"Section"III,"
Exhibits"“C”)"Identified"as"4b."

3)" Colonnade"–"A"Colonnade"and"splash"as"pad"depicted"in"Section"IV,"Exhibit"“G”"will"be"
constructed.""The"elevations"for"the"Colonnade"and"splash"are"described"Section"IV,"the"
“Plaza"Elevation”"will"be"constructed.""The"locations"of"the"subject"amenities"are"identified"in"
Section"III,"Exhibit"“C”,"and"4A."""

4)" Fountains"("Location"of"fountains"and"landscaped"seating"areas"are"identified"in"Section"III,"
Exhibit"“B”.""

5)" Exercise"station"–"A"covered"outdoor"exercise"station"will"be"located"along"the"Clear"Creek"
Trail"System"for"public"use."The"exercise"station"will"consist"of"no"less"than"eight"(8)"pieces"of"
equipment"selected"by"the"developer"from"the"exercise"brochure.""Developer"shall"receive"
parkland"credits"in"accordance"with"regulations"set"forth"by"the"Parks"and"Recreation"Dept."
(See"attached"exercise"brochure)" " "

6)" Trail"Head"("Developer"will"construct"a"trailhead"with"no"less"than"6"parking"spaces.""(See"
Exhibit"“K”)""

7)" Clear"Creek"Trail"System"("Developer"shall"construct"a"portion"of"the"Clear"Creek"Trail"System,"
that"which"is"adjacent"to"the"Lake"Park"boundaries"and"in"accordance"with"the"Parks"and"
Recreation"Master(Plan.""The"subject"portion"of"this"trail"will"include"benches,"water"
fountains,"landscaping"and"lighting"approved"by"both"the"Director"of"Parks"and"Recreation"
and"the"Director"of"Community"Development"in"accordance"with"the"Parks"Department’s"
master"plan."(See"Section"III,"Exhibit"“B”)"

""

"""""""""#

VIII.#Residential#Parking:#

Residential"parking"ratios"are"as"follow"and"based"upon"the"following"formula"and"included"in"Section"
III,"Exhibit"“B”"

" A)"Surface"Parking"(136"open"spaces""

" B)"Attached"Garage"Parking"(278"spaces"""

" C)"Driveway"Parking"("278"spaces*"

" Total#Residential#Spaces#[#692##

# Total#spaces#per#unit#[#1.8#(see"Exhibit"“B”)"

*Driveway"spaces"are"defined"as"those"spaces"in"front"of"the"garage"(the"driveway)"of"residences"with"attached"
garages.""Driveway"spaces"will"be"no"smaller"in"width"than"the"adjacent"garage,"and"not"less"than"18"feet"in"
length"to"serve"as"guest"parking"or"additional"vehicles.""A"2(car"garage"will"provide"2"“driveway"spaces”;"a"1(car"
garage"will"provide"1"driveway"space."""""

#

#



! 8!

IX.##GB/OP#[#Parking,#Screening,#Lighting,##

1."GB/OP"Parking"–"Parking"guidelines,"ratios,"and"all"other"requirements"described"in"the"City"of"

Pearland’s"UDC"shall"be"strictly"adhered"to."

2."Screening"–"All"screening"requirements"to"be"governed"by"regulations"described"in"the"applicable"

Corridor"Overly"District."

3."""Lighting"–"All"GB/OP"lighting"shall"comply"in"all"manners"and"respects"with"the"City"of"Pearland’s"

UDC.""Any"decorative"lighting"shall"comply"with"and"be"consistent"with"those"designs,"heights"and"

locations"described"in"the"Parks"Department’s"Master"Plan,"and"subject"to"approval"by"the"Parks"

Director"and"Director"of"Community"Development."

#

Entrance#Signage#/#Cross[Section,#and#Fencing"

1."""Signage"–"All"entry"signage"shall"be"in"strict"compliance"with"those"designs"and"elevations"

identified"in"Exhibit"“M”"

2.""Entrance"cross(section"("See"Exhibit"“N”"

3."Fencing"–"Access"gates"shall"be"constructed"of"brick"and/or"masonry,"and/or"wrought"iron."

Perimeter"fencing"shall"be"constructed"of"wrought"iron."The"location"of"all"fencing,"gates"and"walls,"

along"with"construction"materials"to"be"used"and"elevations/designs"are"identified"in"Exhibit"“L”.""

*To#the#extent#that#any#development#standards#listed#within#the#Lake#Park#PD#conflict#with#those#
described#in#the#applicable#Corridor#Overlay#District,#(COD)#all#standards#in#the#COD#shall#be#
deemed#the#governing#standards#for#the#Lake#Park#PD.#

X.##Residential#Densities:##

Maximum"residential"density"shall"not"exceed"375"units."

Phase"1:""238"units"""

Phase"2:""137"units"

"

XI.##GB#and#O/P#overall#square#footage:##

The"combined"total"net"rentable"area"for"GB"and"O/P"shall"not"exceed"one"hundred"twenty"five"

thousand"square"feet."(125,000)"#

XII.##Design#Standards:#

All"design"standards"depicted"in"Section"IV,"architectural"renderings,"and"elevations"will"be"adhered"

to.""(See"Exhibits"H,"I,"J,"P,"and"O)"

XIII.##EXCEPT#AS#OTHERWISE#PROVIDE#FOR#IN#THIS#PD#DOCUMENT,#ALL#ORDINANCES,#CONDITIONS,#
AND#REQUIREMENTS#OF#THE#CITY#OF#PEARLAND’S#UDC,#AND#LAND#USE#PLAN,#SHALL#HEREBY#BE#
DEEMED#APPLICABLE#IN#ALL#MANNERS#AND#RESPECTS.#



Land%Use%Table:

Use Acres Percentage Density/units%per%acre

Single%Family < < <

Town%Homes 29.5 61.72% 12.7

General%Business/Office 18 37.66%
<

Totals 47.50 100%
<

Open%Space 10.52 22%
<

Parkland 10.56 22%
<

(Above%Calculations%based%upon%Exhibit%"K")

Internal%Road%Circulation 8.22 17%
<

Easments%/%R.O.W. 2.6 5% <

Total 31.9 67% <

8



!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

Section!III!



55
’ K

IN
D

ER
 M

O
RG

AN
G

AS
 P

IP
EL

IN
E 

EA
SE

M
EN

T

40
’ T

EX
AS

 E
AS

TE
RN

TR
AN

SM
IS

SI
O

N
 E

AS
EM

EN
T



P
H

A
S

E
 I
 L

A
N

D
 P

L
A

N

E
x
h
ib

it
 C

4B 4A

4C

5

5



E
x
h
ib

it
 D

P
H

A
S

E
 I
I 
L
A

N
D

 P
L
A

N



P
H

A
S

E
 I
II
 L

A
N

D
 P

L
A

N

E
x
h
ib

it
 E



!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

Section!IV!



E
x
h
ib

it
 F



E
x
h
ib

it
 G

 -
 1



E
x
h
ib

it
 G

-
2

E
n
t
r
a

n
c
e

 a
t
 B

r
o

o
k
s
id

e
/M

c
H

a
r
d

 R
d

.



E
x
h
ib

it
 G



E
x
h
ib

it
 H



E
x
h
ib

it
 I



E
x
h
ib

it
 J



!"#$%&'()
*&++%,-"./01#20%3450657%86/#5%&&+
926"#207%:5;-"%%))++)
)&<$((=$&))))&<$*(+$))>>%?-;
@@@$8AB3CD./#5D#"$D2E

EX
H

IB
IT

 O

��
��
��
��

.CMG�2CTM

2GCTNCPF��6GZCU

5C
PH
QT
F�
2�
�5
VG
KP
DG
TI

#
+#



!"#$%&'()
*&++%,-"./01#20%3450657%86/#5%&&+
926"#207%:5;-"%%))++)
)&<$((=$&))))&<$*(+$))>>%?-;
@@@$8AB3CD./#5D#"$D2E

EX
H

IB
IT

 P

��
��
��
��

.CMG�2CTM

2GCTNCPF��6GZCU

5C
PH
QT
F�
2�
�5
VG
KP
DG
TI

#
+#



E
X

H
IB

IT
 Q



E
X

H
IB

IT
 R



E
X

H
IB

IT
 S



Est. 1957
8100 Washington Avenue, Suite 110
Houston, Texas  77007
713.552.1777713.850.7744 Fax
www.SDCArchitects.com

A
6.

03



























!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

Section!V!



Est. 1957
8100 Washington Avenue, Suite 110
Houston, Texas  77007
713.552.1777713.850.7744 Fax
www.SDCArchitects.com

E
X

H
IB

IT
 K

��
��
��
��

%WNNGP�4QCF�CV�/E*CTF

2GCTNCPF��6GZCU

5C
PH
QT
F�
2�
�5
VG
KP
DG
TI

#
+#



!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

Section!VI!





Co
py
rig
ht
  (c
)  2
00
6,
  S
te
in
be
rg
  D
es
ig
n  
Co
lla
bo
ra
tiv
e,
  L
LP
.

L
A

K
E

 P
A

R
K

M
o

n
u
m

e
n
t 

E
x
h
ib

it
E

X
H

IB
IT

 M

P
R

O
J
E

C
T
 #

: 
1

1
-
0

4
3

 



E
X

H
IB

IT
 N



!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

Section!VII!



E
X

H
IB

IT
 T



!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

Section!VIII!



O u t d O O r  F i t n e s s



2

norwell Form Function®�LV�RXWGRRU�ÀWQHVV�HTXLSPHQW��

GHVLJQHG�IRU�SHRSOH�RI�DQ\�DJH�WR�HQMR\«�LQ�WKH�SDUN��

DW�ZRUN��LQ�WKH�VFKRRO\DUG��LQ�\RXU�QHLJKERUKRRG�RU�DQ\ZKHUH�

WKDW�SHRSOH�JDWKHU�IRU�UHFUHDWLRQ��7KH�JODVV�EODVWHG�VWDLQOHVV�VWHHO 

HTXLSPHQW�LV�EDVHG�RQ�D�6FDQGLQDYLDQ�GHVLJQ�ZKLFK�LV�VLPSOH�DQG�DWWUDFWLYH 

ZKLOH�UHWDLQLQJ�WKH�EDVLF�IXQFWLRQV�UHTXLUHG�WR�WUDLQ�DQG�PDLQWDLQ�WKH�ERG\��



3

nOrwell stOry

The family Hempel Barkholt

inCOnsPiCuOus Fitness equiPment that enhanCes natural landsCaPes

7KH�+HPSHO�%DUNKROW�IDPLO\�²�IRXQGHUV�RI�1RUZHOO�²��ORYH�

EHLQJ�RXWGRRUV�DQG�VSHQGLQJ�WLPH�WRJHWKHU�DV�D�IDPLO\��

'XULQJ�IUHTXHQW�WUDYHOV�WKURXJK�&KLQD�WKH\�ZHUH�LQVSLUHG�

E\�WKH�PDQ\�RXWGRRU�ÀWQHVV�SDUNV�DQG�GHFLGHG�WR�HVWDEOLVK�

D�QHZ�FRPSDQ\�WR�IRFXV������RQ�WKH�GHVLJQ�DQG�

GHYHORSPHQW�RI�RXWGRRU�ÀWQHVV�HTXLSPHQW�

1RUZHOO�LV�QRZ�ZHOO�HVWDEOLVKHG�DQG�SHRSOH�DUH�UHJXODUO\�

IRXQG�KDSSLO\�H[HUFLVLQJ�LQ�RXU�SDUNV��:H�IUHTXHQWO\�LQVWDOO�

RXU�ÀWQHVV�SDUNV�LQ�SODFHV�RI�QDWXUDO�EHDXW\��DQG�WKHLU

VLPSOH�GHVLJQ�HQDEOHV�WKHP�WR�EOHQG�VHDPOHVVO\�LQWR�

DQ\�QDWXUDO�VXUURXQGLQJV�

1RUZHOO�ÀWQHVV�HTXLSPHQW�SURYLGHV�WKH�RSSRUWXQLW\�IRU�

HYHU\ERG\�WR�H[HUFLVH��UHJDUGOHVV�RI�DJH�RU�ÀWQHVV�OHYHOV��

:H�KRSH�WKDW�RXU�HDVLO\�DFFHVVLEOH�HTXLSPHQW�ZLOO�HQFRXUDJH�

PDQ\�PRUH�SHRSOH�WR�HQJDJH�LQ�RXWGRRU�ÀWQHVV�DFWLYLWLHV�DQG�

HQMR\�WKH�EHQHÀWV�LW�SURYLGHV�

(YHU\�WLPH�D�1RUZHOO�ÀWQHVV�SDUN�RSHQV�LW�LV�FRQÀUPDWLRQ�

WKDW�HYHU\�KRXU�VSHQW�GHYHORSLQJ�WKHVH�SURGXFWV�KDV�

EHHQ�YHU\�ZRUWKZKLOH�



4

desiGned FOr PeOPle  
2XU�SURGXFWV�DUH�FDUHIXOO\�GHVLJQHG�IRU�WKH�LQGLYLGXDO�VR

WKDW�WKH\�XVH�WKHLU�RZQ�ERG\�ZHLJKW�DV�UHVLVWDQFH��7KH\�KDYH�

EHHQ�GHOLEHUDWHO\�GHVLJQHG�WR�EH�QRQ�DGMXVWDEOH�EHFDXVH��

ZLWKRXW�SURSHU�JXLGDQFH��DGMXVWDELOLW\�FDQ�UHVXOW�LQ�LQMXU\�DV�

XVHUV�PD\�RYHU�H[HUW�WKHPVHOYHV��$GMXVWPHQW�GHYLFHV�FDQ�DOVR�

EH�HDVLO\�YDQGDOL]HG��7KHUH�LV�IXOO�ÁH[LELOLW\�LQ�WKH�PRYHPHQW�

RI�DOO�PHFKDQLFDO�SDUWV��PLQLPL]LQJ�WKH�ULVN�RI�LQMXU\��7KH�

LQWHQWLRQ�LV�WR�XVH�WKH�ÀWQHVV�VWDWLRQV�DV�D�WUDLQLQJ�FLUFXLW��

FUHDWLQJ�D�JRRG�FKDOOHQJH�IRU�DOO��UHJDUGOHVV�RI�ÀWQHVV�OHYHOV��

0RVW�XVHUV�ZLOO�VSHQG�RQH�RU�WZR�PLQXWHV�DW�HDFK�VWDWLRQ�

EHIRUH�PRYLQJ�RQ�

FOrm & FunCtiOn
'HVLJQ�LV�DQ�LQWHJUDO�SDUW�RI�1RUZHOO·V�IRFXV�DQG�DOO�GHVLJQ�

HOHPHQWV�KDYH�D�IXQFWLRQ��2XU�SURGXFWV�DUH�GHVLJQHG�WR�ÀW�

LQWR�DOO�HQYLURQPHQWV�²�JUHHQ��RSHQ�VSDFH�DQG�XUEDQ�

health PrOmOtiOn
0RVW�SHRSOH�WRGD\�DUH�DZDUH�WKDW�WKH\�VKRXOG�H[HUFLVH�

UHJXODUO\�EXW��IRU�D�ORW�RI�SHRSOH��WKHUH�DUH�EDUULHUV�LQFOXGLQJ�

WLPH��PRQH\�RU�WKH�ZURQJ�HQYLURQPHQW��$Q�RXWGRRU�ÀWQHVV�

FRXUVH�RYHUFRPHV�WKHVH�EDUULHUV�E\�EHLQJ�

��DOZD\V�DYDLODEOH

��IUHH

��DQ�RSSRUWXQLW\�WR�JHW�RXW�DQG�H[HUFLVH�LQ�WKH�IUHVK�DLU

sOCial inteGratiOn
2XU�ÀWQHVV�SDUNV�DUH�PHHWLQJ�SODFHV�IRU�SHRSOH�RI�DOO�DJHV�

DQG�ZDONV�RI�OLIH�²�EXVLQHVV�H[HFXWLYHV��PRPV�DQG�GDGV��

WHHQDJHUV��ROGHU�SHRSOH�DQG�WKH�OHVV�DEOH�²�WKH\·UH�UHDOO\�

DFFHVVLEOH�IRU�HYHU\RQH��,Q�HYHU\�FRPPXQLW\�LW�LV�LPSRUWDQW�WR�

KDYH�D�PHHWLQJ�SODFH�ZKHUH�WKH�SHRSOH�FDQ�JDWKHU�WR�VSHQG�

WLPH�ZLWK�WKHLU�IULHQGV�DQG�IDPLO\��H[HUFLVH�DQG�VRFLDOLVH��

1RUZHOO�ÀWQHVV�SDUNV�DUH�WKH�LGHDO�VROXWLRQ�

($&+�3,(&(�2)�(48,30(17�,6�,'(17,),$%/(�)25�$�63(&,),&�7<3(�2)�75$,1,1*

7+(�3,&72*5$0�,16,'(�7+(�&2/285�&2'('�,'�%$1'�6+2:6�+2:�72�86(�($&+�3,(&(�2)�(48,30(17

 CardiOvasCular
 7R�PDLQWDLQ�ÀWQHVV�DQG�VWDPLQD

� 7R�PDLQWDLQ�RSWLPXP�FDUGLRYDVFXODU�IXQFWLRQ�

� LV�D�SUHUHTXLVLWH�IRU�JRRG�KHDOWK�DQG�HVVHQWLDO�

� IRU�KLJK�TXDOLW\�RI�OLIH��1RUZHOO�)RUP�)XQFWLRQ®

� FDQ�KHOS�SHRSOH�WR�DFKLHYH�WKHVH�JRDOV�

� 3URGXFWV�LQ�WKLV�JURXS�DUH�LGHQWLÀHG�E\

� D�Green�ZHDWKHU�UHVLVWDQW�VWLFNHU�

 strenGth
 7R�WUDLQ�LQGLYLGXDO�PXVFOH�JURXSV

� 6WUHQJWK�WUDLQLQJ�UHGXFHV�WKH�SRVVLEOH�ULVNV

� RI�PXVFXODU�LQMXU\�DQG�LQFUHDVHV�VWDPLQD�

� 3URGXFWV�LQ�WKLV�JURXS�DUH�LGHQWLÀHG�E\

� DQ�OranGe�ZHDWKHU�UHVLVWDQW�VWLFNHU�

� %$/$1&(
 7R�VWUHQJWKHQ�WKH�DELOLW\�WR�VWUHWFK�

� \RXU�ERG\�DQG�PXVFOHV

� *RRG�ÁH[LELOLW\�LV�LPSRUWDQW�WR�PLQLPL]H�WKH�

� ULVN�RI�LQMXU\�WR�PXVFOH�JURXSV�DQG�UHGXFH

� JHQHUDO�DFKHV�DQG�SDLQV��1RUZHOO�)RUP�)XQFWLRQ®

� %DODQFH�KDV�EHHQ�FUHDWHG�WR�VWUHQJWKHQ�ERG\�

� ÁH[LELOLW\��3URGXFWV�LQ�WKLV�JURXS�DUH�LGHQWLÀHG�E\

� D�darK red�ZHDWKHU�UHVLVWDQW�VWLFNHU�

� )/(;,% ,/ ,7<
 7R�WUDLQ�EDODQFH�DQG�FRRUGLQDWLRQ

� /DFN�RI�EDODQFH�DQG�FRRUGLQDWLRQ�LV�DQ

� XQSOHDVDQW�FRQGLWLRQ��EXW�LQ�PDQ\�FDVHV�WKLV�FDQ

� EH�WUDLQHG�DZD\��1RUZHOO�)RUP�)XQFWLRQ®

� )OH[LELOLW\�KHOSV�SHRSOH�WR�IRFXV�RQ�EDODQFH�

� 3URGXFWV�LQ�WKLV�JURXS�DUH�LGHQWLÀHG�E\�

� D�'$5.�%/8(�ZHDWKHU�UHVLVWDQW�VWLFNHU�

PhilOsOPhy



5

125:(//·6�,1&/86,9(�(48,30(17�&$1�%(�86('�%<�3(23/(�2)�$//�$*(6�$1'�$%,/,7,(6

$V�D�GHVLJQHU�DQG�PDQXIDFWXUHU��1RUZHOO�LV�DEOH�
WR�SURGXFH�FXVWRP�GHVLJQV��3OHDVH�FRQWDFW�XV�DW
LQIR#QRUZHOO�XVD�FRP�IRU�GHWDLOV�



025(�7+$1�-867�$�)227%$//�&/8%
7LWXV�6ZDUWMHV��+HDG�&RDFK�DW�69�6FKDONKDDU�)RRWEDOO�&OXE��1HWKHUODQGV�

“We use Norwell equipment for warming up and cooling down and it’s great for players 

preparing for comeback after an injury, as they don’t have to train in isolation – 

they can be right here with their team mates. Our club is more than a football club – 

we have a social function in our city and our Norwell equipment has contributed 

to that. For example, older people come here to exercise and children love to play 

on the equipment while their dad’s playing football.”

&$6(�678'<�²��632576�&/8%



)5(6+�(1(5*<�72�7+(�%5$,1
&ODXV�-HQVHQ��+HDG�7HDFKHU��)DDERUJ�+LJK�6FKRRO

´1RUZHOO�LV�QRW�MXVW�DQ�RXWGRRU�ÀWQHVV�SDUN�²�LW·V�DFWXDOO\�D�JUHDW�VFXOSWXUH�SDUN��
It’s so nice to see beautiful equipment which also has a function. We use the apparatus 

both in sports and in interdisciplinary projects. Visual art can work with gear design 
and aesthetics, and in physics the formula “force times arm length” becomes 

easy to understand when you need it to lift your own weight. Our students have 
the opportunity after working hard in class to get out and increase their pulse rate, 
giving fresh oxygen to the brain and sharpening concentration and learning ability. 

Norwell equipment has also helped increase integration between the City of Faaborg 
and our school as everyone is welcome to come and exercise here.”

&$6(�678'<�²�)$$%25*�+,*+�6&+22/��'(10$5.



8



9

&$6(�678'<�²�/2&$/�$87+25,7<

aesthetiCs attraCts all GeneratiOns
&RQJUDWXODWLRQV�WR�WKH�PXQLFLSDOLW\�RI�*HQWRIWH�RQ�EHLQJ�DZDUGHG�

WKH�WLWOH�RI�6SRUWV�7RZQ�RI�WKH�<HDU��:H�DUH�UHDOO\�SOHDVHG�

WKDW�WKH�1RUZHOO�3DUN�KDV�EHHQ�RQH�RI�WKH�PDQ\�JRRG�LQLWLDWLYHV�

WKDW�KDV�FRQWULEXWHG�WR�WKLV�DZDUG�

%.2�7HPSOH��QH[W�WR�*HQWRIWH�6WDGLXP��ZDV�HVWDEOLVKHG�LQ������

DV�D�VNDWHU�WUDFN�DQG�KRFNH\�ULQN�LQ�FROODERUDWLRQ�ZLWK�D�JURXS

RI�\RXQJ�VNDWHU�HQWKXVLDVWV��,Q������WKH�ODQHV�DQG�UDPSV�ZHUH�

PRGHUQLVHG��DQG�WKH�DUHD�KDV�EHHQ�IXUWKHU�GHYHORSHG�WR�DSSHDO�

WR�RWKHU�XVHUV�²�IDPLOLHV��DGXOWV�DQG�VFKRRO�FOXEV�

2XWGRRU�ÀWQHVV�HTXLSPHQW�KDV�EHHQ�LQVWDOOHG�IRU�LQGLYLGXDOV��

DV�ZHOO�DV�FRPSOHPHQWLQJ�VFKRRO�DQG�LQVWLWXWLRQDO�VSRUWV�SURJUDPV��

)XUWKHU�GHYHORSPHQW�RI�WKH�DUHD�ZLOO�IRFXV�RQ�LQFUHDVLQJ�

WKH�EUHDGWK�RI�RIIHULQJV�DQG�ZLOO�WKHUHIRUH�DSSHDO�WR�DOO��

%DOO�FDJHV�DQG�EDVNHWEDOO�EDFNERDUGV�KDYH�DOVR�EHHQ�LQVWDOOHG�

WR�DWWUDFW�DQ�HYHQ�ZLGHU�UDQJH�RI�XVHUV�

6(1,25�&,7,=(1�&$5(�+20(�²�2'(16(��'(10$5.

7KLV�FDUH�HVWDEOLVKPHQW�VHUYHV�IRU����OLYH�LQ�UHVLGHQWV�

DQG�LV�DOVR�FRQQHFWHG�WR�����VKHOWHUHG�KRPHV�

1RUZHOO�HTXLSPHQW�LV�LQVWDOOHG�LQ�WKH�FRPPXQDO�JDUGHQ�ZKHUH�

WKH�UHVLGHQWV�FDQ�ZDWFK�WKHLU�IULHQGV�H[HUFLVLQJ�DQG�DOVR�HQMR\�

ORRNLQJ�DW�WKH�EHDXWLIXO�VFXOSWXUH�RI�WKH�1RUZHOO�SURGXFWV�

5HVLGHQWV�KDYH�WKHLU�RZQ�SK\VLRWKHUDSLVW�ZKR�H[HUFLVHV�ZLWK�WKHP�

DQG�LQVWUXFWV�WKHP�RQ�KRZ�WR�XVH�WKH�HTXLSPHQW�FRUUHFWO\�

1RUZHOO�HTXLSPHQW�LV�DOVR�XVHG�E\�WKH�VWDII��ZKR�

RIWHQ�VXIIHU�IURP�EDFN�SUREOHPV�GXH�WR�WKH�KHDY\�OLIWLQJ�

WKHLU�ZRUN�LQYROYHV��7KH\�HQMR\�VWUHWFKLQJ�RXW��NHHSLQJ�

LQ�VKDSH�DQG�KDYLQJ�IXQ�ZLWK�WKHLU�FROOHDJXHV�



��

7+(�:25/'·6�) ,567�6&8/3785$/
F itness ParK
3OD\LWDV�LV�$SROOR�7UDYHO·V�QHZ�VSRUW�UHVRUW�RQ�VXQQ\�)XHUWHYHQWXUD�

LQ�WKH�&DQDU\�,VOHV��7KH�UHVRUW�RSHQHG�RQ�-XO\���������DQG��

LQ�LWV�VHWWLQJ�RI�PRXQWDLQV��RFHDQ�DQG�RSHQ�VSDFHV��LV�LGHDO�IRU�

SURIHVVLRQDO�DWKOHWHV�DQG�WUDGLWLRQDO�WRXULVWV�DOLNH�

1:�����
&KHVW
Strength
Outdoor
ÀWQHVV

1:�����
%DFN
Strength
Outdoor
ÀWQHVV

1:�����
6LW�8S
Strength
Outdoor
ÀWQHVV

1:�����
3XOO�8S
Strength
Outdoor
ÀWQHVV

1:����
Bar
Strength
Outdoor
ÀWQHVV

1:�����
/HJ
Strength
Outdoor
ÀWQHVV

1:�����
$LU�:DONHU
Cardiovascular 
Outdoor
ÀWQHVV

1:�����
&URVV
Cardiovascular 
Outdoor
ÀWQHVV

&$6(�678'<�²�+27(/6�



��

-$1�/2&.+$57� �0$1$*,1*�',5(&725��$32//2�75$9(/6� �
´:H�FKRVH�1RUZHOO�DV�WKH�VXSSOLHU�RI�RXU�RXWGRRU�ÀWQHVV�SDUN�DV�WKH\�SDUWLFXODUO\�HPSKDVL]H�H[HUFLVHV�WKDW�FDWHU�WR�DOO��
7KH�HTXLSPHQW�KDV�JUHDW�VFXOSWXUDO�GHVLJQ�DQG�EOHQGV�GLVFUHHWO\�LQWR�LWV�VXUURXQGLQJV��7KH�SURGXFWV�DUH�KLJK�TXDOLW\�DQG�EHDXWLIXOO\�ÀQLVKHG�²�
care has been taken with every detail.”

1:�����
6WHSSHU
Cardiovascular 
Outdoor
ÀWQHVV

1:�����
+LS
Cardiovascular 
Outdoor
ÀWQHVV

1:�����
7ZLVWHU
Balance
Outdoor
ÀWQHVV

1:�����
6SULQJHU
Balance
Outdoor
ÀWQHVV

1:�����
6WUHWFK
Dexterity
Outdoor
ÀWQHVV

1:�����
%HQFK
Dexterity
Outdoor
ÀWQHVV

1:�����
3LQJSRQJ
Dexterity
Outdoor
ÀWQHVV

1:������
6LJQ
Info sign
Outdoor
ÀWQHVV



1:�����&+(67

1:�����%$&. 1:�����&+(67

&KHVW�LV�D�VHDWHG�FKHVW�SUHVV�GHYHORSLQJ�VWUHQJWK�LQ�WKH�FKHVW��
IURQW�RI�WKH�VKRXOGHUV�DQG�WULFHSV�

&KHVW�XWLOLVHV�WKH�XVHU·V�ERG\�ZHLJKW�DV�D�FRXQWHUZHLJKW�VR�WKH�XVHU�
GRHV�QRW�QHHG�WR�DGMXVW�ZHLJKW�DQG�UHVLVWDQFH�

&KHVW�LV�HTXLSSHG�ZLWK�D�VWXUG\�UXEEHU�FRDWHG�VHDW�IRU�FRPIRUW�
DQG�VDIHW\�ZKLOH�WUDLQLQJ�

)UDQN�+¡M��SURIHVVLRQDO�F\FOLVW��7HDP�6D[R�%DQN�
“This is brilliant… very nice design with functions that work 
well. I am sure that this concept will get people outside and 
doing more exercise” 

strenGth



1:�����%$&.

1:�����6 ,7 �83

1:�����6 ,783

(QGXUDQFH�RYHU�EUXWH�VWUHQJWK�²�%DFN�LV�D�VLPSOH�ZD\�WR�EXLOG�XS�VWUHQJWK�
LQ�WKH�EDFN��VKRXOGHUV�DQG�ELFHSV��7KH�EDVLV�RI�WKH�WUDLQLQJ�LV�UHSHWLWLRQ�

UDWKHU�WKDQ�KHDY\�ZHLJKW�WUDLQLQJ��

%DFN�ÀWV�DOO�DQG�LV�HDV\�WR�XVH�²�LW�XWLOLVHV�WKH�ERG\�ZHLJKW�
RI�WKH�XVHU�DV�FRXQWHUZHLJKW�HOLPLQDWLQJ�WKH�QHHG�WR�PDNH�DGMXVWPHQWV�

%DFN�LV�HTXLSSHG�ZLWK�D�UXEEHU�FRDWHG�VHDWZKLFK�SURYLGHV
D�VDIH�SODWIRUP�ZLWK�H[FHOOHQW�GXUDELOLW\�

6LW�8S�² LGHDO�IRU�LPSURYLQJ�DEGRPLQDO��WKLJK�DQG�KLS�PXVFOHV�

6LW�8S�KDV�VHYHUDO�DSSOLFDWLRQV��,W�LV�HDV\�WR�XVH�DQG�LV�HTXLSSHG�
ZLWK�D�FRPIRUWDEOH�UXEEHU�FRDWHG�VHDW�

strenGth



1:�����38//�83

strenGth



1:����� �38//�83

1:�����%$5

1:�����/(*

1:�����38//�83

1:�����%$5

1:�����/(*

��

3XOO�8S�LV�DQ�H[WUHPHO\�ÁH[LEOH�DQG�YHUVDWLOH�SLHFH�
RI�ÀWQHVV�HTXLSPHQW��FRPELQLQJ�VWUHQJWK�WUDLQLQJ�

IRU�D�ZLGH�UDQJH�RI�PXVFOH�JURXSV�

3XOO�8S�RIIHUV�WKH�XVHU�D�UDQJH�RI�H[HUFLVHV�VXFK�DV�FKLQ�XS�
VKRXOGHU��JULS�DQG�ERG\�OLIW�DV�ZHOO�DV�D�YDULHW\�RI�VWUHWFKHV�

3XOO�8S�LV�D�JUHDW�LQGLFDWRU�RI�WKH�XSSHU�ERG\�VWUHQJWK
LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�WKH�XVHU·V�ERG\�ZHLJKW�

'HYHORS�FKHVW��VKRXOGHUV�DQG�WULFHSV�ZLWK�Bar�²�

D�VLPSOH�SURGXFW�ZLWK�ORWV�RI�SRVVLELOLWLHV�

%XLOG�VWUHQJWK�LQ�\RXU�WKLJKV��OHJV�DQG�FDOYHV��

:LWK�ORQJ�IRRWSODWHV��/HJ�ÀWV�DOO�

strenGth



1:�����$,5�:$/.(5� 1:�����&5266 1:�����67(33(5 1:�����+,3

��

CardiOvasCular



��

1:�����$,5�:$/.(5�

CardiOvasCular

 
7R�ZDON�RQ�DLU�LV�SUREDEO\�WKH�JUHDWHVW�IHHOLQJ�RI�IUHHGRP�

\RX�FDQ�KDYH�

$LU�:DONHU�LV�HTXLSSHG�ZLWK�D�VXSSRUW�EDU�IRU�WKH�KDQGV��7KH�IRRW�
SODWHV�DUH�FRYHUHG�ZLWK�VNLG�UHVLVWDQW�UXEEHU�IRU�VDIH�WUDLQLQJ�

$LU�:DONHU�HQKDQFHV�WKH�FDUGLRYDVFXODU�IXQFWLRQV�RI�WKH�ERG\�
DQG�LQFUHDVHV�ÁH[LELOLW\�LQ�KLS�DQG�WKLJK�PXVFOHV�²�HYHQ�PRUH�

WKDQ�WUDGLWLRQDO�UXQQLQJ�

$LU�:DONHU�JLYHV�WKH�XVHU�WKH�VDPH�WUDLQLQJ�DV�UXQQLQJ�
EXW�ZLWKRXW�WKH�ULVN�RI�VWUDLQ�DQG�LQMXU\�UXQQHUV�FDQ�H[SHULHQFH�

LQ�WKHLU�NQHHV��IHHW��KLSV�DQG�EDFN�

1:�����&5266
&URVV�LV�D�FRPIRUWDEOH�ZD\�RI�GHYHORSLQJ�OHJ�DQG�KLS�PXVFOHV�

ZKLOH�LPSURYLQJ�FDUGLRYDVFXODU�HQGXUDQFH�

&URVV�IRRW�SODWHV�DUH�FRYHUHG�ZLWK�VNLG�UHVLVWDQW�UXEEHU�

IRU�VDIH�WUDLQLQJ�

1:�����67(33(5
6WHSSHU�GHYHORSV�OHJ�PXVFOHV�DQG�LPSURYHV�

FDUGLRYDVFXODU�HQGXUDQFH�

6WHSSHU�KDV�WZR�FXUYHV��7KH�ELJ�FXUYH�VHUYHV�DV�VXSSRUW�
GXULQJ�WUDLQLQJ�²�WKH�OLWWOH�FXUYH�LV�ZUDSSHG�LQ�QRQ�VNLG�UXEEHU�

1:�����+,3
+LS�JHQWO\�WUDLQV�EDFN��KLS�DQG�DEGRPLQDO�PXVFOHV�
ZKLOH�\RX�GHYHORS�\RXU�EDODQFH�DQG�FR�RUGLQDWLRQ�



1:�����7:,67(5

1:�����635,1*(5

��

1:�����7:,67(5

1:�����635,1*(5

7ZLVWHU�FRPELQHV�PXVFOH�GHYHORSPHQW�LQ�WKH�EDFN�DQG�
KHOSV�LPSURYH�ÁH[LELOLW\�DQG�EDODQFH��%RG\�URWDWLRQ�
LPSURYHV�ÁH[LELOLW\�LQ�WKH�EDFN�DQG�KLS�DQG�VWLPXODWHV�
DEGRPLQDO�DQG�ORZHU�EDFN�PXVFOH�GHYHORSPHQW�

7ZLVWHU�KDV�WZR�LQGLYLGXDO�SODWIRUPV�²�RQH�IRU�VWDQGLQJ�
DQG�RQH�IRU�VLWWLQJ�²�DQG�D�FXUYHG�EDU�IRU�VXSSRUW�

6SULQJHU�VWUHQJWKHQV�DQNOHV�DQG�NQHHV�
DV�ZHOO�DV�GHYHORSLQJ�EDODQFH��

6SULQJHU�FRPHV�ZLWK�D�VRIW�DQG�KDUG�VSULQJ�
IRU�YDULRXV�OHYHOV�RI�WUDLQLQJ�

%$/$1&(



1:�����635,1*(5

��

3DW�9LGDO��3K\VLRWKHUDSLVW��6SDLQ�
“All exercises can be performed without risk 
of injury and as the equipment is so versatile 
it provides a complete workout. You can 
train alone any time during the day,
whatever the weather.”

)/(;,%,/,7<



1:�����675(7&+ 1:�����%(1&+ 1:�����6,*11:�����PinGPOnG 

��

)/(;,%,/,7<



��

&KDUOHV�/RQJGRQ�+XJKHV��)LWQHVV�$HURELFV�*XUX��8.��
)RUPHU�.DUDWH�ZRUOG�FKDPSLRQ
“Fantastic concept, I love it! Beautiful to look at and
it’s also safe with excellent functions that really work 
as they should.”

)/(;,%,/,7<

1:�����675(7&+
6WUHWFK�LV�D�VLPSOH��HIÀFLHQW�SLHFH�RI�HTXLSPHQW�IRU�ÁH[LELOLW\�

WUDLQLQJ��XVLQJ�WKH�VKDSH�RI�WKH�FXUYH�

6WUHWFK�DOVR SURYLGHV�DQ�HVVHQWLDO�ÀQLVKLQJ�DFWLYLW\�²�VWUHWFKLQJ�RXW�
FDOI�PXVFOHV��WKLJK�PXVFOHV�DQG�WKH�KROORZ�RI�WKH�NQHH�

1:�����%(1&+
%HQFK�LV�VKDSHG�IRU�ERWK�UHVW�DQG�IXQFWLRQ��

(TXLSSHG�ZLWK�VWXUG\�EROWV�DQG�UXEEHU�FRQQHFWRUV�WR�SUHYHQW�
PHWDO�DJDLQVW�PHWDO�FRQWDFW��%HQFK�FDQ�EH�XVHG�IRU�WUDLQLQJ�
WKH�XSSHU�DQG�ORZHU�EDFN�DQG�LV�ZLGH�HQRXJK�WR�EH�XVHG�

VLPXOWDQHRXVO\�E\�WZR�SHRSOH�

1:�����PinGPOnG
3LQJSRQJ�LV�D�IXQ�YDULDWLRQ�IURP�RXU�WUDGLWLRQDO�ÀWQHVV�HTXLSPHQW�
EXW�QR�OHVV�EHQHÀFLDO�DV�LW�FRPELQHV�PRYHPHQW��UHDFWLRQ�VSHHG�

DQG�FRRUGLQDWLRQ�EHWZHHQ�H\H��EDOO�DQG�KDQG�

3LQJSRQJ�LV�PDQXIDFWXUHG�LQ�VWXUG\��PDLQWHQDQFH�IUHH�PDWHULDOV�

1:�����6,*1�
6LJQ�H[SODLQV�WKH�SKLORVRSK\�DQG�FRQFHSWV�EHKLQG�WUDLQLQJ�

DQG�KRZ�WKH�SDUN�VKRXOG�EH�XVHG�

 



22

+�-��+DQVHQ�LV�D�IDPLO\�RZQHG�JURXS�ZLWK�URRWV�WKDW�JR�EDFN�VL[�JHQHUDWLRQV��

7KH�FRPSDQ\�ZDV�IRXQGHG�LQ������DV�D�PHUFKDQW·V�KRXVH�LQ�9HVWHUJDGH�LQ�2GHQVH��

7KURXJK�H[SDQVLRQ�DQG�DFTXLVLWLRQ��+�-��+DQVHQ�KDV�JURZQ�WR�EHFRPH�RQH�ODUJH��

PRGHUQ�LQWHUQDWLRQDO�EXVLQHVV��,WV�WKUHH�PDLQ�DFWLYLWLHV�DUH�UHF\FOLQJ��SOXPELQJ�

DQG�HQJLQHHULQJ�EXW�LW�DOVR�KDV�PDMRU�LQWHUHVWV�LQ�ZLQH�DQG�GHOLFDWHVVHQ�VKRSV��

+�-��+DQVHQ�KDV�FRPSDQLHV�LQ�*HUPDQ\�DQG�DEURDG��DQG�KDV�����HPSOR\HHV�

&$6(�+�-��+$16(1

1RUZHOO·V�2XWGRRU�ÀWQHVV�HTXLSPHQW 
is environmentally friendly because you
create the energy yourself



23

the OPPOrtunity OF eXerCise

“Employee health is important to us here at H.J. Hansen, 

and as a part of our health policy we wanted to make 

exercise easily available to our staff. We chose a solution 

IURP�1RUZHOO��ZKLFK�KDV�EHHQ�D�JUHDW�EHQHÀW�WR�ERWK�

our employees and their families, providing exercise, 

fresh air, rehabilitation and teambuilding when they want it – 

they can exercise during breaks, before or after work. 

We hold informal meetings there, and the company running club 

ZKLFK�KDV�JURZQ�LQ�VWUHQJWK�DQG�VL]H�EHJLQV�DQG�HQGV�LWV�VHVVLRQV�DW�

WKH�ÀWQHVV�SDUN��

Since we did not have outdoor space available, we teamed up 

ZLWK�'HYHORSPHQW�)RUXP�2GHQVH�WR�FUHDWH�D�IXOO�ÀWQHVV�IDFLOLW\�LQ�

a nearby park, where Odense municipality had land available. The 

ÀWQHVV�SDUN�LV�XVHG�E\�D�JUHDW�GHDO�RI�2GHQVH·V�FLWL]HQV�

:H�DUH�YHU\�SOHDVHG�ZLWK�WKH�LPSDFW�WKH�ÀWQHVV�SDUN�KDV�KDG�

for our employees and will certainly create another Norwell Park at 

our other site in the Port of Odense.”

0DUOHQH�/�EHFN

0DQDJHPHQW�$VVLVWDQW

+�-��+DQVHQ�+ROGLQJ�$�6

&$6(�678'<�²�+�-��+$16(1 



24

FOr all PeOPle and all seasOns



25

6&$1',1$9,$1�'(6,*1�²�:,7+�)81&7,21$/,7<

'2.����KDV�GHYHORSHG�1RUZHOO�)RUP�)XQFWLRQ·V�RXWGRRU�ÀWQHVV�OLQHV�

RQ�WKH�EDVLV�RI�WUDGLWLRQDO�6FDQGLQDYLDQ�GHVLJQ��7KH�HTXLSPHQW�LV�GHVLJQHG�

WR�EH�VLPSOH�DQG�IXQFWLRQDO�DQG�LQWXLWLYHO\�XVDEOH�

7KH�PDLQ�HOHPHQW�²�WKH�FXUYH�²�FUHDWHV�D�OLJKWQHVV�DQG�VLPSOLFLW\�RI�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�

UHVXOWLQJ�LQ�HTXLSPHQW�ZKLFK�LV�HOHJDQW�DQG�XQGHUVWDWHG��7KH�FKRLFH�RI�PDWHULDO�

WKH�IRUP�DQG�WKH�RYHUDOO�XQFRPSOLFDWHG�DSSHDUDQFH�FRPELQH�WR�SURYLGH�

DHVWKHWLFV�XQLTXH�WR�6FDQGLQDYLDQ�GHVLJQ�

“At Dok 54 we always give due consideration to all aspects of the product, including the 

production process, method of handling, choice of material and design. 

We have set out to create equipment that is tasteful in appearance and will 

visually enhance the landscape.We are very proud of the result and 

believe that we have designed aesthetic, functional products that 

ZLOO�SURYLGH�ERWK�HQMR\PHQW�DQG�EHQHÀWV�WR�PDQ\�SHRSOH�µ

Thomas Brinch-Moller and Jacob Moller Lund



��

PrOduCt dimensiOns

1:�����&KHVW
Height: 7’ 9”
Length: 3’ 7”
Width: 2’ 9”
Footing: 0’ 10”
Weight: 172 lbs
Zone: 129 ft2

1:�����%DFN
Height: 7’ 9”
Length: 3’ 7”
Width: 2’ 4”
Footing: 0’ 10”
Weight: 161 lbs
Zone: 129 ft2

1:�����6LW�8S
Height: 1’ 8”
Length: 5’ 11’
Width: 2’ 9”
Footing: 1’ 6”
Weight: 90 lbs
Zone: 161 ft2

1:�����3XOO�8S
Height: 7’ 9”
Length: 4’ 3”
Width: 3’ 3”
Footing: 1’ 4”
Weight: 181 lbs
Zone: 151 ft2

1:�����%DU
Height:: 2’ 10”
Length: 3’ 7”
Width: 1’ 8”
Footing: 0’ 10”
Weight: 66 lbs
Zone: 135 ft2

1:�����/HJ
Height: 7’ 9”
Length:: 3’ 7”
Width: 1’ 6”
Footing: 0’ 10”
Weight: 176 lbs
Zone: 118 ft2

1:�����$LU�:DONHU
Height: 4’ 0”
Length: 7’ 7”
Width: 2’ 7”
Footing: 0’ 10”
Weight: 165 lbs
Zone: 178 ft2

1:�����&URVV
Height: 5’ 9”
Length: 5’ 11”
Width: 1’ 6”
Footing: 1’ 4”
Weight: 192 lbs
Zone: 151 ft2



���

3 years warranty
2Q�DOO�PRYLQJ�SDUWV��SODVWLF�
DQG�UXEEHU�

���<($56�:$55$17<
2Q�DOO�SLSHV��IRXQGDWLRQ�DQG�ZHOGV�
7KH�JXDUDQWHH�FRYHUV�PDQXIDFWXULQJ�
GHIHFWV��EXW�H[FOXGHV�RUGLQDU\�ZHDU�DQG�
WHDU��ODFN�RI�PDLQWHQDQFH�RU�YDQGDOLVP�

1:�����6WHSSHU
Height: 4’ 0”
Length: 7’ 7”
Width: 1’ 4”
Footing: 0’ 10”
Weight: 117 lbs
Zone: 161 ft2

1:�����+LS
Height: 4’ 0”
Length: 7’ 7”
Width: 3’ 8”
Footing: 0’ 10”
Weight: 143 lbs
Zone: 205 ft2

1:�����7ZLVWHU
Height: 4’ 0”
Length: 7’ 7”
Width: 3’ 3”
Footing: 0’ 10”
Weight: 161 lbs
Zone: 205 ft2

1:�����6SULQJHU
Height: 4’ 0”
Length: 7’ 7”
Width: 3’ 3”
Footing: 0’ 10”
Weight: 128 lbs
Zone: 199 ft2

1:�����6WUHWFK
Height: 4’ 0”
Length: 7’ 7”
Width: 1’ 6”
Footing: 0’ 10”
Weight: 82 lbs
Zone: 140 ft2

1:�����%HQFK
Height: 2’ 4”
Length: 5’ 11”
Width: 2’ 11”
Footing: 0’ 10”
Weight: 159 lbs
Zone: 178 ft2

1:�����3LQJSRQJ
Height: 2’ 6”
Length: 9’ 0”
Width: 5’ 0”
Footing: 0’ 10”
Weight: 838 lbs
Zone: 323 ft2

1:�����6LJQ
Height: 3’ 6”
Length: 2’ 4”
Width: 1’ 6”
Footing: 0’ 10”
Weight: 53 lbs
Zone: 118 ft2

&HUWLÀFDWLRQ
Norwell equipment is approved according 
to TÜV Product Service’s new testing protocol 
55012 (specially designed for testing 
RI�RXWGRRU�ÀWQHVV�HTXLSPHQW��

0DWHULDO�VSHFLÀFDWLRQV
<RX�FDQ�ÀQG�GHWDLOHG�PDWHULDO�
VSHFLÀFDWLRQV�RQ�RXU�KRPHSDJH��
www.norwell-usa.com



125:(//�287'225�*<06
1RUZHOO�86$��,QF�

�����1RUWKLOO�'ULYH�6:
2O\PSLD��:$������
LQIR#QRUZHOO�XVD�FRP

������������



 
 
 
 
 

NEW 
BUSINESS 



P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

A 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST 

TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

REQUESTOR: Ian Clowes 

DATE:  09/10/2014 

AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Cluster Plan Extension – Dixie Farm and Tall Oak 

 Old Business     New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 

 

Summary:  A request by Korie Johnston of DR Horton, applicant; on behalf of Kathy 
Jan Freeman and Kim Freeman, owner(s); for approval of an extension of a previously 
approved Cluster Development Plan, on a 14.3 acre tract of land, for a single-family 
residential subdivision, generally located at the northeast corner of Dixie Farm Road 
and Tall Oak Drive.  

Staff Recommendation:  Approval 



P&Z 9/15/2014 
Dixie Farm and Tall Oak Cluster Development Plan. 

Page 1 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 15, 2014 

DIXIE FARM AND TALL OAK CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

A request by Korie Johnston of DR Horton, applicant; on behalf of Kathy Jan 
Freeman and Kim Freeman, owner(s); for approval of an extension of a Cluster 
Development Plan, on a 14.3 acre tract of land, for a single-family residential 
subdivision, to wit: 

Legal Description: Being 11.933 acres of land located in the W.D.C. Hall 
League, Abstract 70, Brazoria County, Texas, more particularly being a portion of 
Lot 3 and Lot 4 of the George W. Jenkins Subdivision, a subdivision of record in 
Volume 79, Page 616 of the Brazoria County Deed Records (B.C.D.R.), also 
being the residue of a 7.5 acre tract (described as the Southwest ¾ of Lot 3) of 
which an undivided one-half interest was conveyed to Kim Freeman by 
instrument of record in File Number 99-010744 of the Brazoria County Official 
Records (B.C.O.R.) and an un-divided ¼ interest, each, was to Kim Freeman and 
Kathy Jan Freeman, by instrument of record in File number 96-044065 of said 
B.C.O.R., and the residue of a 5 acre tract (described as southwest ½ of Lot 4) of 
which an undivided one-half interest was conveyed to Kathy Freeman, by 
instrument of record in File number 99-0010744, of said B.C.O.R. and an 
undivided one fourth interest, each, was conveyed to Kim Freeman and Kathy 
Jan Freeman by instrument of record in File Number 96-044065, of said 
B.C.O.R., and; 

Being 2.387 acres of land located in the W.D.C. Hall League, Abstract 70, 
Brazoria County, Texas, more particularly being a portion of Lot 3 of the George 
W. Jenkins Subdivision, a subdivision of record in Volume 79, Page 616 of the 
Brazoria County Deed Records (B.C.P.R.), and being the residue of a 2.5 acre 
tract (described as the Northeast ¼ of Lot 3) conveyed to Kathy Freeman by 
instrument of record in Volume 1009, Page 57 of said B.C.D.R. 

General Location: Northeast corner of Dixie Farm Road and Tall Oak Drive 

SUMMARY:  The request is for approval of an extension of an existing Cluster 
Development Plan (CDP) located on Dixie Farm Road.  The approved CDP is for 40 
single-family residential lots, on 14.3 acres of land, with 2.8 acres of open space.  The 
development will have an entry park with open space, a number of neighborhood 
enhancements, in the form of a landscaped entry feature, 8’ concrete trails system with 
exercise stations, and upgraded wood fencing with masonry columns.  The property is 



 
 

P&Z 9/15/2014 
Dixie Farm and Tall Oak Cluster Development Plan. 

Page 2 
 

expected to be developed in one phase. 
 
A CDP is intended to allow flexibility in lot sizes for the developer and in return the 
applicant shall provide open space and amenities which are not achieved through the 
application of minimum lot standards.  These open spaces and amenities are 
specifically listed as criteria of approval for a CDP, among other criteria listed in the 
Unified Development Code (Section 2.2.4.4, UDC, Criteria of Approval for Cluster 
Development Plans) 
 
The property is currently zoned Low Density Residential R-1. The typical proposed lot 
size for the CDP is a minimum of 55’ X 12’, and a minimum lot area of 6,600 square 
feet. The minimum required lot size in the R-1 zone is 8,800 square feet, with minimum 
dimensions of 80’ x 90’; and a residential density 3.2 for a CDP.  The density being 
proposed is 2.9 units per acre.  This information is further illustrated in the table below: 
     

Proposed Cluster R-1  
Minimum lot area:  6,600 sq ft  8,800 sq ft  
Minimum lot width:  55’*   80’   
Minimum lot depth:  120’*   90’   
Density (units/acre)  2.46   3.2 
 
*typical lot width and depth for the proposed Cluster Development Plan. 
 
Total lots achievable with R-1: 46 
Total lots proposed with Cluster:  40   
 
The existing CDP was approved in September of 2013.  The property has yet to be 
platted or developed.  The Unified Development Code states that if a CDP is not platted 
or developed within 1 year of approval, the CDP shall expire.  The UDC allows for the 
Planning and Zoning Commission to extend the original approval by up to one year prior 
to the expiration.  The applicant is requesting a 1 year extension at this time with no 
proposed changes to the originally approved CDP. 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North R-2 Single Family Residential 
South R-1 Undeveloped 
East R-1 One Single Family Home/Vacant 
West PD Single Family Residential 

 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE:  The subject property is currently zoned Low Density 
Residential (R-1). If approved for this site, a CDP would allow the developer to vary the 
size of lots as long as the overall density of the development does not exceed 3.2 



 
 

P&Z 9/15/2014 
Dixie Farm and Tall Oak Cluster Development Plan. 

Page 3 
 

dwelling units per acre, as specified in Section 2.2.4.3 of the Unified Development 
Code.  All other development requirements in the Unified Development Code will be 
required to be met. 
 
PLATTING STATUS: This property is not platted.  Approval of an extension of the CDP 
is required prior to platting.  Formal subdivision platting will be required prior to 
development. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The Future Land Use 
designation for the subject land is Suburban Residential Development.  The approved 
Comprehensive Plan further indicates that corresponding lot sizes for Suburban 
Residential would be 10,000, 12,000, or 15,000 square foot lots.  Therefore, the 
proposed development is not in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject contains frontage 
on Dixie Farm Road; a major thoroughfare with a minimum right-of-way of 120 feet.  
Dixie Farm Road is currently constructed as a four lane, divided roadway with a width of 
approximately 120 feet.  
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  Public water and sewer are available for this site, but 
would have to be extended to the site by the applicant.  
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT: It is not anticipated that the 
proposed CDP will have a significant negative impact on existing surrounding 
developments or future developments.  Additionally, as the approved CDP meets the 
criteria of approval in the Unified Development Code, there are additional assurances 
that the development should not have a negative impact on existing and future 
development in the area.  The proposed amenities will be an asset to the surrounding 
neighborhood including the protection of a number of large growth trees along Dixie 
Farm Road.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of an extension of the 
approved Cluster Development Plan, for the following reasons, and with the following 
conditions: 
 

1) The proposed Cluster Development Plan appears to meet the criteria of 
approval in the Unified Development Plan. 

 
2) The proposed Cluster Development Plan appears to be compatible with 

surrounding zoning and uses. 
 
3) The proposed Cluster Development Plan does not appear to have any adverse 

impact on surrounding zoning and land uses. 
 
 
 



 
 

P&Z 9/15/2014 
Dixie Farm and Tall Oak Cluster Development Plan. 

Page 4 
 

Conditions (approved with the original Cluster Development Plan): 
 

1) Label the overall layout exhibit. 

2) Provide a legend for symbols on overall layout exhibit. 

3) Masonry fences along the rear portions of the lots adjacent to Dixie Farm Road 
are required to be installed per 4.2.4.1 (c) (1) of the UDC. 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Zoning Map 
 Future Land Use Plan 
 Aerial Map 
 Cluster Plan Exhibit 

 



R-1

R-2

R-3

PUD

M-1

R-4
DIXIE FA

RM RD

CR 12
7

OAK BENT D
R BRANCH HILL DR

CLOVERMIST LN

OAK LODGE DR

BUCKHOLT 
ST

OAK SHIRE DR OAK POINT DRBRACKET D
R

PENNYOAK DR

OAK FO
REST D

R

BARRETTS GLEN DR

CASTLE OAKS DR

OAKEDGE DR

LIVE OAK

ZONING MAP

Cluster Development 
Plan

Dixie Farm and
Tall Oak Drive

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 565 feet
MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Text



Low Density Residential

Medium Density Residential

Light Industrial

Minor Nodes

Airport

Retail, Offices and Services

Parks

Public / Semi-Public

DIXIE FA
RM RD

CR 12
7

OAK BENT D
R

CLOVERMIST LN
BUCKHOLT 

ST

OAK SHIRE DR OAK POINT DR

PENNYOAK DR

OAK FO
REST D

R

BARRETTS GLEN DR

CASTLE OAKS DR

FLUP MAP

Cluster Development 
Plan

Dixie Farm and
Tall Oak Drive

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 565 feet
MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Text



DIXIE FA
RM RD

CR 12
7

OAK BENT D
R BRANCH HILL DR

CLOVERMIST LN

OAK LODGE DR

BUCKHOLT 
ST

OAK SHIRE DR OAK POINT DRBRACKET D
R

PENNYOAK DR

OAK FO
REST D

R

BARRETTS GLEN DR

CASTLE OAKS DR

OAKEDGE DR

LIVE OAK

AERIAL MAP

Cluster Development 
Plan

Dixie Farm and
Tall Oak Drive

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 565 feet
MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Text

































P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

B 
 
 

 



 
 

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING 
THE CITY COUNCIL CITY AND THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF 

THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2014, AT 6:30 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS - CITY HALL-3519 LIBERTY DRIVE 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 

 
Conditional Use Permit Application No. 2014-08 
 
A request of Pirooz Farhoomand, applicant; on behalf of Artisan Estates, L.P., 
owner; for approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow for a Church, Temple, or 
Place of Worship in the Neighborhood Services (NS) Zoning District; on 
approximately 2.225 acres of land, to wit: 
 
Legal Description:  Being a tract of land containing 2.225 acre (96,940 square 
feet) tract of land in the H.T. & B.R.R. Co. Survey, Abstract 309, Brazoria County, 
Texas. Said 2.225 acre tract is in  the south one-half of Lot 30 of the Allison-
Richey Gulf Coast Home  Company’s part of Suburban Gardens Subdivision as 
recorded in Volume  2, Page 23 of the Brazoria County Map records and is 
further described as being part of a tract of land described in a deed conveyed 
from Garfield Clark, Jr. to Danny L. Blumrick executed on March 10, 1999 as 
recorded in Clerk’s file No. 99 012327 in the Brazoria County Clerk’s and all of a 
0.9326 acre tract of land described in a deed conveyed from Garfield Clark, Jr. to 
Danny L. Blumrick executed on November 28, 2000 as recorded in Clerk’s File 
No. 01 034492 in the Brazoria County Clerk’s  Office, Brazoria County, Texas  
 
General Location:  3030 Cullen Parkway, Pearland, TX 
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 
 
A. STAFF REPORT 
B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 
C. STAFF WRAP UP 

 
IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 
 
V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 1 of 2 – 9/15/2014    
 



 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that 
appropriate arrangements can be made. 

 



Memo 
To:  City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission 

From:  Planning Department 

Date:  September 15, 2014 

Re: Conditional Use Permit  Application Number 2014-08 

A request of Pirooz Farhoomand, applicant; on behalf of Artisan 
Estates, L.P., owner; for approval of a Conditional Use Permit to 
allow for a Church, Temple, or Place of Worship in the 
Neighborhood Services (NS) Zoning District; on approximately 
2.225 acres of land, located at 3030 Cullen Parkway, Pearland, 
TX 

Proposal 

The subject property includes approximately 2.225 acres of land, of which the applicant 
is requesting a Conditional Use Permit in the Neighborhood Services (NS) zoning 
district to allow for a church use to occupy a tenant space within the existing multi-
tenant building on site. 

Originally, the applicant requested a zone change from NS to GB. The existing 
building on site currently sits 15.5 feet from the rear property line which meets the 
requirements of the NS zone but would be nonconforming within the GB zone as 
the GB zone requires a minimum rear yard of 25 feet. As the building would not 
conform to the standards of the GB zoning district, the applicant requested to 
change the submitted application to a request for a CUP to allow for a church use to 
locate on site.  

Public Notification/Comment 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, owner of 
the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the site.  Additionally, a legal 
notice of public hearing was published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign 
was placed on the property by the applicant. 

As of the date of this writing, staff has not received any returned notices from property 
owners within 200 feet of the site in favor or in opposition to the request. 

1 | P a g e



Recommendation  

Staff recommends approval of the CUP 2014-08 to allow for a church use to locate at 
the proposed site for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed CUP is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan, as the
current site has a future land use designation of Office, Retail and Services. The
NS zone with an approved CUP is an appropriate zoning classification based on
the Comprehensive Plan recommendation.

2. The existing use of the subject property as a multi-tenant shopping center
conforms to the existing zoning district of NS.  With an approved CUP, the use of
a Church would also conform to the guidelines of the UDC.  Furthermore, the
existing structure on site was built in 2007 and conforms to all development
guidelines of the UDC.

3. The proposed CUP will not have a negative impact on the existing character of
the neighborhood. The subject property is surrounded by commercial uses
and/or zoning districts on three sides with a single family subdivision across Fite
to the south.  The site is already developed as a multi-tenant commercial
shopping center with no current plans to expand. The addition of a church within
an existing tenant space on site will not have a significant impact to the
immediate area.

Exhibits 

1. Staff Report

2. Aerial Map

3. Zoning Map

4. Future Land Use Map

5. Notification Map

6. Notification List

7. Applicant Packet

2 | P a g e



Summary of Request 

The subject property includes approximately 2.225 acres of land, of which the applicant 
is requesting a Conditional Use Permit in the Neighborhood Services (NS) zoning 
district to allow for a church use to occupy a tenant space within the existing multi-
tenant building on site. 

Site History 

The subject property is developed with a 10,920 square foot multi-tenant retail building. 
According to Brazoria County Appraisal District records, the building was constructed in 
2007.  The property was annexed into the City of Pearland in 1997.  The property 
obtained a zone change in 2001 changing it from Suburban Development (SD) to the 
current zoning of Neighborhood Services (NS). 

The site is surrounded by the GB zoning district to the north, west and east with 
properties south of the site located within the Single Family Residential-2 (R-2) and NS 
zoning districts. Surrounding uses include undeveloped land directly abutting the site to 
the west and east across Cullen Parkway; Medical offices to the north; and a barber 
shop adjacent to the south with single family dwellings across Fite Road.  

The below table identifies surrounding uses and zoning districts: 

Zoning Land Use 
North General Business (GB) Medical Offices 
South Single Family Residential-2 (R-2) 

Neighborhood Service (NS) 
Barber Shop 

Single Family Subdivision 
East General Business (GB) Undeveloped Commercial 
West General Business (GB) Undeveloped Commercial 

Exhibit 1 
Staff Report 

 

1 | P a g e



Conformance with the Unified Development Code 

The existing use of the subject property as a multi-tenant shopping center conforms to 
the existing zoning district of NS.  The purpose of the aforementioned zoning district is 
to permit a variety of low to moderate impact retail along with offices and other types of 
neighborhood uses that would fit well with surrounding residential neighborhoods.  
When a change in use occurs on a piece of property there are certain triggers, including 
compliance with screening/fencing and parking requirements.  The current site was 
developed in 2007, after the adoption of the UDC.  The current development appears to 
meet the requirements of the UDC under the NS guidelines. Originally, the applicant 
requested a zone change from NS to GB, The existing building on site currently sits 
15.5 feet from the rear property line which meets the requirements of the NS zone but 
would be nonconforming within the GB zone as the GB zone requires a minimum rear 
yard of 25 feet. As the building would not conform to the standards of the GB zoning 
district, the applicant requested to change the submitted application to a request for a 
CUP to allow for a church use to locate on site.  

A comparison of the existing NS and proposed GB zoning districts follow as it relates to 
the site in terms of the general regulations: 

NS Requirements Subject Property 

Minimum Lot Area 12,500 square feet 96,940 square feet 

Minimum Lot Width 100 feet 510 feet 

Minimum Lot Depth 100 feet 177.24 feet 

Minimum Front Yard 25 feet 105 feet 

Minimum Side Yard 15 feet 122 feet (north) 

155 feet (south) 

Minimum Rear Yard 10 feet 15.5 feet 

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 

The site is located within the Retail, Offices, and Services future land use designation.  
According to the Comprehensive Plan, the aforementioned future land use designation 
is designed for neighborhood or convenience shopping centers preferably located at 
significant street intersections with limited outdoor retail activities.  The existing NS 
zone is listed in the Comprehensive Plan as an appropriate zoning designation for 
the Retail, Offices, and Services future land use designation. 

2 | P a g e



Conformance with the Thoroughfare Plan 

The property has frontage on Cullen Parkway; a major thoroughfare of sufficient width 
which requires 120 feet of right-of-way, as well as Fite Road; a minor collector, which 
according to the thoroughfare plan is to be widened, and requires 60 feet of right-of-
way. 

Platting Status 

The property was platted in March of 2006 as the Final Plat of The Village at Pearland. 

Availability of Utilities 

The subject property has access to public infrastructure, and according to the Utility 
Billing Department, is connected to public water and sewer.   According to GIS records, 
there is an existing 12 inch water line along the east side of Cullen Parkway.  
Additionally, there is an existing 24 inch sewer line along the east side of Cullen 
Parkway and an 18 inch line along Fite Road. No expansion is proposed at this time. 
Therefore, it is not anticipated that any additional connections to city water or sewer 
will be required.  

Impact on Existing and Future Development 

The subject property is surrounded by commercial uses and/or zoning districts on 
three sides, many of which have yet to be developed. There is a single family 
subdivision across Fite and an adjacent home converted to a barber shop to the 
south. The subject parcel is currently developed as a multi-tenant commercial 
shopping center with no current plans to expand.  The proposed CUP will allow for a 
church use to occupy one of the existing tenant spaces. The NS zone allows for a 
variety of office and retail uses to locate within the existing structure, thus it is not 
anticipated that a church use will have a significant impact.  

Additional Comments 

The request has been reviewed by the City’s Development Review Committee (DRC), 
and there were no additional comments from other departments at the time of this 
report. 

Public Notification 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, the owner 
of the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property 
under consideration for the CUP.  Additionally, a legal notice of the public hearing was 
published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the property 
by the applicant.   

3 | P a g e



Opposition to or Support of Proposed Request 

As of the date of this writing, staff has not received any comments either in opposition to 
or in support of the proposed change in zoning request.   

Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the CUP 2014-08 to allow for a church use to locate at 
the proposed site for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed CUP is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan, as the 
current site has a future land use designation of Office, Retail and Services. The 
NS zone, with an approved CUP is an appropriate zoning classification based 
on the Comprehensive Plan recommendation.

2. The existing use of the subject property as a multi-tenant shopping center
conforms to the existing zoning district of NS.  With an approved CUP, the use of
a Church would also conform to the guidelines of the UDC.  Furthermore, the
existing structure on site was built in 2007 and conforms to all development
guidelines of the UDC.

3. The proposed CUP will not have a negative impact on the existing character of 
the neighborhood. The subject property is surrounded by commercial uses 
and/or zoning districts on three sides with a single family subdivision across Fite 
to the south.  The site is already developed with a multi-tenant 
commercial shopping center with no current plans to expand. The addition of a 
church within an existing tenant space on site will not have a significant 
impact to the immediate area.

4 | P a g e



SITE

FITE RD

CULLEN PKWYNAHAS CT

3025

3023

8406

2950 2950

29502950

2950

29502950

2950

8304

8305

2950

3101

3101

3101

2503

3101

8306
8308

3110

3101

8304

8302

8309

8307

8305

8303

8301

8406 8404 8402 8306 8304

8302

8405 8403 8401 8305 8303 8301

8335

2722

2950

AERIAL MAP

CUP 2014-08

3030 Cullen Pkwy. 

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 163 feet
MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Text

Exhibit 2



SITE
GB

R-2 NS

PUD

FITE RD

CULLEN PKWYNAHAS CT

3025

3023

8406

2950 2950

29502950

2950

29502950

2950

8304

8305

2950

3101

3101

3101

2503

3101

8306
8308

3110

3101

8304

8302

8309

8307

8305

8303

8301

8406 8404 8402 8306 8304

8302

8405 8403 8401 8305 8303 8301

8335

2722

2950

ZONING MAP

CUP 2014-08

3030 Cullen Pkwy. 

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 163 feet
MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Text

Exhibit 3



SITERetail, Offices and Services

Medium Density Residential

Offices

FITE RD

CULLEN PKWYNAHAS CT

3025

3023

2950 2950

29502950

2950

29502950

2950

8304

8305

2950

3101

3101

3101

2503

3101

8306
8308

3110

3101

8304

8302

8309

8307

8305

8303

8301

8406 8404 8402 8306 8304

8302

8405 8403 8401 8305 8303 8301

8335

2722

2950

FLUP MAP

CUP 2014-08

3030 Cullen Pkwy. 

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 163 feet
MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Text

Exhibit 4



SITERetail, Offices and Services

Medium Density Residential

Offices

FITE RD

CULLEN PKWYNAHAS CT

3025

3023

2950 2950

29502950

2950

29502950

2950

8304

8305

2950

3101

3101

3101

2503

3101

8306
8308

3110

3101

8304

8302

8309

8307

8305

8303

8301

8406 8404 8402 8306 8304

8302

8405 8403 8401 8305 8303 8301

8335

2722

2950

NOTIFICATION MAP

CUP 2014-08

3030 Cullen Pkwy. 

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 163 feet
MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Text

Exhibit 5



Exhibit 6

CUP 2014-08
NOTIFICATION LIST

Property Owner Address Suite City State Zip

HTA - PEARLAND CULLEN LLC 16435 N SCOTTSDALE RD STE 320 SCOTTSDALE AZ 85254
FITE INTEREST LTD 9337B KATY FWY HOUSTON TX 77024

THE LAKES AT EDGEWATER 
ESTATES 8711 HIGHWAY 6 N STE 270 HOUSTON TX 77095

MA WENBIN & ZHONG HUIPING 3210 BRUNO WAY PEARLAND TX 77584

MCKELVEY DAVID M & ANNETTE 8303 PRESTON DR PEARLAND TX 77584

CAZARES JANET KAY 1412 BUCKINGHAM DR ORANGE TX 77632
RICHARD-JORDON NENNETTE 8302 PRESTON DR PEARLAND TX 77584
WYCHE FREEMAN T II & OLLIE 8335 FITE RD PEARLAND TX 77584
SOUTHWESTERN BELL TELE CO 1 BELL CTR SAINT LOUIS MO 63101
TURNER LONNIE ET UX PO BOX 330766 HOUSTON TX 77233
ARTISAN ESTATES LP 802 TIBER ST HOUSTON TX 77024
FITE INTEREST LTD 9337B KATY FWY HOUSTON TX 77024
FITE OFFICE PARK LTD 9337B KATY FWY HOUSTON TX 77024



























P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

C 
 
 

 



 
 

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING 
THE CITY COUNCIL CITY AND THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF 

THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2014, AT 6:30 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS - CITY HALL-3519 LIBERTY DRIVE 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 

 
Zone Change Application No. 2014-6Z 
 
A request of Evelyn Pineda, owner/applicant; for approval of a change in zoning 
from Single Family Residential-2 (R-2) to Office and Professional (OP) on 
approximately 0.21 acres of land, to wit: 
 
Legal Description:  A tract of land being known as Lot 15 of Darlinda Addition, a 
subdivision in Brazoria County Texas as recorded in Volume 7, Page 20 of the 
Plat Records of said Brazoria County, and being the same tract of land as 
described in deed to Ernesto Perez and Evelyn Pineda under Clerk;s File 
Number 2006042620 of the Real Property Records of said Brazoria County. 
 
General Location:  4602 Broadway Street, Pearland, TX 
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 
 
A. STAFF REPORT 
B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 
C. STAFF WRAP UP 

 
IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 
 
V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that 
appropriate arrangements can be made. 

 

Page 1 of 1 – 9/15/2014    
 



 

 

Memo 
To:  City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission 

From:  Planning Department 

Date:  September 15, 2014 
 
Re: Zone Change Application Number 2014-6Z 

  A request of Evelyn Pineda, owner/applicant; for approval 
         of a change in zoning from Single Family Residential-2  
         (R-2) to Office and Professional (OP) on approximately  
         0.21 acres of land located on the south side of Broadway  
         Street, and approximately 100 feet from the intersection  
         of Broadway Street and Ray Street, Pearland, TX 

 

Proposal 

The subject property includes approximately 0.21 acres of land, of which the applicant is 
requesting a change in zoning from the Single Family Residential-2 (R-2) zoning district 
to the Office and Professional (OP) zoning district.  According to the applicant’s letter of 
intent, the purpose of the requested change in zoning is to convert the existing single 
family home into a real estate office or other professional office. All requirements of the 
Unified Development Code (UDC) will need to be met upon conversion to office.  

Public Notification/Comment 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, owner of 
the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the site.  Additionally, a legal 
notice of the public hearing was published in the local newspaper, and a notification 
sign was placed on the property by the applicant. 

As of the date of this writing, staff has not received any returned notices from property 
owners within 200 feet of the site. 

 

 

 

 

1 | P a g e  

 



 

 

 

Recommendation  

Staff recommends approval of the request to change the zoning of the approximately 
0.21 acre site from R-2 to OP for the following reasons: 

1. The change in zoning will result in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan, as 
the current zoning of R-2 does not conform to the future land use designation of 
Office, Retail and Services.  

2. The purpose of the proposed zoning district of OP is to permit a wide variety of 
business, professional and organizational office needs of the community together 
with desirable associated uses.  The proposed zoning district permits most low 
impact office uses, such as medical/dental offices, credit agencies, banks, 
veterinarian clinics; however, prohibits more intense uses such as automobile-
related uses such as auto repair, gas stations, and car washes; yet, permits 
various other uses that may prove to be incompatible with surrounding uses, with 
approval of a CUP, such as a wholesale bakery or a resale consignment shop, 
for example.  These uses require additional review by the City Council, Planning 
and citizens. 

3. The existing residential adjacency standards and the COD regulations will ensure 
that any proposed non-residential use has no major impact on the existing single 
family homes. 

4. All requirements of the UDC will be met upon conversion of the structure from 
residential to office use.  

Exhibits 

1. Staff Report 

2. Aerial Map 

3. Zoning Map 

4. Future Land Use Map 

5. Notification Map 

6. Notification List 

7. Applicant Packet 

2 | P a g e  

 



Summary of Request 

The applicant is requesting approval of a change in zoning from the Single Family 
Residential-2 (R-2) zoning district to the Office and Professional (OP) zoning district on 
approximately 0.21 acres of land located on the south side of Broadway Street, and 
approximately 100 feet from the intersection of Broadway Street and Ray Street. 
According to the applicant’s letter of intent, the purpose of the requested change in 
zoning is to convert the existing single family home into a real estate office or other 
professional office. 

 Site History 

The subject property is currently developed with a single family home and attached 
garage, which, according to Brazoria County Appraisal district records was constructed 
in 1960.  The property was annexed into the City of Pearland in 1905.  Prior to the 
adoption of the Unified Development Code (UDC) in 2006, the property was zoned for 
single family residential and is currently located within the Single Family Residential-2 
(R-2) zoning district. 

The site is surrounded by non-residential uses and non-residential zoning districts, with 
the exception of the single family home and single family zoning districts to the west and 
south.  The below table identifies surrounding uses and zoning districts: 

Zoning Land Use 
North General Business (GB) Houston Community Bank 
South Single Family Residential 2 (R-2) Single Family 
East Old Town General Business (OT-GB) Kidz Come First Daycare 

and Learning Center 
West Single Family Residential 2 (R-2) Single Family 

Exhibit 1 
Staff Report 

 

1 | P a g e



Conformance with the Thoroughfare Plan 

The subject property has approximately 98.48 feet of frontage along Broadway Street; a 
major thoroughfare, which requires 120 feet of right-of-way.  It appears from GIS 
records that the existing right-of-way at this location, is approximately 100 feet; and 
therefore is not in compliance with the thoroughfare plan.  Should the property require 
platting in the future, additional right-of-way will be required. 

Conformance with the Unified Development Code 

The existing use of the subject property conforms to the existing zoning district. The 
subject property is located within the Single Family Residential 2 (R-2) zoning district. 
The purpose of the aforementioned zoning district is to permit low-density residential 
development of detached single-family dwelling units and appropriate desirable open 
space.   

The site is also located within the Corridor Overlay District (COD), which was 
established after the single family home was constructed and platted.  Depending upon 
whether the existing structure is demolished and a new structure is built, expanded 
upon, or the existing structure is converted to an office, various improvements will be 
required.  For example, if the structure is completely demolished and a new structure is 
built, the site is required to come into full compliance with the UDC.  The proposed 
change in use and any expansion shall trigger parking (surface, quantity based on 
proposed use, parking lot landscaping) and screening requirement such as commercial 
dumpster/refuse container screening and residential adjacency screening.  Additionally, 
any expansion that exceeds five hundred (500) square shall trigger the construction of 
sidewalks, parking, landscaping, etc.  At this time, the change of use/occupancy will 
trigger any façade improvements that are required by the UDC.  

The subject property includes approximately 0.21 acres, which equates to 9,447 square 
feet.  According to the survey submitted with the application, the width of the subject 
property is approximately 98.48 feet.  The existing lot area and lot width do not meet the 
minimum requirements of the proposed OP zoning district.  However, a variance was 
approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission on August 4, 2014 to allow for a 
reduction in the lot area and lot width.  The below table illustrates the existing lot 
dimensions compared to the required lot dimensions for a property located within the 
OP zoning district: 

2 | P a g e



Office and Professional (OP) Area Regulations 

Size of Lots Required Existing Lot Dimensions 

Minimum Lot Size 12,500 sf. 9,447 sf. 

Minimum Lot Width 100 ft. 98.49 ft. 

Minimum Lot Depth 100 ft. 144 ft. 

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 

The proposed change in zoning from R-2 to OP of the subject property, will implement 
the policies of and conform to the future land use element of the Comprehensive Plan, 
for the subject property, which is “Retail, Offices and Services.”  According to the 
Comprehensive Plan, properties located within the aforementioned future land use 
designation should include neighborhood or convenience shopping centers or separate 
uses, preferably located at major street intersections, with limited outdoor retail 
activities.  Nonresidential uses should buffer from neighboring single family residential 
uses.  Appropriate zoning districts include the proposed zoning district of Office and 
Professional (OP), Neighborhood Service (NS) and selected uses within the General 
Business (GB) zoning district.  

Platting Status 

According to City records, the subject property was originally platted in 1953, as one lot 
which included the lot just west of the subject property, which has frontage on both 
Broadway and Ray Streets.  A replat in 1955 separated the lot into two (2) lots (current 
configuration). However, does not meet current platting requirements and a new plat 
may be required depending upon the extent of improvements proposed.  

Availability of Utilities 

The subject property has access to public infrastructure, and according to the Utility 
Billing Department, is connected to public water and sewer.   GIS data indicate that 
water is available to the site via a 10-inch waterline along the north side of Broadway 
Street and a 6-inch water line along the west side of Ray Street. Additionally, there is an 
existing 10-inch sewer line along the frontage of the property. At the time of permitting 
existing infrastructure will be analyzed to ensure that existing infrastructure is sufficient 
or if the extension of infrastructure is required.  The impact of the proposed use on the 
current infrastructure will also be analyzed and impact fees may be assessed.  

3 | P a g e



Impact on Existing and Future Development 

All surrounding properties are developed.  Properties north and east of the subject 
property are developed with nonresidential uses; Houston Community Bank to the 
north, and on the north side of Broadway Street; and directly east of the site is Kidz 
Come First Daycare and Learning Center.  Properties to the west and south are 
developed with single family homes.  There should be no major negative impact to 
surrounding properties, as the site is currently developed.  Various improvements will be 
required as a result of the change in use from residential to non-residential.  When the 
subject property is converted from a single family use to a non-residential use, 
residential adjacency standards will apply along the west and south property lines due 
to the existing single family uses/subdivision.  Options include the following: 

1. A 25-foot landscape buffer which shall remain open and unobstructed (no
parking, driveways, etc.) and an opaque screening wall a minimum of 6-feet, but
not to exceed 8-feet in height; or

2. In situations where a fence exists along the property line between the
nonresidential and residential use, the screening shall be achieved by a 30-foot
buffer and a vegetative screen dense enough to be completely opaque year
round, which is at 4 feet tall at planting and at least 8 feet tall within 12 months,
unless the nonresidential use obtains permission from the owner(s) of the
existing fence to replace said fence with the above required opaque screening
wall.

The existing residential adjacency standards and the COD regulations will ensure that 
any proposed non-residential use has no major impact on the existing single family 
homes. 

Additional Comments 

The request has been reviewed by the City’s Development Review Committee (DRC), 
and there were no additional comments from other departments at the time of this 
report. 

Public Notification 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, the owner 
of the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under 
consideration for the zone change.  Additionally, a legal notice of the public hearing was 
published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the property by 
the applicant.   

4 | P a g e



Opposition to or Support of Proposed Request 

Staff has not received any comments either in opposition to or in support of the 
proposed change in zoning request.   

Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the request to change the zoning of the approximately 
0.21 acre site from R-2 to OP for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed zoning district of Office and Professional (OP) implements the 
policies and conforms to the adopted Comprehensive Plan, including the future 
land use designation for the subject property which is “Retail, Offices and 
Services.”  The change in zoning will result in conformance with the 
Comprehensive Plan, as the current zoning of R-2 does not conform to the 
Comprehensive Plan.  According to the Comprehensive Plan, properties located 
within the aforementioned future land use designation should include 
neighborhood or convenience shopping centers or separate uses, preferably 
located at major street intersections, with limited outdoor retail activities. 
Nonresidential uses should buffer from neighboring single family residential uses. 
Appropriate zoning districts include the proposed zoning district of Office and 
Professional (OP), Neighborhood Service (NS) and selected uses within the 
General Business (GB) zoning district. The purpose of the OP zoning district is to 
permit a wide variety of business, professional and organizational office needs of 
the community together with desirable associated uses, which furthers the goals 
of the “Retail, Offices and Services” future land use designation.  The OP zoning 
district also restricts outdoor commercial activities or uses without a temporary 
permit.  Outdoor storage is only allowed with approval of a Conditional Use 
Permit (CUP).  The existing use of the site, as developed (single family dwelling 
unit) and the existing zoning of the site (R-2) create a non-conformity, as the 
existing use and the existing zoning district do not match the future land use 
designation of the Comprehensive Plan.  The request will result in bringing a 
non-conforming use and zoning, into compliance with the Unified Development 
Code as well as the Comprehensive Plan.

2. The purpose of the proposed zoning district of OP is to permit a wide variety of
business, professional and organizational office needs of the community together
with desirable associated uses.  The proposed zoning district permits most low
impact office uses, such as medical/dental offices, credit agencies, banks,
veterinarian clinics; however, prohibits more intense automobile-related uses
such as auto repair, gas stations, and car washes; yet, permits various other
uses that may prove to be incompatible with surrounding uses, with approval of a
CUP, such as a wholesale bakery or a resale consignment shop, for example.

5 | P a g e



3. The existing residential adjacency standards and the COD regulations will ensure
that any proposed non-residential use has no major impact on the existing single
family homes.

4. All requirements of the UDC will be met upon conversion of the structure from
residential to office use.

6 | P a g e



BROADWAY ST

RA
Y S

T

2430

4616
4540

4616

4602

2503

2507

2505

2501

2504

2506

2502

46074609 4605

4540

4611

4616

4613

4616

AERIAL MAP

ZONE CHANGE
2014-6Z

4602 W. BROADWAY

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 70 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Exhibit 2



GB

R-2

OT-GB

OT-R

BROADWAY ST

RA
Y S

T 2430

46164540

4616

4602

2503

2505

2507

2501

2504

2502

2506

4616

4540

4605460746094611

4616

4603

ZONING MAP

ZONE CHANGE 
2014-6Z

4602 W. BROADWAY

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 70 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Exhibit 3



Retail, Offices and Services

Medium Density Residential

BROADWAY ST

RA
Y S

T

MYKAWA RD

2430

46164540

4616

4602

2503

2507

2505

4616

2506

2501

2504

2502

4605

2508

4607
4613

46094611
4603

4540

4616

2503

FLUP MAP

ZONE CHANGE
2014-6Z

4602 W. BROADWAY

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 83 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Exhibit 4



CHERRY ST

BROADWAY ST

RAY ST

S AUSTIN AVE

MYKAWA RD

JOHNSTON ST

PE
AR

 C
T N AUSTIN AVE

CEDAR ST PE
AC

H 
CT

W PEAR ST

4627

2430

4616
4627

4540

4616

4706

4804

4618

4618

4613

4616

4602

2315

4627

2503

4612 4606

2507

46084614

2510

46024610

46054611

4616
4604

4607

2528

46092508
4601

2514

4603

2316

2510

2317

2505

4615

2506

2501

2504

2318

2503

2509

4619

2318

2502

2320

2307
2308 2307 2308

2310
230923102309

2314

4616

2313

4627

2306

2411
2411

2531

2525
2525

2525

2501

2501
2501

2501

2515

2501

2515

2439

2513

2439

2513
2513

2433
2433

2419

2427

2419
2427

2419
2419

2403
2407

2407

2305

2403

2306 2305

2404
2404

2404

2412
2404

2412

450745074507
4507

2534

4540

4507

2339

4508

2316
2339

2531

2433

2433

2411
2407

4508

2525

2439

2427

4607

4508

2339

4512

2412

2424
2412

2424
2424

4512

2424
2424
2424
2434
2434
2434
2438
2438

4512

2506
2506
2506
2506
2506
2518

4512

2518
2518
2518
2522
2522
2522

4507

2530

2339

NOTIFICATION MAP

ZONE CHANGE
2014-6Z

4602 W. BROADWAY ST.

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 167 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Exhibit 5



Exhibit 6

ZONE CHANGE 2014-6Z
NOTIFICATION LIST

NAME ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP
BATES LISA LANELLE 3302 CHURCHILL ST PEARLAND TX 77581
CAMPBELL ARLYN JEAN 4606 RAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581
CANON FRANK LYNN 4609 RAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581
COBBS DAVID W & BRENDA S 2505 RAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581
COBBS T F JR & DORTHY 4611 RAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581
COE CODY 2504 RAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581
D BROWN INTERIORS 2640 BROADWAY ST STE 102 PEARLAND TX 77581
JACKSON NELLIE J 3215 SAGEWOOD CT PEARLAND TX 77584
KILBOURN D R 2507 RAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581
LEROY JAMES WILLIAM & GALE S 2315 HALBERT DR PEARLAND TX 77581
NASSIF MICHAEL & SABA 11839 MIGHTY REDWOOD DR HOUSTON TX 77059
PEREZ ERNESTO & EVELYN PINEDA PO BOX 230392 HOUSTON TX 77223
SCHOOL ZONE 3421 E WALNUT ST PEARLAND TX 77581
EVELYN PINEDA PO BOX 230392 HOUSTON TX 77223



Exhibit 7





















P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

D 
 
 

 



 
 

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING 
THE CITY COUNCIL AND THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2014 AT 6:30 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS - CITY HALL-3519 LIBERTY DRIVE 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 

 
Zone Change Application No. 2014-15Z 
 

 A request of BGE Kerry R. Gilbert and Associates, applicant; on behalf of 
Parkside 59/288 LTD, owner; for approval of an amendment to the Business 
Center PD; on approximately 29.331 acres of land, to wit: 
 
Legal Description:  Being 29.331 acres of land located in the H.T. & B.R.R. 
Company Survey, Section 81, Abstract Number 300, Brazoria County, Texas, 
being a portion of Lots 38, 39, 40, 49 and 50 of the Allison Richey Gulf Coast 
Home Company’s Part of Suburban Gardens, a subdivision of record in Volume 
2, Page 98 of the Brazoria County Plat Records, being a portion of Business 
Center Planned Development Tract C-4, the plat thereof recorded under 
Document Number  2013-033688 in the Official Public Records of Brazoria 
County Texas, further being the residue of a 30.583 acre tract (Part One) and the 
residue of a 9.990 acre tract (Part Two) described in the deed from Compass 
Bank to Parkside 59/288 LTD. Recorded under Document No. 2011012491, in 
the Official Public Records of Brazoria County, Texas. 

  
General Location:  Northwest corner of County Road 59 and State Highway 288 
Pearland, TX 
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 
 
A. STAFF REPORT 
B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 
C. STAFF WRAP UP 

 
IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 
 
V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 1 of 2 – 9/15/2014    
 



 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that 
appropriate arrangements can be made. 

 

Page 2 of 2 – 9/15/2014    



 

  

Memo 
To:  City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission 

From:  Planning Department 

Date:  September 15, 2014 
 
Re: Zone Change Application Number 2014-15Z 

 A request of BGE Kerry R. Gilbert and Associates, 
applicant; on behalf of Parkside 59/288 LTD, owner; for 
approval of an amendment to the Business Center PD; on 
approximately 29.331 acres of land 

Proposal 

The Business Center Planned Development (PD) includes approximately 38.909 acres 
of land located at the northwest corner of County Road 59 and State Highway 288; and 
on the east and west sides of Business Center Drive.  Currently the PD allows for a mix 
of non-residential uses.    

The applicant proposes to amend the PD to allow minor modifications in the allowable 
land uses and acreages for various uses, including the addition of a Retail Supercenter.  
Changes are also proposed to the design standards, including exterior façade materials 
and colors; screening of service access and service areas; and screening of detention 
facilities. 

The amendment will result in 5 changes that are discussed in detail in the attached Staff 
Report. 

Public Notification/Comment 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, the owner 
of the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under 
consideration for the amendment to the Business Center PD.  Additionally, a legal 
notice of the public hearing was published in the local newspaper, and a notification 
sign was placed on the property by the applicant. As of the date of this writing, staff has 
not received any returned notices from property owners within 200 feet of the site.  

 

 

 

1 | P a g e  

 



Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed amendment to the Business Center PD, as 
identified above, and in detail within the attached Staff Report, identified as Exhibit 1; for 
the following reasons: 

1. The amended PD should not cause any adverse impacts to existing or future 
developments.  With the exception of properties to the west and south, all other 
adjacent properties are either zoned for non-residential uses, are developed with 
non-residential uses or continue to remain undeveloped.  The property to the 
west is developed with a single family subdivision; however is separated from the 
subject property via a 176-foot detention pond (Detention Pond A) and a 60-foot 
drainage easement, for a total of 236-foot separation, which will provide a 
sufficient buffer between the non-residential PD and the existing single family 
subdivision.  Additionally, a 6-foot tall masonry or pre-cast wall; or a 30-foot wide 
vegetative buffer will be constructed along the eastern boundary of the detention 
facility to enhance the screening between uses.   Further north of the subject 
property is the Pearland Town Center, which is developed with a mix of various 
uses, including residential, restaurants, retail, and office uses.

2. The PD was approved as a non-residential PD and continues to remain as such. 
The non-residential nature of the PD is consistent with intent of the original PD; 
to provide commercial developments, including retail, office, hotel/motel uses, 
with its close proximity to State Highway 288, and fronting on two secondary 
thoroughfares; County Road 59, and Business Center Drive.

3. The PD continues to meet the intent of BP-288; the overlay zoning district, to
provide high quality non-residential developments along State Highway 288.

4. The Business Center PD conforms with and meets the intent of the Business 
Park future land use designation of the Comprehensive Plan. The location of the 
property, at the intersection of a state highway, lends itself for a mix of non-
residential uses, as indicated by the Comprehensive Plan.

Staff recommends that the following is addressed in the PD prior to first reading:

1. Incorporate graphics and images showing the facades of the proposed
changes to façade materials.

2. Spacing of shrubs included in the landscaped buffer.

3. Provide for screening of the proposed Detention Pond B, along the north
property line.

2 | P a g e



Exhibits 

1. Staff Report

2. Aerial Map

3. Zoning Map

4. Future Land Use Map

5. Notification Map

6. Notification List

7. Red-lined Sections of PD to be Amended

8. Existing PD Document

3 | P a g e



Summary of Request 

The Business Center Planned Development (PD) includes approximately 38.909 acres 
and was originally approved on November 26, 2012 to allow for a mix of non-residential 
uses, authorized by the PD in specific locations, as well as all uses permitted or 
conditionally permitted within the Business Park -288 (BP-288) zoning district, as 
indicated within the Land Use Matrix of the Unified Development Code (UDC).  The PD 
is separated into three (3) areas, Land Use Areas 1, 2 and 3.  Each Land Use Area has 
distinct uses, maximum acreages and design standards that apply.  The PD allows for 
the acreage to shift within each Land Use Area up to 15% to allow for flexibility in land 
uses.  

The proposed amendment will result in the following 5 changes: 

1. a change in the allowable uses and maximum acreages associated with the 
permitted uses identified in Section II, Table 1 (Land Use Area Table) for Land 
Use Areas 1 and 3;

2. a change in the “Design Elements” of the above referenced table for Land Use 
Area 3;

3. an amendment to Section III (Design Standards) for Land Use Area 3;
4. addition of an additional dry detention pond (Proposed Detention Pond B), to 

Land Use Area 3, as identified and illustrated in Exhibit D; and
5. revision to Section B (Specific List of Deviations) to include deviations  proposed 

with this amendment.

Details of the above 5 changes are described in detail below: 

Amendment 1:  Section II (Zoning and Land Uses), Table 1 (Land Use Area Table); 
found on page 4 of the redlined version of the Business Center PD identifies the types 
of uses, maximum acreage, as well as Design Elements for each of the 3 Land Use 

Exhibit 1 
Staff Report 

 

1 | P a g e



Areas.  The applicant proposes to amend the land uses and acreages for Land Use 
Areas 1 and 3.  As part of this amendment, a “Retail Superstore” is being added and 
defined as “an establishment that sells a variety of goods and services arranged into 
multiple departments.  These departments may include, but are not limited to, 
consumable foods, prepared foods, pharmacy, electronics, etc.” 

The table below illustrates the existing permitted uses and maximum acreages for Land 
Use Areas 1, 2 and 3; as well as the proposed amendments and/or additions for Land 
Use Areas 1 and 3.  No changes are proposed for Land Use Area 2.    

Column 1 indicates each land area and the maximum acreage allowed within the land 
area; Column 2 includes the existing requirements, and Column 3 indicates the 
proposed amendment.  Any changes, additions, deletions, etc., are highlighted in red 
font. 

Land 
Use Area 

Existing Permitted Uses/Max Acreage Proposed Amendment 

1 

+/- 9.7 
acres 

• Restaurant (Drive-thru): 9.7 acres
• Restaurant (Dine-in): 9.7 acres
• Hotel/Motel/Extended Stay: 6 acres
• Gas/Convenience Store: 3 acres
• Auto Repair (minor): 5 acres
• Auto Wash (full service/detail): 5

acres 
• Auto Wash (self-service): 5 acres
• Laundry/Dry Cleaning: 2 acres
• Garden/Nursery Store: 8 acres
• Shopping Center: 8 acres

• Restaurant (Drive-thru): 9.7 acres
• Restaurant (Dine-in): 9.7 acres
• Hotel/Motel/Extended Stay: 6 acres
• Gas/Convenience Store: 3 acres
• Auto Repair (minor): 5 acres
• Auto Wash (full service/detail): 5

acres 
• Auto Wash (self-service): 5 acres
• Laundry/Dry Cleaning: 2 acres
• Garden/Nursery Store: 8 acres
• Shopping Center: 8 acres
• Pharmacy: 4 acres

2 
+/- 5.9 
acres 

• Restaurant (Drive-thru): 5.8 acres;
• Restaurant (Dine-in): 5.8  acres;
• Gas/Convenience Store: 3 acres
• Auto Wash (self-service)

associated with a gas station only 

NO CHANGE PROPOSED 

3 
+/- 23.3 
acres 

• Nursing/Convalescent Home: 14
acres 

• Flex/Back Office: 12 acres
• Museum: 5 acres
• Bio-tech, High-tech Manufacturing:

10 acres 
• Shopping Center: 12 acres

• Nursing/Convalescent Home: 14 4
acres 

• Flex/Back Office: 12 acres
• Museum: 5 acres
• Bio-tech, High-tech Manufacturing:

10 acres 
• Shopping Center: 12 acres

2 | P a g e



• Gas/Convenience Store: 3 acres
• Auto Wash (self-service): 3 acres
• Retail Superstore: 17 acres
• Additional uses permitted in

association with a Retail 
Superstore (inside of the primary 
structure housing the Retail 
Superstore): Pharmacy; Liquor 
Sales, as permitted by TABC; 
Photo Processing; Food 
Preparation Services (Butcher, 
Deli, Bakery, etc.); Optometry 
Services; General Food and Retail 
Sales 

Amendment 2:  The applicant proposes to amend the “Design Elements” for Land Use 
Area 3, identified in the Land Use Table on page 4 of the redlined version of the 
Business Center PD.   

The below table illustrates the Land Use Area in Column 1, the existing requirement in 
Column 2 and the proposed amendment in Column 3 is indicated in red font for new 
language and a red-strike-through for language that is proposed to be deleted.  It is 
important to note that no changes in the Design Elements are proposed for Land Use 
Areas 1 and 2.   

Land Use 
Area 

Existing Requirement Proposed Amendment 

3 • Shared Driveways
• Nursing/Convalescent Home as

defined by the UDC.  The 
Design of the complex will 
incorporate interior hallways. 

• Businesses to be oriented
towards Business Center Drive 
or if designed with a motor 
court, businesses can be 
oriented to another business. 

• Orientation of overhead doors
and service bay doors shall not 
face Business Center Drive 

• Flex/Back Office and Bio-tech,
High-tech Manufacturing to be 
1-story industrial product with 

• Shared Driveways
• Nursing/Convalescent Home as

defined by the UDC.  The 
Design of the complex will 
incorporate interior hallways. 

• Businesses to be oriented
towards Business Center Drive 
or if designed with a motor 
court, businesses can be 
oriented to another business. 

• Orientation of overhead doors
and service bay doors shall not 
face Business Center Drive 
except when a building is over 
100,000 square feet, and used 
as a Retail Superstore. 

3 | P a g e



 

tilt wall or similar concrete 
construction that can 
accommodate 25% to 100% 
office use; dock high doors 
shall not face Business Center 
Drive. 

• Flex/Back Office and Bio-tech, 
High-tech Manufacturing to be 
1-story industrial product with 
tilt wall or similar concrete 
construction that can 
accommodate 25% to 100% 
office use; dock high doors 
Loading bays and similar 
activities, including, but not 
limited to, overhead doors, 
rolling shutters, garage doors, 
bay doors and dock doors of 
any structure, shall not face 
Business Center Drive. 

• The proposed detention facility 
(Detention Pond B) along the 
north property line, may be 
adjusted within the boundary 
of LUA 3. 
 

 

Amendment 3:  The applicant proposes to amend Section III (Design Standards) of the 
PD for Land Use Area 3.   

The below table illustrates the existing design standards and proposed amendments to 
Land Use Area 3.  No changes are proposed in the Design Standards for Land Use 
Area 1 or 2.  Column 1 includes the Design Standard, Column 2 indicates the existing 
requirement and Column 3 indicates the amendment with the addition of any proposed 
language in red font and a red-strike-through for language that is proposed to be 
deleted. 

Design 
Standard 

Existing Requirement Proposed Amendment 

Exterior 
Materials and 
Colors 

No more than 3 dominant 
materials should be used on 
a building exterior. 
Acceptable materials are 
concrete, tilt wall concrete, 
concrete block, glass, glass 
block, brick, split face 
concrete block, stone, stucco 
and trade designs as 
permitted in Sec. 2.6.2.1…  

No more than 3 dominant 
materials should be used on a 
building exterior. Acceptable 
materials are concrete, tilt wall 
concrete, concrete block, 
glass, glass block, brick, split 
face concrete block, stone, 
stucco and trade designs as 
permitted in Sec. 2.6.2.1…  
Earth tones with limited pastel 

4 | P a g e  

 



 

Earth tones with limited pastel 
alternative as recommended 
for dominant wall colors for 
build materials.  An accent 
color may be applied to the 
trim, fascia boards, door 
panels or miscellaneous 
metals. An accent color may 
be applied to trim, fascia 
boards, door panels or 
miscellaneous metals. Accent 
colors will not exceed more 
than 20% of the building 
façade for any side of the 
building. Prohibited colors 
include fluorescent, 
iridescent, or dayglo. 

alternative as recommended 
for dominant wall colors for 
build materials.  An accent 
color may be applied to the 
trim, fascia boards, door 
panels or miscellaneous 
metals. An accent color may 
be applied to trim, fascia 
boards, door panels or 
miscellaneous metals. Accent 
colors will not exceed more 
than 20% of the building 
façade for any side of the 
building. Prohibited colors 
include fluorescent, iridescent, 
or dayglo.   
For all non-residential 
structures 100,000 sf. or 
greater, and used as a Retail 
Superstore, acceptable front 
facades of any building that 
faces a thoroughfare/ collector 
may include up to a combined 
max. of 65% architectural 
metal panel (rib and/or 
textured).  Side facades of 
such buildings may include up 
to a combined max. of 75% 
architectural metal panel (rib 
and/or textured). 

Bicycle 
Parking 

On and off street parking will 
be in conformance with the 
UDC. Bicycle parking will be 
in conformance with Sec. 
2.4.5.1.F (COD)  
 

On and off street parking will 
be in conformance with the 
UDC. Bicycle parking will be in 
conformance with Sec. 
2.4.5.1.F (COD). 
However, within LUA 3, a 
single building over 100,000 sf. 
shall provide bicycle storage 
for a minimum of 2% of the 
company’s employees within a 
secure space in the buildings 
receiving area in lieu of the 
Bicycle Standards 

Service 
Access and 

Service drives and service 
areas shall not interfere 

Service drives and service 
areas shall not interfere 

5 | P a g e  

 



 

Service 
Areas 

w/parking, driveways or 
walkways and must be 
screened from adjoining 
properties, all public right-of-
way and from the office area 
of any other building which 
share the site. A service area 
shall be provided at the rear 
(side opposite the street) of 
all buildings.  
 

w/parking, driveways or 
walkways and must be 
screened from adjoining 
properties, all public right-of-
way and from the office area of 
any other building which share 
the site. A service area shall 
be provided at the rear (side 
opposite the street) of all 
buildings.  
Within Land Use Area 3, the 
following standards apply: 
For non-residential structures 
100,000sf/greater, and used 
as a Retail Superstore, any 
receiving dock bay or 
compactor area,  must be 
adequately screened from 
public view by plant materials 
within the site perimeter 
buffers.  The min. distance 
between the property line 
along Business Center Drive 
and the doors must be 180 
feet.  The plant materials used 
for screening must include 
evergreen shrubs maintained 
at 6 feet in height, and parking 
lot end islands w/evergreen 
shrubs maintained at 3 feet in 
height.  Canopy trees, 
evergreen shrubs and a variety 
of low shrubs, ornamental 
grasses and ground cover 
must be included to further 
enhance the visual buffer. 

Screening Screening will conform to the 
UDC, except for any 
exclusions listed within the 
Deviations Section. The 
screening for the detention 
facility will consist of a 6-foot 
tall masonry or pre-cast 
masonry wall along the 
eastern side of the facility, 

Screening will conform to the 
UDC, except for any 
exclusions listed within the 
Deviations Section. The 
screening for the detention 
facility will consist of a 6-foot 
tall masonry or pre-cast 
masonry wall along the 
eastern side of the facility, 

6 | P a g e  

 



 

along LUA 2 and 3. The fence 
will be constructed in 
conjunction with the building it 
is screening within LUA 2 and 
3.   

along LUA 2 and 3. The fence 
will be constructed in 
conjunction with the building it 
is screening within LUA 2 and 
3.  The screening for the 
existing regional detention 
facility (Detention Pond A) will 
consist of screening along the 
eastern boundary of the 
detention pond either as: 
1.  6-foot tall pre-cast masonry 
wall 
2.  Landscape buffer, min. 
30.ft. wide.  To adequately 
screen the property from public 
view, the buffer must be 
landscaped with evergreen 
shrubs maintained at a height 
of 3 feet, canopy trees and a 
variety of low shrubs, 
ornamental grasses and 
ground cover to enhance the 
visual buffer.  Trees shall have 
a minimum caliber of 3 inches. 

Detention 
Facility 

The primary detention for this 
development will be located 
along the western boundary 
of the tract.  The detention 
will provide a buffer between 
the proposed commercial 
development and South Gate 
neighborhood. The detention 
facility, including the high 
bank is 176 feet wide. The 
existing Brazoria Drainage 
District ditch is 60 feet wide. 
The combination of these 2 
drainage areas provides a 
single 236 foot wide buffer 
between the existing 
residential and proposed 
commercial. A screen wall 6 
feet tall masonry or pre-cast 
wall will be constructed along 
the east side of the detention 

The primary detention for this 
development will be located 
along the western boundary of 
the tract (Detention Pond A).  
The detention will provide a 
buffer between the proposed 
commercial development and 
South Gate neighborhood. The 
detention facility, including the 
high bank is 176 feet wide. 
The existing Brazoria Drainage 
District ditch is 60 feet wide. 
The combination of these 2 
drainage areas provides a 
single 236 foot wide buffer 
between the existing 
residential and proposed 
commercial. A screen wall 6 
feet tall masonry or pre-cast 
wall will be constructed along 
the east side of the detention 

7 | P a g e  

 



 

facility to enhance the 
screening between uses. The 
wall will be constructed as 
buildings are constructed. 
Landscape plantings of trees 
and shrubs will also be 
incorporated along the 
frontage of CR 59 to provide 
a visual screen from the 
public right-of-way. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

facility to enhance the 
screening between uses. The 
wall will be constructed as 
buildings are constructed. 
Landscape plantings of trees 
and shrubs will also be 
incorporated along the 
frontage of CR 59 to provide a 
visual screen from the public 
right-of-way.  As an option, a 
landscape buffer, as described 
on page 6, Section 10-
Screening, may be used in 
place of the 6-foot wall. 
 
An additional dry detention 
facility (Detention Pond B) will 
be located on the northern 
portion of Land Use Area 3 to 
provide the detention needed 
for the eastern +/- 9.7 acres 
(LUA1). A landscape 
easement no less than 10 feet 
in width and no greater 15 feet 
in width will be provided along 
the southern end of the 
detention basin and along the 
eastern edge of the detention 
basin. This will ensure 
adequate screening between 
the detention facility and the 
commercial property to the 
south as well as Business 
Center Drive to the east.  
Exhibit G-Detention Facility 
shows the proposed 
landscaped easements. The 
landscape buffer will 
incorporate plantings of trees 
and shrubs, as shown in 
Exhibit H.  No screening is 
required between Detention 
Pond A and Detention Pond B. 

8 | P a g e  

 



 

 

Amendment 4:  The applicant proposes to add an additional dry detention area to Land 
Use Area 3, to provide the detention required for the property east of Business Center 
Drive and identified as Land Use Area 1, within the PD. 

Amendment 5:  The applicant proposes to amend Section B: Specific List of Deviations 
as indicated by the below table.  The Section of the UDC, as written in the PD is listed in 
Column 1, the requirement as written in the PD is listed in Column 2 and the proposed 
amendment is listed in Column 3 in red font for new language and a red-strike-through 
for language that is proposed to be deleted. 

Deviation Section Existing Requirement Proposed Amendment 

6.  Section 2.4.4.3.F Regional detention 
facilities are required to be 
incorporated as an 
amenity. The regional 
detention required for this 
development is better 
served as a buffer to the 
single family residential 
than as a lake amenity for 
the project. The total width 
of the detention and 
drainage area is 236 feet. 
The distance, coupled with 
the 6 foot wall provides a 
sufficient buffer and screen 
for the residential 
neighborhood to the west.  
 

Regional detention 
facilities are required to 
be incorporated as an 
amenity. The regional 
detention required for 
this development is 
better served as a buffer 
to the single family 
residential than as a 
lake amenity for the 
project. The total width 
of the detention and 
drainage area is 236 
feet (Detention Pond A). 
The distance, coupled 
with the 6 foot wall 
provides a sufficient 
buffer and screen for the 
residential neighborhood 
to the west.  
Detention for the 
eastern +/- 9.7 acres will 
also be provided by a 
dry detention basin 
(Detention Pond B). The 
detention will be 
screened by 
landscaping along the 
southern and eastern 
edge of the basin to 
create a visual buffer 

9 | P a g e  

 



 

from Business Center 
Drive and the 
neighboring commercial 
property to the south. 
Utilizing this method of 
detention will allow more 
efficient development for 
Land Use Area 1.   

7. Section 2.4.5.1.M Overhead utilities will be 
utilized west of Business 
Center Drive. Power will be 
distributed underground to 
the property east of 
Business Center Drive 
from overhead power 
located in Business Center 
Drive. The underground 
power will be distributed in 
a manner determined by 
Centerpoint. 

Overhead utilities will be 
utilized west of Business 
Center Drive, as 
indicated within Exhibit E. 
Power will be distributed 
underground to the 
property east of Business 
Center Drive, but may 
include above ground 
terminal poles from 
overhead power located 
in Business Center Drive. 
The configuration and 
engineering of 
underground power will 
be determined distributed 
in a manner determined 
by Centerpoint. 

8. Section 2.4.5.1.f 
Bicycle Parking 

Bicycle parking spaces 
shall be provided at an 
amount equal to a 
minimum of 5% of the 
required vehicle parking 
spaces. 
 
Bicycle parking shall be 
conveniently provided for 
all uses allowed in the OP, 
NS, BP-288, GB and GC 
zoning districts. 
 
Each required bicycle 
parking space shall include 
a means to secure 
individual bicycles. 

Bicycle parking spaces 
shall be provided at an 
amount equal to a 
minimum of 5% of the 
required vehicle parking 
spaces. 
 
Bicycle parking shall be 
conveniently provided 
for all uses allowed in 
the OP, NS, BP-288, GB 
and GC zoning districts. 
 

Each required bicycle 
parking space shall 
include a means to 
secure individual 
bicycles. 
 

10 | P a g e  

 



 

Within LUA3, a single 
building over 100,000 sf., 
and used as a Retail 
Superstore, and located 
180 feet from the 
property line shall 
provide bicycle storage 
for a minimum of 2% of 
the company’s 
employees within a 
secure space in the 
building’s receiving area 
in lieu of Bicycle Parking 
Standards. 

9. Section 2.4.5.1.d 
Building Articulation 

All non-residential 
structures 50,000 sf. in 
size or greater, shall 
incorporate architectural 
variation of at least 3 ft. in 
depth for every 25 ft. (not 
cumulatively) in vertical or 
horizontal length.   

All non-residential 
structures 50,000 sf. in 
size or greater, shall 
incorporate architectural 
variation of at least 3 ft. 
in depth for every 25 ft. 
(not cumulatively) in 
vertical or horizontal 
length.   
In LUA3, for all non-
residential structures 
over 100,000 sf., and 
used as a retail 
superstore, front facades 
of any building that faces 
onto a thoroughfare/ 
collector shall incorporate 
architectural variation 
(building mass, offsets, 
trellises, etc.) of at least 2 
feet in depth for 30% of 
the building length and 
material variation for 
every 125 ft. in horizontal 
length. Side facades of 
such buildings shall 
incorporate material 
variation for every 125 ft. 
in horizontal length. 

 

11 | P a g e  

 



 

As part of the amendment, various exhibits are being added/modified to reflect the 
above changes.  Specifically, Exhibit B-1 is being added and includes a survey and 
metes and bounds description of Land Use Areas proposed to be amended; Exhibit G 
(Detention Exhibit) and Exhibit H (Landscape/Screening along Northern Detention 
Basin) are both being added. 

Site History 

The subject property was annexed into the city of Pearland in 1996.  The Business 
Center Planned Development (PD) was originally approved on November 26, 2012 to 
allow for a mix of non-residential uses along State Highway 288 and Business Center 
Drive, with a base zoning of Business Park District-288 (BP-288) and Corridor Overlay 
District (COD).  To date, one (1) amendment to the PD was approved on October 28, 
2013.  The 2013 amendment allowed an existing overhead utility line which was 
relocated due to the construction of Business Center Drive, to remain.    

The PD is divided into three (3) areas identified as Land Use Areas 1, 2 and 3.  In 
addition to the uses permitted or conditionally permitted within the BP-288 zoning 
district located within the Land Use Matrix of the Unified Development Code (UDC), 
each Land Use Area includes a mix of permitted non-residential uses, maximum 
acreages, and design standards.  Various permitted non-residential uses include 
restaurants, hotels/motels/extended stay facilities; auto-related uses (gas station, auto 
repair (minor); retail and museums.  

The subject property is mostly undeveloped, however, a building is currently under 
construction within Land Use Area 2. The site is surrounded by a mix of various uses, 
including single family subdivisions to the south and west; undeveloped land to the 
north, and further north is the Pearland Town Center; and undeveloped land to the east.  
The below table identifies surrounding uses and zoning districts: 

 Zoning Land Use 

North Business Park District-288 (BP-288) 
Pearland Town Center PD 

Undeveloped 
Pearland Town Center 

South City of Manvel Single Family Subdivision 

East Business Park District-288 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) 

Undeveloped 

West Single Family Residential 2 (R2) Southgate Single Family 
Subdivision 

 

 

 
12 | P a g e  

 



Conformance with the Thoroughfare Plan 

The subject property has frontage on County Road 59 and Business Center Drive; both 
secondary thoroughfares, which requires 100 feet of right-of-way.  Existing right-of-
way appears to be of varying widths in some locations along the frontage of the 
property along both thoroughfares.  Additional right-of-way will be assessed and may 
be required as properties are platted within the development. 

Conformance with the Unified Development Code 

The Business Center PD was originally approved in 2012 under the Unified 
Development Code (UDC).  The base zoning district for the PD is the Business Park 
District-288 (BP-288) and the Corridor Overlay District (COD) standards.  The purpose 
of the BP-288 zoning district is to permit large non-residential uses, including retail 
developments in locations with good visibility and roadway access, provided by State 
Highway 288.    

A PD allows for deviations from the base zoning district.  Any standards not 
specifically identified within the PD or the deviations section of the PD, will revert 
back to the UDC.  At the time of platting or subdivision of the property, the area 
regulations of the BP-288 zoning district would apply: 

BP-288 Area Regulation BP-288 Area Regulation 

Minimum Lot Size 1 acre 

Minimum Lot Width 150 ft. 

Minimum Lot Depth 200 ft. 

Minimum Front Yard 25 ft. 

Minimum Side Yard 20 ft. 

Minimum Rear Yard 20 ft. 

Maximum Height 65 ft. 

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 

The subject property is located within the Business Park Future Land Use designation. 
According to the Comprehensive Plan, the area is generally encompassing of the SH 
288 corridor and portions of Beltway 8 nearest SH 288.  The Comprehensive 
Plan recommends a mixed use area developed in coordinated, master-planned, 

13 | P a g e



settings with interdependent and complimentary uses.  Preferred uses include office 
buildings of various heights, regional shopping centers and malls, research and 
development facilities and light manufacturing.  The Business Park PD is in compliance 
with, and meets the intent of the Business Park Future Land Use designation.  
The location of the property, at the intersection of a state highway lends itself for a mix 
of non-residential uses, as indicated by the Comprehensive Plan. 

Platting Status 

A Development Plat was approved in 2013 for approximately 3.35 acres located within 
Land Use Area 2.  Prior to development of any tract within the PD, platting will be 
required. 

Availability of Utilities 

According to GIS records, there is an existing 12 inch water line running along the west 
side of the property along Business Center Drive and an 8 inch water line along the 
north side of County Road 59, southern-most property line.  There is an existing sewer 
line that extends from Land Use Area 3, across Business Center Drive to Land Use 
Area 1.  Utilities will be assessed at the time of platting. 

Impact on Existing and Future Development 

It is not anticipated that the proposed amendment to the Business Center PD will have 
any significant impact on existing or future developments.  With the exception of 
properties to the west and south, all other adjacent properties are either zoned for non-
residential uses, are developed with non-residential uses or continue to remain 
undeveloped.  The property to the west is developed with a single family subdivision; 
however is separated from the subject property via a 176-foot detention pond (Detention 
Pond A) and a 60-foot drainage easement, for a total of 236-foot separation, which will 
provide a sufficient buffer between the non-residential PD and the existing single family 
subdivision. 

Additional Comments 

The request has been reviewed by the Development Review Committee (DRC), and 
there are no further comments. 

Public Notification 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, the owner 
of the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under 
consideration for amendment to the Business Center PD.  Additionally, a legal notice of 
the public hearing was published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was 
placed on the property by the applicant.   

14 | P a g e



Opposition to or Support of Proposed Request 

As of the date of this writing, staff has not received any comments either in opposition to 
or in support of the proposed change in zoning request to amend the PD.   

Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the amendment to the Business Center PD, to amend 
the regulations and permitted uses for Land Use Areas 1 and 3, as identified above, for 
the following reasons: 

1. The amended PD should not cause any adverse impacts to existing or future
developments.  With the exception of properties to the west and south, all other
adjacent properties are either zoned for non-residential uses, are developed with
non-residential uses or continue to remain undeveloped.  The property to the
west is developed with a single family subdivision; however is separated from the
subject property via a 176-foot detention pond (Detention Pond A) and a 60-foot
drainage easement, for a total of 236-foot separation, which will provide a
sufficient buffer between the non-residential PD and the existing single family
subdivision.  Additionally, a 6-foot tall masonry or pre-cast wall; or a 30-foot wide
vegetative buffer will be constructed along the eastern boundary of the detention
facility to enhance the screening between uses.   Further north of the subject
property is the Pearland Town Center, which is developed with a mix of various
uses, including residential.

2. The PD was approved as a non-residential PD and continues to remain as such. 
The non-residential nature of the PD is consistent with intent of the original PD, 
to provide commercial developments, including retail, office, hotel/motel uses, 
with its close proximity to State Highway 288, and fronting on County Road 59 
and Business Center Drive; two secondary thoroughfares.

3. The PD continues to meet the intent of BP-288; the overlay zoning district, to
provide high quality non-residential developments along State Highway 288.

4. The Business Center PD conforms to the intent of the Business Park future 
land use designation of the Comprehensive Plan. The location of the 
property, at the intersection of a state highway lends itself for a mix of non-
residential uses, as indicated by the Comprehensive Plan.

Staff recommends that the following be addressed in the PD prior to first reading:

1. Incorporate graphics and images showing the facades of the proposed
changes to façade materials.

2. Spacing of shrubs included in the landscaped buffer.

15 | P a g e



3. Provide for screening of the proposed Detention Pond B, along the north
property line.

16 | P a g e



Business Center PD

CR 59

SH 288 S

SH 288 N

BRISCOE LN

SH 288 RAMPS ROYCE CIR

ARMSTRONG LN

MILAM LN

30062930

3110

11101

3603
3602

3142

3604

3601

11202

11201

11111

3131

11204

11102

3505

11103

3605 3510

3135

3403

3506

3405

3508

3401

3139 3138
3143

3513

3407

11112

11201

11110

11108

11108

11202

11206

11106

11210
11208

11206

11211

11108

11104

11202

11102

11204

11202

11102

11212

11109

11210 11206
11208

11214

11207

11204

11209

11202

11205

3503

11213

11108
11106

11201

11201

11107

11104

11109

11201

11106
11104

1120511209
11203

11107

11206
11204

11105

11202

11207

11204

11205

11204

11203

11206

11203 11105

11211

11203

3134

310331273123 31113115

1120111213 11209 11205

11208

AERIAL MAP

ZONE CHANGE 2014-15Z

BUSINESS CENTER PD
AMENDMENT

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 333 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Exhibit 2



Business Center PDR-2

BP-288

PUD

SD

CR 59

SH 288 S

SH 288 N

BRISCOE LN

SH 288 RAMPS ROYCE CIR

ARMSTRONG LN

MILAM LN

30062930

3110

11101

3603
3602

3142

3604

3601

11202

11201

3131

11204

11102

3505

11103

3605 3510

3135

3403

3506

3405

3508

3401

3139 3138
3143

3513

11111

3407

11112

11201

11110

11108

11108

11202

11206

11106

11210
11208

11206

11211

11108

11104

11202

11102

11204

11202

11102

11212

11109

11210 11206
11208

11214

11207

11204

11209

11202

11205

3503

11213

11108
11106

11201

11201

11107

11104

11109

11201

11106
11104

1120511209
11203

11107

11206
11204

11105

11202

11207

11204

11205

11204

11203

11206

11203 11105

11211

11203

3134

310331273123 31113115

1120111213 11209 11205

11208

ZONING MAP

ZONE CHANGE 2014-15Z

BUSINESS CENTER PD
AMENDMENT

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 333 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Exhibit 3



Business Center PD

Business Park

Medium Density Residential

CR 59

SH 288 S

SH 288 N

BRISCOE LN

SH 288 RAMPS ROYCE CIR

ARMSTRONG LN

MILAM LN

30062930

3110

11101

3603
3602

3142

3604

3601

11202

11201

11111

3131

11204

11102

3505

11103

3605 3510

3135

3506

3405

3508

3139 3138
3143

3513

3403

3407

11112

11201

11110

11108

11108

11202

11206

11106

11210
11208

11206

11211

11108

11104

11202

3401

11102

11204

11202

11102

11212

11109

11210 11206
11208

11214

11207

11204

11209

11202

11205

3503

11213

11108
11106

11201

11201

11107

11104

11109

11201

11106
11104

1120511209
11203

11107

11206
11204

11105

11202

11207

11204

11205

11204

11203

11206

11203 11105

11211

11203

3134

310331273123 31113115

1120111213 11209 11205

11208

FLUP MAP

ZONE CHANGE 2014-15Z

BUSINESS CENTER PD
AMENDMENT

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 333 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Exhibit 4



Business Center PD

CR 59

SH 288 S
SH 288 N

MADISON DR

GRIMES AVE

HARRIS AVE

SH
 28

8 R
AM

P

BRISCOE LN

DAWSON RD

SH 288 FNTG N

FREESTONE AVE

ARMSTRONG LN

MUSTANG MEADOW LN

S ROYCE CIR

SH 288 RAMP

SH
 28

8 R
AM

P
17717

3006

3050

2930

17725

17717

17667

3110

3502

3504

11101

3131

3505

3603

3503

2845

3239

11302

11203

3602

3616

3143

3102

11208

3203

3142

11201

3303

3513

3306

3604

3601

11202

11201

11202

3127

11201

3501 11111

11204

11204

11301

11102
11218

3502

11203

3501

3503

11213

3507

1402

3211

1402

3512

11103

3605

3404
3402

3406

3602

3110

3307

3510

3135

3508
3506
3504

3111
3210

3127

3612

3408

3610

3403

3506

3606

11211

3608

3407

2911

3002

3302

3604

11311
11205

11304

11209

11401

11207

3106

3510

3614

3307

11112

11215
11213

11217

11206

11301
11303

11307

11309

11311

11201

3302

11311

3123

11110

3003

11216

3207

11312

11312

2841

3206

2822

11304

11304

11108

11303

11303

11216

1130111215

2842

11202

3211

11308

11307

11308

11306

3103

11307

11202

11214 11206

11106

11212
1121011208

11206

11211

11210

2830

11108

11104

11202

11215

3401

11102

11214
11212

11210

11211

11202

11212

11211

11208

11102

11212

11310

11109

11210

11305

2826

11310

11308

11206

11309

11208

11208

11207

3107

11204

11309
11209

2834

11202

11216

2837

11108

11215

11308

3115

11216

11106

2829

11201

11201

11203

11209

11107
11109

11201

11211

11210

1120511209

3311

2833

11210

11208

11206
11204

11212
11202

11207

2838

11212

2825

3114

11206

3307

11303

3007 32153311

3123
2915

2821
3214

31223114

3311

2906

3111

3026

331033153306
3319

3210

31113011

3039

3202
3119

3303
3311

29102918 3118
3002

31023006

3214
3010

3134

3310

3027
3031

3303

2919

3315

2923 3015 3103

30353027
30153019

3302
3031 3218

33143022 30383413

3251

NOTIFICATION MAP

ZONE CHANGE 2014-15Z

BUSINESS CENTER PD
AMENDMENT

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 500 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Exhibit 5



PROPERTY OWNER ADDRESS SUITE CITY STATE ZIP

BEAN KENNETH & CECILIA 11101 DAWSON RD PEARLAND TX 77584

BENNETT JOHN R & RUTH W 3505 KAUFMAN AVE PEARLAND TX 77584
BOLLINGER WILLIAM BLAKE & ALLISON 
DRYDEN BOLLINGER 1415 GALE LN NASHVILLE TN 37212

BRAZORIA COUNTY MUD #25 3200 SOUTHWEST FWY STE 2600 HOUSTON TX 77027

CARILLO MARCO ANTONIO 3143 S ROYCE CIR MANVEL TX 77578

CRUZ FLOR A & MANUEL L 3501 KAUFMAN AVE PEARLAND TX 77584

FISHMAN GEORGE & MARY 3406 HAMPSHIRE ST PEARLAND TX 77581

GOLD STAR DEVELOPMENT 6229 RICHMOND AVE HOUSTON TX 77057

GOLDING FRITZ & MALENE 3146 S ROYCE CIR MANVEL TX 77578

HARRIS LYVESTRA 11103 ARMSTRONG LN PEARLAND TX 77584

HARVISON MELINDA 3407 KERR LN PEARLAND TX 77584

JORDAN LAMAR PO BOX 1650 LAKE JACKSON TX 77566



LINGO SOUTHFORK LTD 3900 MAGNOLIA ST PEARLAND TX 77584

LOPEZ ROMEO JR 3142 S ROYCE CIR MANVEL TX 77578

MCKAIG CLARK C 3509 KAUFMAN AVE PEARLAND TX 77584

OLIVAREZ RAMONA A & ANDRES 11102 EDWARDS AVE PEARLAND TX 77584

PAPPAS RESTAURANTS INC 13939 NORTHWEST FWY HOUSTON TX 77040

PARKSIDE 59/288 LTD 3003 W ALABAMA ST HOUSTON TX 77098

PATEL SAMIR B & TEJAL M 11102 DAWSON RD PEARLAND TX 77584
PITTS GREGORY & LADONNA 11102 BRISCOE LN PEARLAND TX 77584

RIDDLE SIMONE 3401 KERR LN PEARLAND TX 77584

ROBLES PETER & YVONNE ROSALES 832 DAVIS RD LEAGUE CITY TX 77573

SOLORZANO RODOLFO H & MARIA 3507 KAUFMAN AVE PEARLAND TX 77584

SOMERVILLE ERNEST 3405 KERR LN PEARLAND TX 77584

SOUTHGATE COMMUNITY ASSOC PO BOX 3217 PEARLAND TX 77588

STRIPAY MARK 3409 KERR LN PEARLAND TX 77584

SUMNERS BRANDON & TONYA 11103 DAWSON RD PEARLAND TX 77584



TARIQ MUHAMMAD A 3513 KAUFMAN AVE PEARLAND TX 77584

TRAN DANNY T & CELINE P 3403 KERR LN PEARLAND TX 77584

TRAN KIM LOAN 3503 KAUFMAN AVE PEARLAND TX 77584

VIRANI AHMADALI 2814 ACORN WOOD WAY HOUSTON TX 77059

WOODS EMMETT B & BILLIE J 11101 CARSON AVE PEARLAND TX 77584

YLT 288 PARTNERS 5855 SOVEREIGN DR STE B HOUSTON TX 77036

ZAMARRIPA HECTOR & CINDY 11102 ARMSTRONG LN PEARLAND TX 77584



Business Center PD 

-Amendment- 

Prepared for: 

Parkside 59/288, Ltd. 

Prepared by: 

BGE|Kerry R. Gilbert & Associates 

September 4, 2014

Redline Version 3
9.4.14



 

 

 

 

 

Table of Contents 

 

 

I. Introduction ………………………………………………………………………… 1  

    

A. Description of Property 

B. Description of Proposed Development 

   C.  Describe the area of land in acreage and legal description 

D.  Statement as to the purpose and intent of the PD   

 

II. Zoning and Land Uses  ………………………………………………………………… 3 

A. Describe existing zoning district surrounding the site 

B. Describe the acreage difference between the Base Zoning and  

    proposed district 

C. General standards applicable to project   

D. Permitted and conditional uses allowed 

Table: 1 Land Use Area Table  

 

III. Design Standards ………………………………………………………………… 5 

A. Design Standards 

B.  Specific list of deviations. 

C.  All requirements of the Unified Development Code will be met,  

     unless specifically mentioned in this document 

 

IV. Required dedications of land or public improvements  ……………………… 9 

 

V. Exhibits …………………………………………………………………………………… 9 

 

 

A – Location Map 

B – Survey, metes & bounds description-Original 

B.1 - Survey, metes & bounds description-Amendment 

C – Surrounding Properties/ Zoning Map 

D – Land Use Areas 

E – Power Line Exhibit 

F – Landscape/Screening along CR 59 and the Detention Basin 

G – Detention Facility 

H – Landscape/Screening along Northern Detention Basin 

 

 

 

 

 



I. Introduction       

 

A. Description of Property 

 

Parkside 59/288, Ltd. is the owner of the subject property which contains +38.9 acres of 

land and is located at the northwest corner of CR 59 and US 288.  Business Center Drive 

extends north to Broadway, bisecting the property into two developable tracts.  Business 

Center Drive will also provide the primary entry points into each of the two tracts.  

Driveway access will also be taken from CR 59 to the south; however, there will be no 

direct driveway access to US 288 to the east.  A 60 foot wide Brazoria County Drainage 

District Easement and a 176 foot wide detention pond form the western boundary of the 

tract.  South Gate, a single-family residential subdivision is situated west of the subject 

property.  The subject tract is vacant, except for an asphalt roadway (the location of 

future Business Center Drive) that dead ends at northern edge of the property.  Exhibit A 

– Location Map and Exhibit B – Survey depicts the location and boundary of project. 

 

B. Description of Proposed Development 

The location of this project at the intersection of a major highway and a major 

thoroughfare lends itself for commercial, retail, and office development.  There are a 

variety of possible uses for each tract, including small pad sites (banks, restaurants, gas 

station/convenience store, etc.), large big box retail (home improvement store, grocery 

store, etc.), hotel/motel, and office buildings.    

 

Exhibit E Exhibit D– Land Use Areas illustrates how the subject tract is affected by the 

future extension of Business Center Drive.  Business Center Drive bisects the project into 

two commercial areas +9.7 acres east of Business Center Drive and +29.2 acres on the 

west.  The storm water detention requirement of +6.8 acres will be located along the 

western boundary and provide an excellent buffer between the commercial and residential 

development (Detention Pond A).  The width of the proposed detention is 176’ wide which 

provides a significant buffer distance between the residential and commercial 

developments.  Construction of the wall will occur as the development in LUA 2 and LUA 3 

occur. In addition to the 176’ wide detention facility described above, a dry detention pond 

will be located in the northern portion of LUA 3 (Detention Pond B) in order to provide 

detention for the property east of Business Center Drive (LUA 1). 

 

Exhibit E Exhibit D– Land Use Areas shows the location of the detention facilities.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 1 



C.  Describe the area of land in acreage and legal description 

Approximately 38.9 acres comprise the subject site.  Exhibit B – Survey, Metes & Bounds 

description, describes the site.  

 

The August 2014 Amendment to the original Business Center Planned Development is for 

the property described in this document as Land Use Area 1 (+9.7 Acres ) and Land Use 

Area 3 ( +19.7 Acres) only. Land Use Area 2 is specifically omitted due to the fact that the 

property is sold and no revisions are being made to the regulations for the area. In addition, 

land within the detention facility on the western side of the property (Detention Pond A) is 

now owned by the Brazoria County Municipal Utility District No. 34 and therefore is not 

included in the amendment. See Exhibit B.1 - Survey, metes & bounds description-

Amendment and Exhibit D – Land Use Areas. 

 

D.  Statement as to the purpose and intent of the PD   

The intent of this PD is to allow flexibility of uses with the commercial, retail, and office 

land uses within the project.          

 2 



II. Zoning and Land Uses

A. Describe existing zoning district surrounding the site 

The site is zoned BP-288.  The surrounding uses are as follows: 

North: Pearland Town Center PUD and BP-288 

West:  R-2 (Southgate neighborhood, Brazoria County Drainage District Easement) 

South: ETJ (single-family residential use), 

East:  ETJ (vacant) 

Exhibit D Exhibit C – Surrounding Properties/Zoning Map depicts the zoning districts of 

the adjacent tracts. 

B.  Describe the acreage difference between the Base Zoning and proposed district 

The base zoning district is BP-288.  The proposed district overlays the entire 38.9 acre 

tract since the location of each specific land use has not yet been determined.     

C. General standards applicable to project   

Development and land uses along SH 288 will conform to the BP-288 District (Section 

2.4.3.3) and development and land uses along Business Center Drive and CR 59 will 

conform to the Corridor Overlay District (Section 2.4.5.1) except for the specific design 

standards listed in III. Design Standards Section C of this document, and land uses listed in 

the land use table.   

D. Permitted and conditional uses allowed 

The intent of the PD is to allow for a variety of land uses, including a mix of commercial, 

office, hotel/motel, retail and restaurants.  To this end, three distinct Land Use Areas 

(LUA) are being defined that would confine specific land uses to certain portions of the 

tract.  Location and size of a tract coupled with market conditions are factors in 

determining the best use for the tract.  The LUA designations define the best uses for the 

tract and set specific design elements for particular uses.  The design elements set up 

standards based on the land use.    

Exhibit E Exhibit D – Land Use Areas depicts three land use areas and the respective 

acreage within each area.  The table below lists the potential types of uses within each 

LUA plus design elements specific to those uses.  Any land use permitted or conditionally 

permitted in the BP-288 district listed in the UDC Land Use Matrix is allowed along with 

the additional uses listed in the Land Use Area Table within this document.  Any uses 

listed in the Land Use Area Table below are considered Permitted Uses in addition to the 

Permitted uses in the UDC Land Use Matrix for BP-288.  The land uses listed in the table 

below are restricted to that specific Land Use Area.  Additionally, the land uses listed are 

restricted to a maximum acreage within that specific Land Use Area.  The acreage for that 

use is listed next to the use.    

The acreage within each LUA may shift within 15% to allow for flexibility in land uses.  

The size of the LUA could change depending upon the actual use that is constructed so the 

ability to increase and decrease the acreage within the LUA is important.    

3 



 Land Use Area Table 

* Restaurant (Drive-Thru) limited to three (3) establishments in LUA 1 and two (2) establishments in 

LUA 2. 
** Hotel/Motel/Extended Stay limited to two (2) establishments in LUA 1. 

***Gas/Convenience Store limited to one (1) facility in LUA 1 and one (1) facility in LUA 2. 

***Gas/Convenience Store limited to one (1) facility in LUA 2 and one (1) facility in LUA 3. 

Furthermore,   the Gas/Convenience Store in LUA 3 is permitted only if used as an accessory to the 

a Supermarket or similar Anchor Retail Store 

**** Retail Superstore is defined as an establishment that sells a variety of goods and services arranged 

into multiple departments. These departments may include, but are not limited to, consumable foods, 

prepared foods, pharmacy, electronics, etc. 

Types of Uses and Maximum Acreages Design Element 

Land Use 

Area 1 

+ 9.7 Acres 

Restaurant (Drive-thru)*.........(9.7 acres) 

Restaurant (Dine-in)............... (9.7 acres) 

Hotel/Motel and 

Extended Stay**.............(6 acres)

Gas/Convenience Store ***........(3 acres) 

Auto Repair (minor) ...................(5 acres) 

Auto Wash 

(full service/detail) ........(5 acres) 

Auto Wash (self-service) ..........(5 acres) 

Laundry/ Dry Cleaning  .............(2 acres) 

Garden / Nursery Store .............(8 acres) 

Shopping Center .........................(8 acres) 

Pharmacy.....................................(4 acres) 

Shared Driveways 

Orientation of bay windows shall not face Business 

Center Drive or SH 288. 

Drive-thru windows that face the street will be buffered 

per City Corridor Overlay District and BP-288 District 

requirements. 

Land Use 

Area 2 

+5.8 Acres 

Restaurant (Drive-thru)* ........(5.8 acres) 

Restaurant (Dine-in) ...............(5.8 acres) 

Gas/Convenience Store ***........(3 acres) 

Auto Wash (self-service) associated 

      with a gas station only 

Shared Driveways 

Orientation of service bay doors shall not face Business 

Center Drive. 

Drive-thru windows that face the street will be buffered 

per City Corridor Overlay District and BP-288 District 

requirements. 

Land Use 

Area 3 

+23.3 Acres 

Nursing/Convalescent Home….(14 acres) 
Nursing/Convalescent Home….(4 acres) 
Flex / Back Office ...................(12 acres) 

Museum .....................................(5 acres) 

Bio-tech, High-tech 

Manufacturing………………….(10 acres) 

Shopping Center ......................(12 acres) 

Gas/Convenience Store***...(3 acres) 

Auto Wash (self-service) ........(3 acres) 

Retail Superstore****...............(17 acres) 

Additional Uses allowed  
within Retail Superstore: 

Tire Sales  

Auto Repair (Minor) 

Pharmacy 

Liquor sales as permitted by TABC 

Photo Processing 

Food Preparation Services 

(Butcher, Deli, Bakery, etc.) 

Optometry Services 

General food and retail sales 

Shared Driveways 

Nursing/Convalescent Home as defined by the UDC The 

design of the complex will incorporate interior hallways. 

Businesses to be oriented towards Business Center Drive 

or businesses can be oriented towards another business. 

Orientation of overhead doors and service bay doors 

shall not face Business Center Drive except when a 

building is over 100,000 square feet and used as a Retail 

Superstore located a minimum of 180 feet from the front 

property line.  

Flex/Back Office and Bio-tech, High tech Manufacturing 

to be one-story industrial product with tilt wall or similar 

concrete construction that can accommodate 25% to 

100% office use; dock high doors shall not face Business 

Center Drive. 

The proposed detention facility (Detention Pond B) along 

the North property line, may be adjusted within the 

boundary of LUA 3 so long as screening is provided per 

the regulations set on page 6 of this document.  

4 



III. Design Standards 

A. Design Standards 

  

1. Exterior Materials and Colors:  No more than three (3) dominant materials should be 

used on a building exterior.  Acceptable materials are concrete, tilt wall concrete, 

concrete block, glass, glass block, brick, split face concrete block, stone, stucco, and 

trade designs, as permitted in Sec 2.6.2.1 of UDC, and as approved by the City Planner.    

Earth tones with limited pastel alternative as recommended for dominant wall colors for 

build materials.  An accent color may be applied to trim, fascia boards, door panels, or 

miscellaneous metals.  Accent colors will not exceed more than 20% of the building 

façade for any side of the building.  Prohibited colors include colors considered to be 

fluorescent, iridescent, or dayglo.      

 

Within Land Use Area 3 (LUA3) only, the following standard applies: 

 

For all non-residential structures one hundred thousand (100,000) square feet in 

size or greater and used as a Retail Superstore located a minimum of 180 feet 

from the front property line, acceptable front façade materials of any building that 

faces onto a thoroughfare or collector may include up to a combined maximum of 

65% architectural metal panel (rib and/or textured).  Side facades of such buildings 

may include up to a combined maximum of 75% architectural metal panel (rib 

and/or textured).     

     

2. Minimum Setback for Structures: The minimum setback for structures along the public 

right-of-way shall be twenty (20) feet.   

 

3. Minimum Setback for Parking Buffer: The minimum setback for the off-street parking, 

maneuvering and loading area from the right-of-way shall be fifteen (15) feet. 

   

4. Landscaping: A landscaping plan will be developed along the perimeter of the project 

to ensure uniformity.  The landscaping plan will be in conformance with the Corridor 

Overlay District along Business Center Drive and CR 59 and BP-288 District along SH 

288 for landscaping, parking lot screening, trash receptacle screening and tree plantings, 

except the minimum setback, which is discussed above.    

 

5. Lighting:    Lighting in the parking lots and on the commercial buildings will be in 

conformance with the current City of Pearland Code. 

 

6. Outside Storage: Outside storage operations are allowed only for those businesses in 

which outside storage is a function of the business, such as a nursery.  The outside 

storage must be screened from public view and those standards will be in conformance 

with Sec 4.2.4.1 plus in no case shall outside storage be permitted along any yard that 

abuts any street or public right-of-way. 

 

 

 

 

 5 



7. Parking:  On and off street parking requirements will be in conformance with the City

of Pearland UDC.  Bicycle parking will also be in conformance with the Section 2.4.5.1.F 

in the Corridor Overly District. 

However, within Land Use Area 3 (LUA3), a single building over one hundred thousand 

(100,000) square feet that is used as a Retail Superstore and is located a minimum of 180 

feet from the front property line may provide bicycle storage for a minimum of two (2) 

percent of the companies employees within a secure space in the buildings receiving area 

in lieu of the Bicycle Parking standards.

8. Service Access and Service Areas: Service drives and service areas shall not interfere

with parking, driveways or walkways and must be screened from adjoining properties, all 

public right-of-way and from the office area of any other building which share the site.  

A service area shall be provided at the rear (side opposite the street) of all buildings.   

Within Land Use Area 3 (LUA3) only, the following standard applies: 

For a non-residential structures one hundred thousand (100,000) square feet in 

size or greater that is used as a Retail Superstore and located a minimum of 180 

feet from the front property line, any receiving dock bay or compactor area must be 

adequately screened from public view by plant materials within the site perimeter 

buffers. The minimum distance between the property line along Business Center 

Drive and the doors must be one hundred and eighty (180) feet. The plant materials 

used as screening must include evergreen shrubs maintained at 6' in height, and 

parking lot end islands with evergreen shrubs maintained at 3' in height. Canopy 

trees, evergreen shrubs, and a variety of low shrubs, ornamental grasses, and 

groundcovers must be included to further enhance the visual buffer. 

9. Vehicular Access: Location of ingress and egress will be controlled.  Vehicular access

will be designed to minimize auto-pedestrian conflicts, manage curb cut distances along 

the public right-of-way, and minimize automobile conflicts.  Shared driveways will be 

planned to limit the number of driveways along CR 59 and Business Center Drive.   

10. Screening: Screening will conform to the City of Pearland UDC except for any

exclusions listed below in Section B.  The screening for the detention facility will consist 

of a six (6) foot tall masonry or pre-cast masonry wall along the eastern side of the 

facility, along LUA 2 and 3. The fence will be constructed in conjunction with the building 

it is screening within LUA 2 and 3. The screening for the existing regional detention 

facility (Detention Pond A) will consist of screening along the eastern boundary of the 

detention pond either as: 

1) A 6 foot tall pre-cast masonry wall

2) A landscape buffer consisting of a minimum thirty (30) foot wide area.  To

adequately screen the Property from public view, the buffer must be

landscaped with evergreen shrubs maintained at a 3' height, canopy trees, and

a variety of low shrubs, ornamental grasses and groundcover to enhance the

visual buffer. Trees shall have a minimum caliber of 3 inches.

6 



11. Utilities:  Overhead power lines exist along the north side of CR 59 and inside the 

right of way of Business Center Drive.  The overhead line along Business Center Drive 

will remain in place and provide primary power for all land east of Business Center Drive.  

Additionally, new overhead lines will be constructed by Centerpoint along the west 

boundary of the Property, as shown on Exhibit E.  Overhead lines will be used to 

distribute power, as shown on Exhibit E.  Overhead power shall setback a minimum of 

twenty (20) feet behind the front of the building structure closest to Business Center 

Drive or 150’ from the Business Center Drive right-of-way line, whichever is greater, so 

to maintain clean view corridors along Business Center Drive.  The City Planner may 

review the screening requirements to minimize the view of the overhead poles from 

Business Center Drive.  As sites are sold and developed, utilities to these sites will be 

constructed per the location specified listed above and as shown on Exhibit E.  Exhibit E 

– Utility Plan depicts the location of existing and proposed overhead power lines. 

 

*Underground power delivery to Land Use Area 1 may include above ground terminal 

poles.  The configuration and engineering of underground power will be determined by 

Centerpoint. All transformers and similar equipment need to be ground mounted, and not 

pole mounted, for any connection to or extension from existing overhead lines along 

Business Center Drive.  It should be noted, however, that underground service may 

require a terminal pole to initiate service.  This provision shall include the 150' setback 

for above ground power along Business Center right-of-way. Additionally, ground 

mounted transformers or similar equipment shall be screened per UDC Section 4.2.4.1 

(d), General Screening. 

 

12. Detention Facility:  The primary detention for this development will be located along 

the western boundary of the tract (Detention Pond A).  The detention will provide a 

buffer between the proposed commercial development and the South Gate neighborhood.  

The detention facility (including the high bank and berm) is 176 feet wide.  The existing 

Brazoria Drainage District ditch is 60 feet wide.  The combination of these two drainage 

areas provides a single, 236 foot wide buffer between the existing residential and 

proposed commercial.  A screen wall, six (6’) tall masonry or pre-cast wall will be 

constructed along the east side of the detention facility to enhance the screening 

between uses. The wall will be constructed as buildings are constructed.  Landscape 

plantings of trees and shrubs will also be incorporated along the frontage of CR 59 to 

provide a visual screen from the public right-of-way. As an option, a landscape buffer, as 

described on the page 6 under Section 10-Screening, may be used in place of the six (6) 

foot wall.      

 

An additional dry detention facility (Detention Pond B) will be located on the northern 

portion of Land Use Area 3 to provide the detention needed for the eastern +9.7 acres 

(LUA1). A landscape easement no less than ten (10) feet in width and no greater than 

fifteen (15) feet in width will be provided along the southern end of the detention basin 

and along the eastern edge of the detention basin. This will ensure adequate screening 

between the detention facility and the commercial property to the south as well as 

Business Center Drive to the east. Exhibit G – Detention Facility, shows the proposed 

landscape easements. The landscape buffer will incorporate plantings of trees and shrubs 

as shown in Exhibit H. No screening is required between Detention Pond A and Detention 

Pond B.  

 7 



B.  Specific list of deviations. 

 

1. Section 2.4.5.1.C.1 and Section 2.4.4.3.C:  Land Use Area 1 has dual frontage for Land 

Use Area 1 and driveway access to the site is limited to Business Center Drive.  A 

twenty foot (20’) front building line along both sides of Business Center Drive allows 

for better design of the project.  

2. Section 2.4.5.1.C.2:    A setback of fifteen feet (15’) for off-street parking, 

maneuvering and loading area within the project will allow for better design of the 

tract.   

3. Section 2.4.5.1.D.2.d: Building materials are discussed above and include restrictions 

in the Corridor Overlay District.  Trade Designs shall be approved by the City 

Planner. 

4. Section 2.4.5.1.D.3: Building colors are limited to earth tones and pastel as discussed 

above, and should not require the additional approval of the Planning Director.  

5. Section 2.4.4.3.A.1: Permitted uses in BP-288 are listed on the UDC Land Use Matrix.  

We request additional uses be permitted as listed in the Land Use Table in Section 2 

above.  Prohibited uses include “Pet Care Facility/Animal Kennel (with outdoor pens)” 

and “Office, Parole-Probation, Bail Bonds”.    

6. Section 2.4.4.3.F: The regional detention required for this development is better 

served as a buffer to the single family residential than as a lake amenity for the 

project.  The total width of the detention and drainage area is 236 feet (Detention 

Pond A).  The distance, coupled with the six foot (6’) wall provides a sufficient buffer 

and screen for the residential neighborhood to the west.  

Detention for the eastern + 9.7 acres will also be provided by a dry detention basin 

(Detention Pond B). The detention will be screened by landscaping along the southern 

and eastern edge of the basin to create a visual buffer from Business Center Drive 

and the neighboring commercial property to the south. Utilizing this method of 

detention will allow more efficient development for Land Use Area 1.  

7. Section 2.4.5.1.M: Overhead utilities will be utilized west of Business Center Drive.  

Overhead lines will be setback a minimum of 150’ from Business Center Drive.  Power 

will be distributed underground to the Property east of Business Center Drive but may 

include above ground terminal poles.  The configuration and engineering of 

underground power will be determined by Centerpoint. 

8.  Section 2.4.5.1.f  Bicycle Parking 

Within Land Use Area 3 (LUA3), a non-residential structure over one hundred 

thousand (100,000) square feet used as a Retail Superstore and located a minimum of 

180 feet from the front property line, shall provide bicycle storage for a minimum of 

two (2) percent of the companies employees within a secure space in the buildings 

receiving area in lieu of the Bicycle Parking standards. 

9.  Section 2.4.5.1.d Building Articulation 

In Land Use Area 3, for all non-residential structures one hundred thousand (100,000) 

square feet in size or greater used as a Retail Superstore and located a minimum of 

180 feet from the front property line, front façades of any building that faces onto a 

thoroughfare or collector shall incorporate architectural variation (building mass 

offsets, trellises, etc.) of at least two (2) feet in depth for 30% of the building length 

and material variation for every 125’ in horizontal length. Side facades of such 

buildings shall incorporate material variation for every 125’ in horizontal length. 

 
 8 



C.  All requirements of the Unified Development Code will be met, unless specifically 

mentioned in this document 

 

IV. Required dedications of land or public improvements 

This development is primarily commercial, retail and office and therefore no dedication to 

parkland required.   

 

V. Exhibits 

A – Location Map 

B – Survey, metes & bounds description-Original 

B.1 - Survey, metes & bounds description-Amendment 

C – Surrounding Properties/ Zoning Map 

D – Land Use Areas 

E – Power Line Exhibit 

F – Landscape/Screening along CR 59 and the Detention Basin 

G – Detention Exhibit 

H – Landscape/Screening along Northern Detention Basin 

 

 

 

 9 

































Exhibit B 

Survey and 

Metes & Bounds 

















Exhibit B-1 

Survey and 

Metes & Bounds 













R-2

PUD

RE NSOP

GC

BP-288

GC

BP-288

ETJ

RE

ETJ
R-1

PUD
RE

RE

PUD

PUD

ETJ

GC
GB

ETJ

R-3

NS

BP-288

PUD

ETJ

R-1

GB

OP

PUD

R-1

GB
GB

R-3

PUD

GB

GB

GBNS

R-3

R-2

SR-12

PUD

S
.H

. 
2

8
8

C.R. 59
SOUTHFORK DR.

F.M. 518 / BROADWAY

C.R. 92 / BROADWAY

S
.H

. 
2

8
8

SITE

S
.H

. 
2

8
8

C.R. 59
SOUTHFORK DR.

F.M. 518 / BROADWAY

C.R. 92 / BROADWAY

S
.H

. 
2

8
8

a zoning map for

prepared for

B U S I N E S S  C E N T E R  P D
± 3 8 . 9  AC R E S  O F  L A N D

PA R K S I D E  5 9 / 2 8 8 ,  LT D .

©2012 Kerry R. Gi lbert & Associates, Inc.,  A
l l  R

ights R
eserved

JUNE 15, 2012
KGA #I-175A

NOT TO SCALE

23501 Cinco Ranch Blvd.
Suite A-250

Katy, Texas 77494
(281) 579-0340

Fax (281) 579-8212

THIS DRAWING IS A PICTORIAL REPRESENTATION FOR PRESENTATION PURPOSES ONLY AND IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE.  
FURTHER, SAID DRAWING IS A SCANNED IMAGE ONLY AND IS NOT FOR COMPUTATION OR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES.  
THIS DRAWING MAY OR MAY NOT INCORPORATE INFORMATION AND/OR DATA PROVIDED TO KERRY R. GILBERT & 
ASSOCIATES, INC. BY OTHER CONSULTANTS RELATIVE TO ENGINEERING AND DRAINAGE, FLOOD PLAINS AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES AND SHOULD NOT BE RELIED UPON FOR ANY PURPOSE.  NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR 
IMPLIED, CONCERNING THE ACTUAL DESIGN, LOCATION, AND CHARACTER OF THE FACILITES SHOWN ON THIS MAP 
ARE INTENDED.  ADDITIONALLY, NO WARRANTY IS MADE TO THE ACCURACY OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED 
HEREIN.

©2012 KERRY R. GILBERT & ASSOCIATES, INC.,  ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

CE
X

H
IB

IT

current zoning map



LAND USE AREA 3

LAND USE AREA 2

LAND USE
AREA 1

±9.7 acres

60’

176’

60
’ D

R
A

IN
A

G
E 

R
O

W

B
U

SI
N

ES
S 

C
EN

TE
R

 D
R

IV
E

C.R. 59 / SOUTHFORK

±5.9 acres

±23.3 acres
(±19.7 acres

excluding  western
detention facility)

Exact location to be determined

 D
ET

EN
TI

O
N

  P
O

N
D

 A
PROPOSED 

DETENTION POND B
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 L
O

C
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

SC
R

EE
N

W
A

LL

ST
AT

E 
 H

IG
H

W
AY

  2
88

George Fishman And
Mary Fishman

Gold Star
Development

YLT 288
Partners

South Gate
Section One

South Gate
Section Four

Ahmadali
Virani

LAND USE AREA 3

LAND USE AREA 2

LAND USE
AREA 1

±9.7 acres

60’

176’

60
’ D

R
A

IN
A

G
E 

R
O

W

B
U

SI
N

ES
S 

C
EN

TE
R

 D
R

IV
E

C.R. 59 / SOUTHFORK

±5.9 acres

±23.3 acres
(±19.7 acres

excluding  western
detention facility)

Exact location to be determined

 D
ET

EN
TI

O
N

  P
O

N
D

 A
PROPOSED 

DETENTION POND B
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 L
O

C
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

SC
R

EE
N

W
A

LL

AUGUST 12, 2014
KGA #I-175A

SCALE

0 20010050

a land use area exhibit for

prepared for

B U S I N E S S  C E N T E R  P D
± 3 8 . 9  AC R E S  O F  L A N D

PA R K S I D E  5 9 / 2 8 8 ,  LT D .
DE

X
H

IB
IT

land use areas

BGE | KERRY R. GILBERT &
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

E
S

B
G

E
 |  K

E
R

R
Y

 R
.  G

ILBERT & ASSOCIATES

©
20

14
 B

G
E

 | 
K

E
R

R
Y

 R
. G

IL
BE

RT 
& A

SSOCIATES, All Rights Reserved

THIS DRAWING IS A PICTORIAL REPRESENTATION FOR PRESENTATION PURPOSES ONLY AND IS 
SUBJECT TO CHANGE.  FURTHER, SAID DRAWING IS A SCANNED IMAGE ONLY AND IS NOT FOR 
COMPUTATION OR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES.  THIS DRAWING MAY OR MAY NOT 
INCORPORATE INFORMATION AND/OR DATA PROVIDED TO BGE |  KERRY R. GILBERT & 
ASSOCIATES BY OTHER CONSULTANTS RELATIVE TO ENGINEERING AND DRAINAGE, FLOOD 
PLAINS AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES AND SHOULD NOT BE RELIED UPON FOR ANY PURPOSE.  
NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, CONCERNING THE ACTUAL DESIGN, LOCATION, AND 
CHARACTER OF THE FACILITATES SHOWN ON THIS MAP ARE INTENDED.  ADDITIONALLY, NO 
WARRANTY IS MADE TO THE ACCURACY OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN.

©2014 BGE |  KERRY R. GILBERT & ASSOCIATES, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

23501 Cinco Ranch Blvd.
Suite A-250

Katy, Texas 77494
(281) 579-0340

Fax (281) 579-8212

Land Planning ConsultantsB G E  |  K E R R Y  R .  G I L B E R T  &  A S S O C I A T E S



LAND USE AREA 3
±23.3 acres
(±19.7 acres

excluding  western
detention facility)

Exact location to be determined

 D
ET

EN
TI

O
N

  P
O

N
D

 A

PROPOSED 
DETENTION POND B

ST
AT

E 
 H

IG
H

W
AY

  2
88

George Fishman And
Mary Fishman

Gold Star
Development

YLT 288
Partners

South Gate
Section One

South Gate
Section Four

Ahmadali
Virani

LAND USE
AREA 2

LAND USE
AREA 1

±5.9 acres

±9.7 acres

60’

176’

150’

M
IN

. 1
50

’

60
’ D

R
A

IN
A

G
E 

R
O

W

M
IN

. O
V

E
R

H
E

A
D

 P
O

W
E

R
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

 D
ET

EN
TI

O
N

  P
O

N
D

 A

B
U

SI
N

ES
S 

C
EN

TE
R

 D
R

IV
E

C.R. 59 / SOUTHFORK

LAND USE AREA 3
±23.3 acres
(±19.7 acres

excluding  western
detention facility)

PROPOSED 
DETENTION POND B

Exact location to be determined

E
AUGUST 12 2014

KGA #I-175A

SCALE

0 20010050

THIS DRAWING IS A PICTORIAL REPRESENTATION FOR PRESENTATION PURPOSES ONLY AND IS 
SUBJECT TO CHANGE.  FURTHER, SAID DRAWING IS A SCANNED IMAGE ONLY AND IS NOT FOR 
COMPUTATION OR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES.  THIS DRAWING MAY OR MAY NOT INCORPORATE 
INFORMATION AND/OR DATA PROVIDED TO KERRY R. GILBERT & ASSOCIATES, INC. BY OTHER 
CONSULTANTS RELATIVE TO ENGINEERING AND DRAINAGE, FLOOD PLAINS AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
ISSUES AND SHOULD NOT BE RELIED UPON FOR ANY PURPOSE.  NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR 
IMPLIED, CONCERNING THE ACTUAL DESIGN, LOCATION, AND CHARACTER OF THE FACILITES 
SHOWN ON THIS MAP ARE INTENDED.  ADDITIONALLY, NO WARRANTY IS MADE TO THE ACCURACY 
OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN.

©2012 KERRY R. GILBERT & ASSOCIATES, INC.,  ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

a power line exhibit for

prepared for

B U S I N E S S  C E N T E R  P D
± 3 8 . 9  AC R E S  O F  L A N D

PA R K S I D E  5 9 / 2 8 8 ,  LT D .

power line locations

LEGEND
EXISTING OVERHEAD SERVICE

PROPOSED* OVERHEAD SERVICE

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND SERVICE

E
X

H
IB

IT

*LOCATION MEANT AS A DEPICTION ONLY; FINAL
LOCATION SUBJECT TO CENTERPOINT APPROVAL
AND COORDINATION.

NOTE: All transformers and similar equipment need to be ground mounted, and not pole mounted, for any connection to or extension from existing overhead
lines along Business Center Drive.  It should be noted, however, that underground service may require a terminal pole to initiate service.  This provision shall
include the 150' setback for above ground power along Business Center right-of-way. Additionally, ground mounted transformers or similar equipment shall be
screened per UDC Section 4.2.4.1 (d), General Screening.

BGE | KERRY R. GILBERT &
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

E
S

B
G

E
 |  K

E
R

R
Y

 R
.  G

ILBERT & ASSOCIATES

©
20

14
 B

G
E

 | 
K

E
R

R
Y

 R
. G

IL
BE

RT 
& A

SSOCIATES, All Rights Reserved

23501 Cinco Ranch Blvd.
Suite A-250

Katy, Texas 77494
(281) 579-0340

Fax (281) 579-8212

Land Planning ConsultantsB G E  |  K E R R Y  R .  G I L B E R T  &  A S S O C I A T E S





LAND USE
AREA 3

LAND USE
AREA 2

LAND USE
AREA 1

60’

176’

60
’ D

R
A

IN
A

G
E 

R
O

W

B
U

SI
N

ES
S 

C
EN

TE
R

 D
R

IV
E

C.R. 59 / SOUTHFORK

40’ Landscape 
Easement

10’-15’  Landscape 

Easement

(exact location to be determined)

 D
ET

EN
TI

O
N

  P
O

N
D

 A
PROPOSED 

DETENTION POND B
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 L
O

C
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

SC
R

EE
N

W
A

LL

ST
AT

E 
 H

IG
H

W
AY

  2
88

George Fishman And
Mary Fishman

Gold Star
Development

YLT 288
Partners

South Gate
Section One

South Gate
Section Four

Ahmadali
Virani

LAND USE
AREA 3

LAND USE
AREA 2

LAND USE
AREA 1

60’

176’

60
’ D

R
A

IN
A

G
E 

R
O

W

B
U

SI
N

ES
S 

C
EN

TE
R

 D
R

IV
E

C.R. 59 / SOUTHFORK

40’ Landscape 
Easement

10’-15’  Landscape 

Easement

(exact location to be determined)

 D
ET

EN
TI

O
N

  P
O

N
D

 A
PROPOSED 

DETENTION POND B
PR

O
PO

SE
D

 L
O

C
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

SC
R

EE
N

W
A

LL

AUGUST 12, 2014
KGA #I-175A

SCALE

0 20010050

a detention exhibit for

prepared for

B U S I N E S S  C E N T E R  P D
± 3 8 . 9  AC R E S  O F  L A N D

PA R K S I D E  5 9 / 2 8 8 ,  LT D .
GE

X
H

IB
IT

Detention Facility

BGE | KERRY R. GILBERT &
 A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

E
S

B
G

E
 |  K

E
R

R
Y

 R
.  G

ILBERT & ASSOCIATES

©
20

14
 B

G
E

 | 
K

E
R

R
Y

 R
. G

IL
BE

RT 
& A

SSOCIATES, All Rights Reserved

THIS DRAWING IS A PICTORIAL REPRESENTATION FOR PRESENTATION PURPOSES ONLY AND IS 
SUBJECT TO CHANGE.  FURTHER, SAID DRAWING IS A SCANNED IMAGE ONLY AND IS NOT FOR 
COMPUTATION OR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES.  THIS DRAWING MAY OR MAY NOT 
INCORPORATE INFORMATION AND/OR DATA PROVIDED TO BGE |  KERRY R. GILBERT & 
ASSOCIATES BY OTHER CONSULTANTS RELATIVE TO ENGINEERING AND DRAINAGE, FLOOD 
PLAINS AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES AND SHOULD NOT BE RELIED UPON FOR ANY PURPOSE.  
NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, CONCERNING THE ACTUAL DESIGN, LOCATION, AND 
CHARACTER OF THE FACILITATES SHOWN ON THIS MAP ARE INTENDED.  ADDITIONALLY, NO 
WARRANTY IS MADE TO THE ACCURACY OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN.

©2014 BGE |  KERRY R. GILBERT & ASSOCIATES, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

23501 Cinco Ranch Blvd.
Suite A-250

Katy, Texas 77494
(281) 579-0340

Fax (281) 579-8212

Land Planning ConsultantsB G E  |  K E R R Y  R .  G I L B E R T  &  A S S O C I A T E S























P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

E 
 
 

 



 
 

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING 
THE CITY COUNCIL AND THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2014 AT 6:30 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS - CITY HALL-3519 LIBERTY DRIVE 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 

 
Zone Change Application No. 2014-16Z 
 
A request of LJA Engineering, applicant; on behalf of A S 121 Pearland Parkway-
Broadway Street, L.P., owner; for a change in zoning to amend the Province 
Village PD, on approximately 1.707 acres of land, to wit: 
 

 Legal Description:  Being 1.707 acres of land located in the Thomas J. Green 
 Survey, Abstract 198, Brazoria County, Texas, more particularly being all of Lot A 
 and a portion of Lot  B, Block 1 of Amending Plat No. 1, Province Village Drive, 
 Office Park and Reserves, a subdivision of record under Doc # 2008019410 of the 
 Official Public Records of Brazoria County, Texas (B.C.O.P.R.). 
  

General Location:  Southeast corner of Province Village Drive and Pearland 
Parkway, Pearland, Texas 
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 
 
A. STAFF REPORT 
B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 
C. STAFF WRAP UP 

 
IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 
 
V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that 
appropriate arrangements can be made. 

 

Page 1 of 1 – 9/15/2014    
 



 

 

Memo 
To:  City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission 

From:  Planning Department 

Date:  September 15, 2014 
 
Re: Zone Change Application Number 2014-16Z 

 A request of LJA Engineering, applicant; on behalf of A S 
       121 Pearland Parkway-Broadway Street, L.P., owner; for  
        a change in zoning to amend the Province Village PD, on  
        approximately 1.707 acres of land 

Proposal 

The applicant proposes a change in zoning to amend the Province Village Planned 
Development (PD) on approximately 1.707 acres of the total 47.65 acres included within 
the PD.  No other changes are proposed to any land included within the PD.  The 
proposed amendment will be the third amendment since the adoption of the PD, and the 
second amendment this year (2014).   The subject 1.707 acres was included in a 15 
acre tract of land identified as Tract 1 when the PD was originally adopted.  As a result 
of the previous amendment this year, Tract 1 was reduced to approximately 8 acres. 
Currently the property allows for Office and Professional (OP) uses with few exceptions.  
The purpose of the amendment is two-fold: 

1. To change the overlay zoning district for the approximately 1.707 acre- site from 
Office and Professional (OP) to General Business (GB), with various limitations 
on allowable uses as identified on pages 3-4 of the proposed amendment. 

2. To impose various building architectural, landscaping and signage restrictions to 
compliment the bank building, just north of the subject property; also included 
within the Province Village PD. 

The below table illustrates the proposed change to the PD, highlighted in red font.  For a 
historical perspective of the two preceding amendments, see the Staff Report included 
within this packet. 

 

 

1 | P a g e  

 



Tract Acreage Overlay Zoning District Permitted Uses 

1 8 OP (8 acres) (6.293 acres) 
GB (1.707 acres) 

• Non-residential uses allowed
within the OP zoning district

• Detention
• Mixed Use Retail Building

C 5.6 R-4 • Single Family
2 13.52 GB • Non-residential uses allowed

within the GB zoning district
• Detention

B 13.4 R-4 • Single Family
• Park

3 5.74 R-4 • Single Family

The applicant also proposes various changes pertaining to design standards, 
including façade; signage; landscaping and landscaping enhancements; and 
removal of previously approved regulations regarding fencing.  For specific 
changes, see the Staff Report included within this packet.  

Public Notification/Comment 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, the owner 
of the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under 
consideration for the amendment to the Province Village PD amendment.  Additionally, 
a legal notice of the public hearing was published in the local newspaper, and a 
notification sign was placed on the property by the applicant. As of the date of this 
writing, staff has not received any returned notices from property owners within 200 feet 
of the site.  

Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the request to amend the zoning regulations for the 
1.707 acre site from an overlay district of OP to an overlay district of GB, for the 
following reasons: 

1. The proposed GB overlay district is compatible with surrounding uses, as it is
surrounded by non-residential uses and future non-residential uses, including the
existing Lowes, just south of the site; a retail center southwest of the site
including HEB and various other non-residential uses/future non-residential uses.
Additionally, just west of the site, a retail center is currently under construction.

2. The proposed building and signage will be compatible with the existing bank just
north of the site to create an aesthetically pleasing development.

2 | P a g e



3. The applicant proposes additional landscaping above what is required by the
UDC.  Additionally, enhanced landscaping will be provided at the corner of
Province Village Drive and along Pearland Parkway to accentuate the entrance
to Province Village Drive.

Staff Condition: 

1. Staff recommends that a note is added in the PD that the development will  
comply with all Corridor Overlay District (COD) standards along Pearland 
Parkway, including street trees, ornamental trees, etc.  All standards along 
Province Village Drive shall follow the GB zoning district, unless included within 
the PD as a variation.

2. The applicant has indicated the intent to meet the sign regulations of the UDC. 
However, the sign exhibit does not meet the requirements of the UDC, as it 
relates to the effective area of the sign.  Staff recommends that the exhibit is 
modified accordingly.

Exhibits 

1. Staff Report

2. Aerial Map

3. Zoning Map

4. Future Land Use Map

5. Notification Map

6. Notification List

7. Proposed Amendment

3 | P a g e



Summary of Request 

The applicant proposes a change in zoning to amend the Province Village Planned 
Development (PD) on approximately 1.707 acres of the total 47.65 acres included within 
the PD.  Currently the subject 1.707 acres is undeveloped and is located within the 
original Tract 1 of the PD.  As a result of the amendment approved in June, 2014, the 
acreage within Tract 1 was decreased from 15 acres to approximately 8 acres of land.  
Tract 1 is allocated to Office and Professional (OP) uses, including the 1.5 acre site 
which is developed with Hometown Bank located at the northeast corner of Province 
Village Drive and Pearland Parkway; 5.9 acres located on the south side of Province 
Village Drive and just west of Pearland Parkway, including the subject 1.707 acre site; 
and detention on a 1.5 acre site on the north side of Province Village Drive. 

 According to the applicant, the purpose of the amendment is two-fold: 

1. To change the overlay zoning district for an approximately 1.707 acre site located
within Tract 1; and at the southeast corner of Province Village Drive and
Pearland Parkway from OP to General Business (GB), with various limitations on
allowable uses as identified on pages 3-4 of the proposed amendment to the
Province Village PD; and

2. To impose various design standards pertaining to building façade; signage;
landscaping; and fencing and screening in order to compliment the Hometown
Bank site, just north of the subject property; and also included within the
Province Village PD.

Site History 

The original Province Village PD was approved in June, 2005, and allowed for a mixed-
use development including townhomes/condominiums, garden-style single family 
homes, General Business (GB) non-residential uses; Office and Professional (OP) non-

Exhibit 1 
Staff Report 

 

1 | P a g e



residential uses; common open space, detention and a park.  According to the original 
PD, specific amenities included approximately 16% (+/- 7 acres) of land to be dedicated 
to parks, recreation, trails and open/green space.  Approximately 12% of the site was 
allocated for detention.  Other amenities included entry statements at Pearland Parkway 
and Province Village Drive (which was not constructed at the time), a fully 
landscaped boulevard entry at Country Club Drive with enhanced landscaping 
irrigation.  A 6-foot high masonry screening wall was to be constructed along the 
southern property line, adjacent to Tract 1, just north of Lowes and along the 
western and eastern property lines of Tract 2.  The PD included photographic 
depictions of facades, but no specific details.  Language in the PD stated “actual 
design may vary, however, in general would consist of masonry and glass.” 

The PD was divided into three (3) different areas with varying uses identified as Tract 1, 
Tract 2 and Tract 3.  Tract 1 included 15 acres and was bounded by Pearland Parkway 
to the west, Clear Creek Park residential subdivision to the north and just north of 
Lowes located along Pearland Parkway and Broadway.  Tract 2 included approximately 
29.92 acres bounded by Broadway Street to the south, on the east by a Centerpoint 
Electrical substation, and west and southwest of Lowes.  Tract 3 included approximately 
5.74 acres, and was bounded on the east by Country Club Drive. 

The below table illustrates the originally approved acreage, overlay zoning district and 
allowed uses for each tract: 

Tract Acreage Overlay Zoning 
District 

Permitted Uses 

1 15 R-4 
OP 

• Garden Homes
• Non-residential uses allowed within the OP

zoning district
• Detention

2 26.92 R-4 
GB 

• Townhomes/Condominiums
• Non-residential uses allowed within the GB

zoning district
• Detention
• Park

3 5.74 R-4 • Garden Homes

The Province Village PD was amended in 2009 to change the zoning of the entire 15 
acres within Tract 1 to OP uses, with limitations and various restrictions on the bank site 
located on the north side of Province Village Drive.  Amenities included 4.99 acres of 
open space, the original ½ acre park at the center of the project remained, including the 

2 | P a g e



2.8 acre trail system that would provide connection to Clear Creek Trail System, as well 
as additional green space within the residential cells. 

The table below illustrates the change in acreage and uses for Tract 1, in 2009.  No 
changes were proposed for Tracts 2 or 3.  Changes are highlighted in red font: 

Tract Acreage Overlay Zoning 
District 

Permitted Uses 

1 15 R-4 
OP 

• Garden Homes
• Non-residential uses allowed within the OP

zoning district
• Detention

2 26.92 R-4 
GB 

• Townhomes/Condominiums
• Non-residential uses allowed within the GB

zoning district
• Detention
• Park

3 5.74 R-4 • Garden Homes

The most recent amendment to the Province Village PD was approved in June, 2014.  
The amendment created additional tracts identified as Tracts A, B and C, which were 
once included within Tracts 1, 2 and 3.  The amendment changed the land uses and 
acreages for Tracts 1 and 2.  Tract 3 was completely renamed to Tract A.  The primary 
purpose of the amendment was to remove the allowance of Garden Homes and 
Townhomes/Condominiums to allow for only traditional single family homes throughout 
the entire PD, as illustrated in the below table: 

Tract Acreage Overlay Zoning 
District 

Permitted Uses 

1 15 
8 

R-4 
OP 

• Garden Homes
• Non-residential uses allowed within the OP

zoning district
• Detention

C 5.6 R-4 • Single Family
2 26.92 

13.52 
R-4 
GB 

• Townhomes/Condominiums
• Non-residential uses allowed within the GB

zoning district
• Detention
• Park

3 | P a g e



B 13.4 R-4 • Single Family
• Park

3 5.74 R-4 • Garden Homes
3 5.74 R-4 • Single Family

Amenities approved with the 2014 amendment included 2 barbeque pits, a 4-foot trail, 
and various other amenities that were included previously.  The below table was 
included within the ordinance for the 2014 amendment: 

The proposed amendment will be the third (3rd) amendment, if approved.  Regarding the 
overlay zoning district and the land use, the applicant proposes to change an 

4 | P a g e



5 | P a g e  

 

approximately 1.707-acre site located within Tract 1 from OP to GB to allow for an 
approximately 15,000 square foot mixed use retail building.  The below table illustrates 
the changes proposed for the 1.707 acre site located in Tract 1: 

Tract Acreage Overlay Zoning 
District 

Permitted Uses 

1 8 OP (6.3 Acres) 
GB (1.7 Acres) 

 Non-residential uses allowed within the OP 
zoning district 

 Detention 
 Mixed Use Retail Building 

C 5.6 R-4  Single Family 
2 13.52 GB  Non-residential uses allowed within the GB 

zoning district 
 Detention 

B 13.4 R-4  Single Family 
 Park 

3 5.74  R-4  Single Family 
 

In addition to the change in zoning and use for the above 1.707 acres, the applicant 
also proposes changes in the design standards to match the existing Hometown Bank, 
north of the site, as indicated by the table below: 

Design Standard Current PD Regulations Proposed 

Building Materials  Varies, but mostly 
masonry and glass 
facades as required by 
zoning regulations 

 14.53% stone 
 2.77% brick 
 42% painted tilt wall 
 2.85% EIFS Trim 
 10.89% metal (cap and 

canopy) 
 26.96% storefront glass 

(transparency)  
 COD Articulation  

Signage  15 feet in height 
 150 square feet 

(effective area) 

 15 feet in height 
 150 square feet (effective 

area) 
 

Landscaping  15% Gross 
Landscaped Area 

  Province Village Drive 

 20.8% Gross Landscaped 
Area 

 Street Trees: 19 new 



6 | P a g e  

 

= 9 new trees at 17” 
caliper; 

 Pearland Parkway = 
11 new trees at 20’ 
caliper; for a total of 20 
new trees to include 
trees along Province 
Village Drive and 
Pearland Parkway 

 Parking Lot Shrubs 
along Province Village 
= 45 shrubs 

 Parking Lot  Shrubs 
Pearland Parkway = 
55 
Total shrubs required = 
100 
Parking Lot Trees: 8 
trees 
 
 

trees at 38“ caliper total 
to include trees along 
Province Village Drive 
and Pearland Parkway 

 Parking Lot Shrubs: 219 
 Side Yard Landscaping: 

100% 
Parking Lot Trees: 91 
trees  

A plat was recently approved for 
the subject property.  It is 
important to note that if the 
landscaping section is approved 
via this amendment, the plat will 
be required to be amended to 
remove the notes regarding the 
required landscaping and the 
reference to Exhibit 6 of the PD. 

Fencing and 
Screening 

Decorative wrought iron along 
western border of subject 
property 

6-foot masonry screening wall 
along southern boundary of 
subject property which abuts 
Lowes 

Neither the decorative wrought 
iron fence nor the 6 foot 
masonry fence are required. 

A plat was recently approved for 
the subject property.  It is 
important to note that if the 
fencing/screening section is 
approved via this amendment, 
the plat will be required to be 
amended to remove the notes 
regarding the required fencing. 

 

Conformance with the Thoroughfare Plan 

The subject property has frontage on Province Village Drive; a minor collector, which 
requires 60 feet of right-of-way, and Pearland Parkway; a major thoroughfare (sufficient 
with) which requires 120 feet of right-of-way.  A replat was recently approved for the site 
which indicates varying widths along Province Village Drive.  However, Pearland 
Parkway conforms to the thoroughfare plan. 



Surrounding Zoning and Land Uses 

The site is surrounded by a mix of residential and non-residential uses, including 
Lowes to the south, Hometown Bank to the north, and undeveloped land planned for 
single family homes in the future. 

Zoning Land Use 

North Existing Province Village PD 
Single Family Residential 2 (R-2) 

Bank 
Clear Creek Park 

Subdivision 
South General Commercial (GB) Lowes Home Center, IHOP, 

Sonic 
East Existing Province Village PD (OP) Undeveloped 

West Center at Pearland Parkway PD 
General Business 

Strip Retail Center 
Currently under 

Construction and Existing 
Strip Retail Center  

Conformance with the Unified Development Code 

The Province Village PD was originally approved in 2005, prior to the adoption of the 
current Unified Development Code (UDC).  The amendment, if approved, will conform 
to the requirements of the PD.  Various site design standards which are silent within 
the PD, revert back to the regulations in place at the time of adoption/amendment.   

The subject property conforms to the requirements of the existing overlay zoning district 
of Office and Professional (OP) and the proposed General Business (GB), as it relates 
to area regulations: 

OP GB Subject Property 

Minimum Lot Size 12,500 sf 22,500 sf 74,360 sf. 

Minimum Lot Width 100 ft. 150 ft. 249.90 ft. 

Minimum Lot Depth 100 ft. 125 ft. 295.38 ft. 

Minimum Front Yard 25 ft. 25 ft. Undeveloped 

Minimum Side Yard 15 ft. 10 ft. Undeveloped 

Minimum Rear Yard 10 ft. 25 ft. Undeveloped 

7 | P a g e



Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 

The subject 1.707 acre property is located within the D-10,000 sf Lots (Suburban 
Residential), indicative of large lot single family homes.  The existing as well as the 
proposed overlay zoning district do not comply with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Platting Status 

A replat was approved for the subject property on July 21 to increase the land area of 
the site.  It is important to note that due to various notes on the plat, pertaining to the 
existing PD regarding landscaping and fencing, the recently approved plat will require 
an amendment. 

Availability of Utilities 

The subject property has access to public sewer and water.  According to GIS records, 
there is an 8-inch water line along the south side of Province Village Drive; a 16 inch 
water line along the east side of Pearland Parkway; and a 12 inch water line along the 
south side of the property.  There is an existing 8 inch sewer line along the south side of 
Province Village Drive and a 6-8 inch sewer line along the south side of the property.  

Impact on Existing and Future Development 

It is not anticipated that the proposed amendment to the 1.707 acre site located within 
the Province Village PD will have any significant impact on existing or future 
developments.  The property was zoned for OP non-residential uses and is still zoned 
for non-residential uses within the GB district. 

Additional Comments 

The request has been reviewed by the Development Review Committee (DRC), and 
there are no further comments. 

Public Notification 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, the owner 
of the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under 
consideration for the zone change.  Additionally, a legal notice of the public hearing was 
published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the property by 
the applicant.   

8 | P a g e



Opposition to or Support of Proposed Request 

As of the date of this writing, staff has not received any comments either in opposition to 
or in support of the proposed change in zoning request to amend the approximately 
1.707 acre site located within the Province Village PD.   

Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the request to amend the zoning regulations for the 
1.707 acre site from an overlay district of OP to an overlay district of GB, for the 
following reasons: 

1. The proposed GB overlay district is compatible with surrounding uses, as it is 
surrounded by non-residential uses and future non-residential uses, including the 
existing Lowes, just south of the site; a retail center southwest of the site 
including HEB and various other non-residential uses/future non-residential uses. 
Additionally, just west of the site, a retail center is currently under 
construction.

2. The proposed building and signage will be compatible with the existing bank just 
north of the site to create an aesthetically pleasing development.

3. The applicant proposes additional landscaping above what is required by the
UDC.  Additionally, enhanced landscaping will be provided at the corner of
Province Village Drive and along Pearland Parkway to accentuate the entrance
to Province Village Drive.

Staff Condition: 

1. Staff recommends that a note is added in the PD that the development will 
comply with all Corridor Overlay District (COD) standards along Pearland 
Parkway, including street trees, ornamental trees, etc.  All standards 
along Province Village Drive shall follow the GB zoning district, unless included 
within the PD as a variation.

2. The applicant has indicated the intent to meet the sign regulations of the UDC. 
However, the sign exhibit does not meet the requirements of the UDC, as it 
relates to the effective area of the sign.  Staff recommends that the exhibit is 
modified accordingly.

9 | P a g e



BROADWAY ST

PEBBLE CREEK DR

MARBLE CREEK DR

2741

2540

3522

2740

2640

2610
2618

2556

2710

2704

2512

2535

2705

3201

2435

2804

2519

2802

2717

2514

2709

2703
2701

2722

2516

2533 2601

2802

2707

2601

2608

2602

2601

2612

2516

26102601

2720

2518

2606 2603

2715
2606

2602
2706

2718

2602

2711

2602
2709

2611 26082518
2612

2606

2604

2605

2604

2605
2713

26092520
2522

2610

2703

2606
2602

2707
2705

2607

2524
2610

2535

2601
2543

2703
2701

2539

2608

2603

2604

2605

2608

2606
2537

2604
2520

2541

2702
2604

2603

2702

2704

2614

2705

2603

2802

3201

AERIAL MAP 

ZONE CHANGE 2014-16Z

PROVINCE VILLAGE 
PD AMENDMENT

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 417 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE



PEARLAND PKWY

2741

2710

2815

2709

2707

2603

2706

2706

2711

2704

2709

2713

2708

2602

2601

2543

2524

2707

2541

2704

2522 2539

2804

2717

2606

2715

2710

2708

2604

2705

2704

2705

2703

2703

2829

AERIAL MAP

ZONE CHANGE 2014-16Z

PROVINCE VILLAGE 
PD AMENDMENT

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 211 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE



R-2

GB

R-1

PUD

GC
R-4

R-3

R-1 CLUSTER

NS

MF

BROADWAY ST

PEARLAND PKWY

LIB
ERTY DR

COUNTRY CLU
B DR

HELE
N LN

GINGER LN

W CIRCLE DR
LAURA LN

DOROTH
Y LN

JA
MISON RD

HIDDEN CREEK DR

REGAL O
AKS DR

GREEN TEE DR

PEBBLE CREEK DR

2741

2405

3005

3522

2402
3519

2540

2802
2732

2900

2422

2740

2828

2535

2705

2202

2640

2902

3201

3220

3216

2610

2829

2618

3219

2815

2556

3412

3221

2206

3223

3209

2302

3410

3210

3224

3230

3208
3226

3216

3222

3228

3224

3220
3218

3217

2904

3215

3412
3410

3414

3408
3404

3422
3420

3504
3502

3502

3418

3504

3211

3411

3217

3504

3411

3224

3425
3425

3417

3417

3409

3417
3417

3405

3407
3403

3501

3418
3414

3408
3410

3418
3414

3424

3404

3409

3405
3405

3415

3403

3210
3214

3415

3212

2801

2211

2435

2710

2213

3512

2206

2610

2302

2704

2901
2902

2938

2920

2601

3501

2902

2804

2605

2519

2901

3033

2601
2514

2923

2940

2507

2709

2703

2505

2701
2922

2602

2516

2533

2909

2502

3410

2707

2601

2608

2615

2602
2601

2612

2603 2503

2609

2506

2516

2413

2604

2610

2518

2501

2606

2610

2510

2502

2411

26052613

2502

2501

2214

2502

2603

2606

2501

2607

2602

2508

2706

2904

2511

2602

2514

2409

2431

2408 24072406

2407

2602

2511

2611

2432

2511

2518

2606
2604

2511

2605

2609

2912

2520

2605
2607

2606

2914

2602

2603

2705

2511

2601

2602

2520

2935

2604 2512

2510

2501
2512

3714
3713

2509

2513

2606

2512

2503

2432

3713

2515

3714

2936
2212

3602

2206

3601
3602

2512

3711

2427

2929

3611

2949

3711

2934

2905

2210

3707
3703

3701
3615

3620

3706

3604

2927

2510

3703

2930

3709

2430

2925
2928

3706
2416

2418
2424

2428

2422

2211

2111

3208

3203

2902
2902

2902

ZONING  MAP

ZONE CHANGE 2014-16Z

PROVINCE VILLAGE 
PD AMENDMENT

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 703 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE



Offices

Parks

Medium Density Residential Public / Semi-Public

Low Density Residential

Retail, Offices and Services

D-10,000sf Lots (Suburban Res)

A-1/2 Ac. Lots (Suburban Res)

High Density Residential

BROADWAY ST

PEARLAND PKWY

LIB
ERTY DR

W CIRCLE DR

JA
MISON RD

HIDDEN CREEK DR

REGAL O
AKS DR

GREEN TEE DR
2741

2405

3005

3522

2402
3519

2540

2802
2732

2900

2422

2740

2202

2828

2535

2705

2640 3201

3220

3216

2610

2829

2618

3219

2815

2556

3221

2206

3223

3209

2302

3210

3224

3230

3208
3226

3216

3222

3228

3224

3220
3218

3217

2904

3215

3412
3410

3414

3408
3404

3422
3420

3504
3502

3418

3211

3411

3217

3411

3224

3425
3417

3409

3417
3417

3405

3407
3403

3418
3414
3408

3410

3404

3409
3405

3403

3210
3214
3212

2801

2211

2435

2710

2213
2206

2610

2704

2901
2902

2938

2920

2601

2902

2804

2605

2519

2802

2901

3033

2601

2717

2514

2923

2940

2709

2703
2701

2922
2602

2516

2533

2909

2502

2602

3410

2707

2601

2615

2602
2601

2612

2603 2503

2609

2516

2413

2604

26102601

2501

2518

2501

2606

2610

2510

2502

2411

2605

2715

2613

2502

2501

2214

2502

2714

2603

2606

2501

2607

2602

2508

2706

2904

2602

2514

2409

2431

2408 24072406
2405

2511

2611

2432

2511

2518

2511

2605

2609

2912

2520

2605
2607

2606

2914

2602

2603

2607

2918

24312511

2601

2602

2520

2935

2604
2512

2510

2501

2432

2512

3714

2512

3713

2509

2513

2507

2606

2512

2432

3713

2515

3714

3401

2936
2212

3602

2206

3601

3601

3602

2512

3711

3611

2427

2929

2429

3611

2949

3711

2934

2905

2210

3604

3707
3703

3709
3705

3701

3608

3706

36043616

2508

3606

2504

2927

3613
3615

3605

2510

3607

2510

2506

3603

3616

2930

3620
2430

2429

2925
2928

3706

2416
2418

2426

2424
2422

2420

2421

2211

2111

3208

3203

29022902

FLUP  MAP

ZONE CHANGE 2014-16Z

PROVINCE VILLAGE 
PD AMENDMENT

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 703 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE



PROPERTY OWNER ADDRESS SUITE CITY STATE ZIP
ADAMS MICHAEL W & 
ANGELA D 2720 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581
ALCANCIA OSCAR E & 
BONITA K 2714 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581
ALEXANDER T & B FAMILY 
LTD PRTNSHP 2411 PARK AVE PEARLAND TX 77581
ALLON PROPERTY 
MANAGEMENT I LLC 6 WATERFORD OAKS LN KEMAH TX 77565

CENTERPOINT ENERGY INC PO BOX 1475 HOUSTON TX 77251
CHAMBLIN MITCHELL & 
SHERI

2708 ARROWHEAD CREEK 
LN PEARLAND TX 77581

CITY OF PEARLAND 3519 LIBERTY DR PEARLAND TX 77581
CLEAR CREEK PARK 2615 BAY AREA BLVD HOUSTON TX 77058
COFFEE SUSAN SMITH 2712 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581
DIEHL JOHN M 2603 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581

DIESE RICHARD W & LISA K 2715 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581
DORSEY CECIL E & LINDA K 2606 HIDDEN CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581
E BROADWAY PLAZA LP 2640 BROADWAY ST STE 102 PEARLAND TX 77581
GERSTENBERGER MICHAEL 
W 2601 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581
GREEN STEPHEN L & TANYA 
H 2707 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581
HARTSOOK DAVID L 180 HERMITAGE DR MONTGOMERY TX 77356
HERNANDEZ ADAM D & 
ZOILA A 2604 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581

HOLT RONALD G & BARBARA 2717 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581
INTERNATIONAL BANK OF 
COMMERCE 5615 KIRBY DR HOUSTON TX 77005
JONES CORY A 2718 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581
KAL INVESTMENTS 7402 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581



KIM JEAN 2602 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581
KUHNS PERRY S & 
ESMERALDA 2713 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581
LEDBETTER RANDY W & 
BOBBIE A PO BOX 788 PEARLAND TX 77588
LIBERATORE JAMES V & 
CHRISTINE 2706 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581

LOWE'S HOME CENTERS INC PO BOX 1000 MOORESVILLE NC 28115
LUCAS ALAN W 2802 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581
MALLAS ARTEMIS LIVING 
TRUST UTD PO BOX 802206 DALLAS TX 75380
MARTIN KENNETH & 
SHANNON 2702 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581
MCKINNEY MARK & JANIS 2612 CREEKS EDGE DR PEARLAND TX 77581

MOTLEY MELVIN & DE ANN 2606 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581
MUNGUIA RIGOBERTO & 
MIRIAM 2716 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581
NIXON DEVON M 2804 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581

OFFICE GROVE PROVINCE LP 15120 NORTHWEST FWY STE 190 HOUSTON TX 77040
PEARLAND ISD PO BOX 7 PEARLAND TX 77588
PROTESTANT EPISCOPAL 
CHUR 8200 BROOKRIVER DR STE N600 DALLAS TX 75247
RUBIO DESIDERIO 2722 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581
SCHWERDTFEGER TRACY K & 
KIMBERLY A 2708 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581
SMITH TIMOTHY C & 
STEPHANIE T 2701 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581
SPIRES RALPH E 2704 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581
TEXPROJ2008 LLC PO BOX 800 SAINT FRANCISVILLE LA 70775
THARRETT DAVID & SARAH 
MCQUEEN 2711 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581



THE GRILL AT TIMEOUT LLC 2515 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581
VU LOI T 2709 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581

WILKERSON RYAN & VALARIE 2605 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581
WILLHOITE ROBERT R & 
LUCRETIA H 2710 PEBBLE CREEK DR PEARLAND TX 77581



Revision # 4
9.5.14



















































































P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

F 
 
 

 

jtatum
Typewritten Text

jtatum
Typewritten Text
1. Commissioners activity report2. Comprehensive Plan Update3. Zoning Update4. Commissioners Annual Questionnaire5. Texas APA State Conference - October 15-18 Frisco, TX6. Next P&Z Meeting - October 6, 2014

jtatum
Typewritten Text

jtatum
Typewritten Text

jtatum
Typewritten Text



 
 
 
 
 

ADJOURN  
 

MEETING 


	P&Z Agenda Coversheet
	September 15, 2014 P&Z Agenda
	CONSENT AGENDA
	AGENDA ITEM A
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	August 18, 2014 P&Z Minutes
	EXCUSE ABSENCES
	AGENDA ITEM B
	1 Oakbrook Section 9 Packet
	1 Oakbrook Section 9 Agenda Request.pdf
	2 Oakbrook Section Nine Staff Report
	3 Zoning and Vicinity
	4 Aerial
	5 Oakbrook Estates Sec. 5 Plat
	MYSCAN_20140910_0002
	MYSCAN_20140910_0001.PDF.pdf


	Matters Removed from Consent Agenda
	OLD BUSINESS
	AGENDA ITEM A
	3. OLD BUSINESS, Lake Park PD
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	3. 2014-10Z,  Applicant's Response

	6
	1. Z2014-10, Lake Park PD Agenda Request 7.21.14
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. PURPOSE OF HEARING
	III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY

	4. Z2014-10, Lake Park PD Aerial Map
	5. Z2014-10, Lake Park PD Zoning Map
	6. Z2014-10, Lake Park PD FLUP Map
	7. Z2014-10, Lake Park PD Notification Map
	8. Z2014-10, Lake Park PD Notification List
	Lakepark

	9. Z2014-10, Lake Park PD Document

	8 Revised PD

	NEW BUSINESS
	AGENDA ITEM A
	2 Dixie Farm at Tall Oak Cluster Packet
	1 Dixie Farm at Tall Oak Cluster  Agenda Request.pdf
	2 Staff Report - Dixie Farm at Tall Oak
	3 Zoning Map
	4 FLUP Map
	5 Aerial Map
	6 Applicant Packet

	AGENDA ITEM B
	2. CUP 2014-08, 3030 Cullen Parkway
	1. CUP 2014-08, AIS 9.15.14 JPH
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. PURPOSE OF HEARING
	III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY

	2. CUP 2014-08, Memo 9.15.14 JPH
	3. CUP 2014-08, Staff Report 9.15.14 JPH
	4. CUP 2014-08, Aerial Map
	5. CUP 2014-08, Zoning Map
	6. CUP 2014-08, FLUP Map
	7. CUP 2014-08 Notificatiom Map
	8.CUP 2014-08, Notification List
	Sheet2

	9. CUP 2014-08, Applicant Packet

	AGENDA ITEM C
	1. 2014-6Z, 4602 W. Broadway
	1. Z2014-06, AIS 6.16.14 JPH
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. PURPOSE OF HEARING
	III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY

	2. Z2014-06, JPH Memo
	3. Z2014-06,  JPH Staff Report
	4. Z2014-06, JPH Aerial Map
	5. Z2014-06, JPHZoning Map
	6. Z2014-06, JPH FLUP Map
	7. Z2014-06, JPH Notification Map
	8. Z2014-06, JPH Notification List
	Output_Test

	9. Z2014-06, JPH Applicant Packet

	AGENDA ITEM D
	3. 2014-15Z, Business Center PD Amendment
	1. 2014-15Z, AIS 9.15.14 JPH
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. PURPOSE OF HEARING
	III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY

	2. 2014-15Z, Staff Memo
	3. 2014-15Z, Staff Report
	4. 2014-15Z, Aerial Map
	5. 2014-15Z, Zoning Map
	6. 2014-15Z, FLUP Map
	8. 2014-15Z, Notification Map
	9. 2014-15Z, Notification List
	Sheet1

	10. 2014-15Z, Business Center PD Redline
	Business Center PD_2014-09-4_TOC_final redline
	Business Center PD_09-04-14_Final Redline

	11. 2014-15Z, Applicant Packet
	I-175A_EXHIBITS_09-04-14 (2).pdf
	I-175A_EXHIBITS_09-04-14
	I-175A_Exhibit D Land Use Areas_09-04-14
	I-175A_EXHIBIT H_09-04-14
	I-175A_EXHIBITS_08-13-14_Final
	Exhibit B
	EX_ALTA Survey 38.990ac 062012
	EX_ALTA Desc. 38.909ac-CR59andCR566
	Exhibit B1
	LTS 2014-07-23 IDS 29.331 Ac Survey
	LTS 2014-07-23 IDS 29.331 Ac M&B
	I-175A_Exhibit C Zoning Map_06-18-12
	I-175A_Pearland Tract_Power Line Exhibit_08-12-14
	I-175A_Exhibit F Business Center PD


	I-175A_Exhibit G_Detention_09-04-14


	AGENDA ITEM E
	4. 2014-16Z Province Village PD Amendment
	1. 2014-16Z, AIS 9.15.14 JPH
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. PURPOSE OF HEARING
	III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY

	2. 2014-16Z, Staff Memo
	3. 2014-16Z, Staff Report
	4. 2014-16Z, Aerial Map of Entire PD Boundary
	5. 2014-16Z, Aerial Map of Subject
	6. 2014-16Z, Zoning Map
	7. 2014-16Z,FLUP Map
	8. 2014-16Z, Notification List
	Sheet2

	9. 2014-16Z. PD Revision #4
	10. 2014-16Z, Applicant Packet

	AGENDA ITEM F
	ADJOURN MEETING



